
 

1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2416 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

 
 

AMENDED 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

Teleconference Meeting Notice and Agenda  
Members Thursday, March 26, 2020 
Dr. John Novak, Chair  1:00 p.m. 
Michael D. Brown, Vice Chair  
Marsha Berkbigler  
Kristopher Dahir Washoe County Health District 
Dr. Reka Danko Building B 
Oscar Delgado 1001 East Ninth Street 
Tom Young Reno, NV 

  
TO ENCOURAGE SOCIAL DISTANCING  

please be sure attend this meeting via the number listed below.  
(be sure to keep your phones on mute, and do not place the call on hold)  

 
Phone: 1-636-651-3141 
(Access Code: 7361073) 

 

An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no action will be taken. 
1:00 p.m. 
1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 
2. *Pledge of Allegiance 
3. *Public Comment 

Action may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter 
is specifically listed on an agenda as an action item. 

4. Approval of Agenda – (For possible action) 
March 26, 2020 

5. Consent Items – (For possible action) 
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to the 
Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 
A. Approval of Draft Minutes – (For possible action) 

i. February 27, 2020 
B. *Recognitions 

Years of Service 
i. Richard Sanchez, 20 years, Hired 03/27/2000 – EHS  
ii. Brenda Wickman, 20 years, Hired 03/27/2000 – EHS 



 
March 26, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Agenda   Page 2 of 4 

Promotions 
i. Kristen DeBraga from Environmental Health Trainee to Environmental Health Specialist 

- EHS 
New Hires 

i. Julia Ratti, 03/16/2020, Health Educator II, part time, ODHO 
ii. Alejandra Rosales, 03/16/2020, Community Health Aide - CCHS 

Accomplishments 
i. Maricela Caballero – ALTA Certificate of Qualification as a Beginner Spanish Medical 

Interpreter 
C. Budget Amendments/Interlocal Agreements – (For possible action) 

i. Approve a Notice of Subaward from the State of Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public & Behavioral Health effective April 1, 2020 through 
March 31, 2021 in the total amount of $168,633.00 (no required match) in support of the 
Community and Clinical Health Services Division (CCHS) Ryan White HIV/AIDS –Part 
B Early Intervention Services Program and authorize the District Health Officer to 
execute the Notice of Subaward. (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  Nancy Kerns-Cummins  

ii. Approve a Notice of Subaward from the State of Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public & Behavioral Health retroactive to February 1, 2020 
through August 31, 2020 in the total amount of $142,124.00 (no required match) in 
support of the Community and Clinical Health Services Division (CCHS) Chronic 
Disease Prevention Program for opioid overdose prevention; authorize the creation of a 
1.0 FTE, fully benefitted, full-time Health Educator position as evaluated by the Job 
Evaluation Committee; and authorize the District Health Officer to execute the Notice of 
Subaward. (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  Nancy Kerns-Cummins  

D. Acceptance of the Air Quality Management Division portion of the Truckee Meadows 
Regional Plan Annual Report for Calendar Year 2019. - (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  Francisco Vega 

E. Acceptance of the 2019 Annual Report to the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning 
Agency by the Washoe County Health District as the Solid Waste Management 
Authority. - (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  James English 

F. Affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board for the 
Approval of Variance Case No. 2-20FP Levy Premium Food Service Application for 
Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, applicable requirements), 
060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 (Plumbing 
system) of the regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food 
Establishments.]. - (For possible action) 

 Staff Representative:  Charlene Albee 
G. Affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board for the 

Approval of Variance Case No. 1-20FP Rocky Mountain Chocolate Factory Application for 
Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, applicable requirements), 
060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 (Plumbing 



March 26, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Agenda   Page 3 of 4 

system) of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food 
Establishments. (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  Charlene Albee 

H. Acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund Financial Review for February, Fiscal Year 2020.
(For possible action)
Staff Representative:  Anna Heenan

6. Possible approval of the Interlocal Agreement for Incident Command and Coordinated
Response to COVID-19.  (For Possible Action)
Staff Representative:  Kevin Dick

7. Review, discussion, and possible adoption of the Business Impact Statement regarding
proposed revisions to the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality
Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning with a finding that the revised
regulations do not impose a direct and significant economic burden on a business; nor do
the revised regulations directly restrict the formation, operation or expansion of a business;
and set a public hearing for possible adoption of the proposed revisions to the Regulations
for April 23, 2020 at 1:00 pm. – (For Possible Action)
Staff Representative:  Francisco Vega

8. Discussion and possible direction regarding potential deferral of annual renewal fee
collection for businesses impacted by the COVID-19 emergency for the Environmental
Health Services and Air Quality Management Divisions. – (For possible Action)
Staff Representative:  Charlene Albee and Francisco Vega

9. *Staff Reports and Program Updates
A. Air Quality Management, Francisco Vega, Division Director

Program Update – EPA Comments, RENOvation, Divisional Update, Program Reports,
Monitoring and Planning, Permitting and Enforcement

B. Community and Clinical Health Services, Lisa Lottritz, Division Director
Divisional Update – 2020 World TB Day; Data & Metrics; Sexual Health (HIV and Disease
Investigation), Immunizations, Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program, Reproductive
and Sexual Health Services, Chronic Disease Prevention Program, Maternal Child and
Adolescent Health and Women Infants and Children.

C. Environmental Health Services, Charlene Albee, Division Director
Environmental Health Services (EHS) Division Program Updates – Consumer Protection
(Food, Food Safety, Permitted Facilities, Commercial Plans) and Environmental Protection
(Land Development, Safe Drinking Water, Vector, Waste Management/UST), and
Inspections.

D. Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, Dr. Randall Todd, Division Director
Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, Emergency Medical Services

E. Office of the District Health Officer, Kevin Dick, District Health Officer
Health Officer Report – COVID-19, Ozone Advance, Community Health Improvement Plan, and
Family Health Festival.

10. *Board Comment
District Board of Health Member’s announcements, reports and updates, request for information
or topics for future agendas.  (No discussion among Board Members will take place on the item)



 
March 26, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Agenda   Page 4 of 4 

11. *Public Comment 
Action may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter 
is specifically listed on an agenda as an action item. 

12. Adjournment – (For possible action) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing:  Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, 
withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be 
voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items 
listed in the Consent section of the agenda are voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn 
from the Consent agenda. 

Special Accommodations: The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public 
who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at 
the Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th Street, Building B, Reno, NV 89512, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to 
the meeting. 

Public Comment:  Members of the public may make public comment by submitting an email comment to 
SValdespin@washoecounty.us, which includes the name of the commenter and the agenda item number for which the comment is 
submitted.  During the “Public Comment” items, emails may be submitted pertaining to any matter either on or off the agenda, to 
include items to be heard on consent.  For the remainder of the agenda, public comment emails will only be heard during items that 
are not marked with an asterisk (*).  Any public comment for hearing items will be heard before action is taken on the item and must 
be about the specific item being considered by the Board. 

Response to Public Comment: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without notice 
to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will consider, 
Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health District Staff 
action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public comment item or 
during the following item:  “Board Comments – District Board of Health Member’s announcements, reports and updates, request for 
information or topics for future agendas.  (No discussion among Board Members will take place on the item)”  

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website:  
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV Reno 
City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV 
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Downtown Reno Library, 301 S. Center St., Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health State 
of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 

How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials: Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County 
Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, Nevada.  Ms. Susy Valdespin, Administrative Secretary to the District Board of 
Health is the person designated by the Washoe County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Ms. 
Valdespin is located at the Washoe County Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at 
svaldespin@washoecounty.us.  Supporting materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website 
www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020. 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:svaldespin@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


1001 E. Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

Washoe County District Board of Health 
Meeting Minutes 

Members Thursday, February 27, 2020 
Dr. John Novak, Chair  1:00 p.m. 
Michael D. Brown, Vice Chair 
Marsha Berkbigler 
Kristopher Dahir Washoe County Administration Complex 
Dr. Reka Danko Commission Chambers, Building A 
Oscar Delgado 1001 East Ninth Street 
Tom Young Reno, NV 

1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum
Chair Novak called the meeting to order at 1:03 p.m.
The following members and staff were present:
Members present: Dr. John Novak, Chair

Michael Brown, Vice Chair 
Marsha Berkbigler 
Dr. Reka Danko 
Tom Young 

Members absent: Kristopher Dahir (arrived at the meeting at 2:37 p.m.) 
Oscar Delgado 

Mrs. Valdespin verified a quorum was present. 
Staff present: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

Dania Reid, Deputy Disttrict Attorney 
Anna Heenan 
Charlene Albee 
Lisa Lotritz 
Dr. Randall Todd 
Francisco Vega 
Rayhona LaVoie 

2. *Pledge of Allegiance
Ms. Rogers led the pledge to the flag.

3. *Public Comment
Chair Novak opened the public comment period.
No public Comment.
Chair Novak closed the public comment period.

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.A.



 
February 27, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 10 

4. Approval of Agenda 
February 27, 2020 
Vice-Chair Brown moved to approve the agenda for the February 27, 2020, District Board 
of Health regular meeting.  Dr. Danko seconded the motion which was approved 
unanimously. 

5. Recognitions  
A. Retirements 

i. Laura Rogers, 02/28/2020, Administrative Secretary – ODHO 
Mr. Dick informed that Ms. Rogers is due to retire after her service from her position 

as Administrative Secretary with the ODHO.  Mr. Dick thanked her for her service and 
presented her with a commemorative clock from the Health District. On behalf of the 
Board, Chair Novak thanked Ms. Roger’s excellent service to the Board. 
B. Resigned 

i. Christina Conti Rodrigues, 01/25/2020, Preparedness and EMS Program 
Manager – EPHP 

Mr. Dick informed that Ms. Conti Rodriguez resigned as the Preparedness and EMS 
Program Manager for the Health District and thanked her for over fourteen years of 
service. 
C. Years of Service 

i. Maria Magana, 25 years, Hired 2/13/1995 – CCHS 
  Ms. Magana was not in attendance 

ii. Paula Valentin, 20 years, Hired 2/3/2000 – EHS 
Mr. Dick congratulated Ms. Valentin and thanked her for her service. 

iii. Heather Kerwin, 5 years, Hired 2/17/2015 – EPHP 
 Mr. Dick noted that Ms. Kerwin has worked with the department   

 longer than five years, since her career began as a contractor.  Mr. Dick   
 congratulated and thanked her for her service. 
D. New Hires 

i. Anastasia Gunawan, 2/3/2020, Statistician, part time – EPHP 
Ms. Gunawan was not in attendance. 

ii. Susy Valdespin, 2/17/2020, Administrative Secretary – ODHO 
 Mr. Dick introduced Ms. Valdespin informing the various County   

 departments and roles she has served in.  Mr. Dick welcomed Ms. Valdespin  
 to his team. 

iii. Maricruz Schaefer, 2/18/2020, Public Health Nurse I – CCHS 
 Ms. Lotritz welcome Ms. Schaefer, informing the Board of Ms.   

 Schaefer’s experience as a labor and delivery nurse and a med-surg nurse.   
 Ms. Schaefer graduated from the University of Nevada, Reno.   
E. Shining Stars 

i. Frank Cauble 
ii. Christine Ballew  

 Mr. Dick noted Mr. Cauble is retired but continues to receive recognition for his 
work. Mr. Dick noted that, since the inception of the County’s Shining Star Recognition 
Program in 2017, the Health District has received 679 Shining Star Awards. 

Mr. Cauble and Ms. Ballew were not in attendance.  Chair Novak thanked everyone 
and called on County Manager Brown to address the Board. 



 
February 27, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 10 

6. Presentation on Updates to the Air Quality Management Division Enforcement Process 
and Penalty Calculation Worksheet and possible direction from the Board. 
Staff Representative:  Francisco Vega 
 Mr. Vega summarized the supporting staff report.  The Air Quality Management 
division conducted a review of the compliance and enforcement and penalty calculation 
worksheet.  It was determined the worksheet was not being used consistently and 
appropriately to determine penalties; therefore, changes were made, and Mr. Vega is now 
seeking approval of the new worksheet.  
 Mr. Young was interested in the amount of appeals and/or resistance this department 
receives regarding penalties. Mr. Vega explained that per the reports he receives from his 
staff, appeals are very rare and applicants are usually accepting of their responsibility.  
 Mr. Dick voiced councilman Dahir’s comment in his absence. Mr. Dick stated that 
councilman Dahir had requested this item to be heard on this agenda before the Board 
discussed changes or updates to fees.   

Commissioner Berkbigler moved to accept the report on Updates to Air 
Quality Management Division Enforcement Process and Penalty Calculation 
Worksheet.  Vice Chair Brown seconded the motion which was approved 
unanimously. 

7. Consent Items 
 Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion. Any 
exceptions to the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 
 Chair Novak inquired if there were any items the Board wanted to add and/or 
pull from the Consent agenda.   

A. Approval of Draft Minutes 
i. January 23, 2020 

B. Budget Amendments/Interlocal Agreements 
i. Recommendation to approve a Subaward Amendment totaling an increase of 

$20,659 for a cumulative grant value of $180,788 to the FY20 Epidemiology 
and Laboratory Capacity (ELC) grant retroactive to August 1, 2019 through 
July 31, 2020 in support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
(CDC); and if approved authorize the District Health Officer to execute the 
Subaward Amendment. 

  Staff Representative:  Jennifer Hoekstra 
ii. Approve a Notice of Subaward from the State of Nevada Department of 

Health and Human Services, Division of Public & Behavioral Health 
retroactive to February 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 in the total amount of 
$402,182.00 (no required match) in support of the Community and Clinical 
Health Services Division (CCHS) Tobacco Control Program for youth 
tobacco and e-cigarette/vaping use and authorize the District Health Officer 
to execute the Notice of Subaward. 

  Staff Representative:  Nancy Kerns Cummins 
C. Authorize the abolishment of vacant Community Health Aide PC# 70002123. 

  Staff Representative:  Nancy Kerns Cummins  



 
February 27, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 10 

D. Authorize FY20 Purchase Order #7500003961 to Merck Sharp & Dohme 
Corporation in the amount of $130,000.00 to purchase vaccines for the Immunization 
and Family Planning Programs 

  Staff Representative:  Nancy Kerns Cummings 
E. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution Control 

Hearing Board. 
i. Jacksons Food Stores, Inc. – Case No. 1220, NOV No. 5775 

ii. McCarran Mart – Case No. 1221, NOV No. 5780 
iii. JC NV Flats LLC – Case No. 1223, NOV No. 5852 

  Staff Representative:  Francisco Vega 
F. Acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund Financial Review for January, Fiscal Year 

2020 
Staff Representative:  Anna Heenan 

 Mr. Young moved to accept Consent Agenda items A through F.  Commissioner 
Berkbigler seconded the motion which was approved unanimously. 

8. *Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council (IHCC) Presentation of Accomplishments  
Presented by:  Tammy Oliver, IHCC Chair 
Jessie Latchaw, WCHD, Public Health Emergency Response Coordinator 
 Ms. Latchaw informed that this presentation would be a highlight of the 
accomplishments of the IHCC in the past year.  The accomplishments included the 
completion the Coalition Response Guide, the Alpha & Commands Kits went out to the 
community, the Care Site Plan was built and tested, they received NACCHO Award, 
implementation a new Clinical Advisor position, and the Resource & Gap Analysis 
Provider Plan Updates. 

  Ms. Latchaw also spoke of the coalition exercises which included the Silver 
Crucible full scale exercise and the No-Notice Coalition Surge and tested the system during 
off hours.  Presenters made reference to an evaluation survey they conducted to measure 
partner’s satisfaction with their services, including but not limited to trainings, exercises, 
etc.  The overall response has been positive per the feedback that was included in this 
presentation. 

  Chair Novak spoke as to the recognition people have given all the exercises, 
particularly the full-scale exercises, facilitated through IHCC.  He thanked the presenters 
for their efforts and asked them to thank the group on his behalf. 

9. Regional, Emergency Medical Services Authority 
 Presented by:  Dean Dow and Alexia Jobson (Mr. Dow was not in attendance) 

A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Report for January 2020 
  Ms. Alexia Jobson, Public Affairs Manager of REMSA and Care Flight, highlighted 
the positive feedback on their services.  Ms. Jobson informed she was available to answer 
any questions. 

Dr. Danko moved to accept the REMSA Operations Reports for January 2020.  
Vice Chair Brown seconded the motion which was approved unanimously. 

B. *Update of REMSA’s Public Relations during January 2020 
Ms. Jobson informed that earlier that week they conducted an interview with KTVN 

regarding their Bleeding Control class held on February 26, 2020. In mid-February REMSA 
hosted a new program ‘Beyond the Lights and Sirens’, REMSA’s executive experience, 
which offers executives across the region the opportunity to tour and experience REMSA  



 
February 27, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 10 

behind the scenes.  REMSA estimates hosting five more similar events throughout the 
remainder of the year.   

10. Presentation, discussion and possible action to affirm the recommendation by the Food 
Protection Hearing and Advisory Board to continue the hold order issued pursuant to 
Section 240.045 of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health 
Governing Food Establishments, permitting the secure storage of food product 
produced by Dorinda’s Chocolates and packaged by LiveKaya until such time as the 
State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) adopts regulations 
relating to the testing and labeling of products containing hemp and certain other 
products containing cannabidiol (CBD) intended for human consumption.  It is further 
recommended that entry of a final decision regarding disposition of the food product 
be stayed until after August 1, 2020 or when the State’s regulations have been adopted 
if that date is earlier. 
Staff Representative:  Charlene Albee 

Ms. Albee explained this immediate item comes from the Food Protection Hearing 
and Advisory Board.   The hearing happened on July 9, 2019 and extensive communication 
has happened regarding the recommendation.  Due to the length of the process and the 
conversations there was an overlap in between processes.   

Mr. Dick clarified that this item maintains the status quo where Dorinda’s Chocolates 
is storing the manufactured product waiting for the State Regulation to be expected to come 
out at the beginning of July.  Once the regulations are out the Board can take action on this 
matter. 

Commissioner Berkbigler spoke regarding the cleanliness of Dorinda’s Chocolates, 
during an event she attended with the governor. 

Dania Reid, Deputy District Attorney (DDA) suggested that given the language of 
this item and the circumstances with the regulations, it may suit the Board to maintain the 
status quo.  Dania informed that this Board only has one opportunity to refer the matter back 
to the Advisory Board, which may not be right to decide on today’s meeting. 

Chair Novak inquired about public comment and DDA recommended public 
comments to be permitted before a vote was casted.  

Commissioner Berkbigler moved to maintain the status quo until the State’s 
regulations are adopted.  Vice-Chair Brown seconded the motion which was carried 
unanimously. 

Will Adler, representing Silver State Government Relations who represents 
Dorinda’s Chocolates, provided comment regarding the motion.  He cautioned that 
regulations may be adopted sooner than August. 

Ms. Reid highlighted the language in this item provides for those expected delays or 
changes.  The intention is to keep an open dialogue in the event that the Board is in a position 
where an early decision is necessary or in the event that there’s information about delays 
with the regulations or not quite ready on the expected date.   

11. Presentation and possible acceptance of the 2018-2020 Community Health 
Improvement Plan Annual Report. 

  Staff Representative:  Rayona LaVoie    
Ms. LaVoie informed the Board that the acronym CHIP (Community Health 

Improvement Plan) will be used throughout her report when referring to the Community 
Health Improvement Plan.  Ms. LaVoie mentioned this Improvement Plan is community 



 
February 27, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 10 

driven, but the Health District is responsible for collecting the data, tracking the activity and 
producing the annual report.  

Ms. LaVoie stated that the 2019 focus was on housing and homelessness, behavioral 
health, and physical activity and nutrition. Each focus area had a committee that met 
quarterly and focused in participating in the activities required to meet the action plan. 

The first focus is Housing and Homelessness.  The committees that were assigned to 
the Housing and Homelessness accomplished 9 out of 9 strategies.  The biggest 
accomplishment was the completion of the Regional Strategy for Housing Affordability led 
by Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities.  A comprehensive analysis of housing needs in 
the region and identified strategies to meet the needs.  The Reno Housing Authority was 
proposed as the lead agency to implement the strategy.  Additionally, the Youth Homeless 
Roadmap adopted by RAAH leadership lead to the fruition of the 24-hour drop-in center also 
known as the Eddy House, available to youth in Washoe County. 

The second focus is Behavioral Health.  The committee assigned to this focus has 
accomplished 7 of the 12 strategies of second action plan.  Ms. LaVoie highlighted the efforts 
being made to complete screening and referrals to treatment services. As part of these efforts, 
Ms. LaVoie explained that Good Grid, a case management system for partners that provide 
behavioral health services, is being implemented by Phase I pilot partners and are on track 
to implement with Phase II pilot partners.   

Ms. LaVoie spoke of the money the Health District provided to fund the Signs of 
Suicide program in Washoe County schools. As a result, the program has been implemented 
in 14 middle schools and presents positive results such as an increase in program enrollment. 
Initially, getting permission slips signed by the parents posed a barrier, however, the slip is 
now included in the school’s enrollment packet, which increased the number of slips being 
returned. 

The third focus is Physical Activity and Nutrition.  The committee has accomplished 
8 out of 8 strategies.  The 5210 Healthy Washoe committee offered a training series to the 
12 pilot sites that have been implemented within this program, including school, health care 
office, and chamber members. Ms. LaVoie briefly spoke of the Family Health Festivals, a 
trait of the Physical Activity and Nutrition focus.  These festivals have provided resources 
and/or services to just under 2,000 residents.  The program has further their partnerships, so 
services now include dental screenings and fluoride varnish, resulting in 70 clients receiving 
those services. Ms. LaVoie commended the Immunization clinic for participating and 
providing 696 immunizations, thus far.   

Mr. LaVoie informed that they are committed to continue implementing the strategies 
outlined in the CHIP.  Ms. LaVoie thanked all her partners and opened it for questions from 
the Board.  

Commissioner Berkbigler moved to accept the 2018-2020 Health Improvement 
Plan Annual Report. Vice-Chair Brown seconded the motion which was carried 
unanimously. 

12. Approval of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget. 
Staff Representative:  Kevin Dick 
 Mr. Dick initiated his presentation with an explanation  that a conceptual budget is 
presented to allow time for the Health District to submit this department’s budget to the 
County Budget Manager that is presented to the Board of Commissioners. 



 
February 27, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 10 

Mr. Dick spoke of Health District’s accomplishments for the year such as the 
National Public Health Accreditation, progress with CHIP, participation in Emergency 
Preparedness exercises, financial support for different community partners in areas of 
priorities for the Health District and the Board through IHCC, school district’s nutrition 
services via healthy eating initiatives, Rescue Organization for e-cigarette which addresses 
the youth epidemic, and   Washoe Eats just to mention a few.  Mr. Dick added that the 
Washoe Eats mobile app received the Impact Award in October 2018.  Mr. Dick added that 
the current budget reflects the Health District’s continued participation in the 
aforementioned. 
 Mr. Dick spoke of how the budget is allocated throughout the different offices. He 
also presented the budgeted revenues and expenditures. Mr. Dick explained that due to the 
needs of the community, including COVID-19, there will be above base requests included 
but not limited to positions like Health Educator Coordinator, Health Educator II, and an 
Epidemiologist.  The epidemiology position was discussed with County Manager Brown and 
Mr. Brown has approved the filling of such position outside of the budget cycle due to needs 
the Health District has, as a result of COVID-19. Additionally, Mr. Dick informed that a 
review was summited to Human Resources for the current Statistician classification.  Mr. 
Dick hopes to get clarification as to whether this position is classified properly, as far as 
grade and salary range.  Otherwise, this classification will need to be modified. 

Commissioner Berkbigler asked for clarification on the Intermittent Office Assistant 
position that is being eliminated.  Anna Heenan clarified that the Office Assistant position 
that is being eliminated is from the Vector program.  She added that the funds from this 
position will be applied to a full time Office Assistant position that assists in all areas of the 
Environmental Health department. Mr. Dick concluded the above base request discussion by 
mentioning that a request was also made for services and supplies due to the loss of grant 
funding in immunizations.  
 Mr. Dick informed the Board about the plans for the budget in 2021, explaining the 
Projected Fund Balance.  A meeting is scheduled on March 3, 2020 where the Health District 
will be presenting their budget to the County Budget Office and Assistant County Manager. 
On March 6, 2020, the Health District will be presenting their budget to County and City 
managers, an update will be provided to the Board on March 26, 2020 Mr. Dick.  On April 
21, 2020 County Budget Manager will present the County Budget to Board of 
Commissioners and the fund support will be finalized. On May 19, 2020 a public hearing 
will be held in front of the Board of County Commissioners and if adopted, County Budget 
Manager will deliver it to the Department of Taxation on June 1, 2020.  In conclusion, Mr. 
Dick thanked the staff that collaborated on putting together the budget. 
 Commissioner Berkbigler asked for clarification on the number of new positions 
being requested in the budget.  Anna Heenan confirmed it is 4 new positions. 
 Commissioner Berkbigler voiced her concerns about cutting services in the future 
because the Health District is using reserves to balance the budget.  Mr. Dick responded by 
stating that the Health District continues to include half-a-million dollars for one-time 
expenditures to cover some of the projects like the Eddy House; however, those funds could 
be used as a cushion to prevent losing staff.  Additionally, the budget as it’s presented is very 
conservative which means the fund balances will probably be coming in above in the way 
the budget needs to be done for government purposes.  Commissioner Berkbigler 
commanded the Health District for how they manage the budget, however, suggests having 
some flexibility in their reserve funds. 
 



February 27, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 10 

Chair Novak commented on his reluctance to cut down the Health District’s reserve 
funds.  He made note that after his trip to Washington D.C., he does not know how quickly 
the federal funds, for purposes of COVID-19, would be available.    

 Vice Chair Brown moved to maintain the status quo until the State’s regulations 
are adopted.  Dr. Danko seconded the motion which was carried unanimously. 

13. *Staff Reports and Program Updates
A. Air Quality Management, Francisco Vega, Division Director

Program Update – Celebrating the Completion of Reno4, Divisional Update, Program
Reports, Monitoring and Planning, Permitting and Enforcement

Mr. Vega noted that he did not have anything to add to his report but wanted to bring
focus to a lawn mower exchange that is being developed and will be brought to the
Board on next month’s meeting

B. Community and Clinical Health Services, Lisa Lottritz, Division Director
Divisional Update – WIC Program Update; Data & Metrics; Sexual Health (HIV and
Disease Investigation), Immunizations, Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program,
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services, Chronic Disease Prevention Program,
Maternal Child and Adolescent Health and Women Infants and Children

Ms. Lottritz stated that she had nothing to add to her report, but she was ready to
answer questions.  The Board did not have questions and commended her on a concise
report.

C. Environmental Health Services, Charlene Albee, Division Director
Environmental Health Services (EHS) Division Program Updates – Consumer
Protection (Food, Food Safety, Permitted Facilities, Commercial Plans) and
Environmental Protection (Land Development, Safe Drinking Water, Vector, Waste
Management/UST), and Inspections.

Ms. Albee informed she had nothing else to add to her report but was available to
answer any questions.

D. Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, Dr. Randall Todd, Division
Director
Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, Emergency Medical Services

Dr. Todd informed the Board that his focus has been COVID-19 and his team has been
providing updated information to multiple partners such as Washoe County School District,
Infection Control Providers, hospitalist, Inter-Hospital Coordinating Counsel, State Public
Health laboratory, and CDC to mention a few.

Dr. Todd also informed the Board about a Frequently Asked Questions infographic that
was put together. The Health District has been coordinating with the District Attorney’s
office and medical providers on the implementation of isolation and quarantine processes,
should the need arise.

Dr. Todd informed they had the first Nevada case of candida auris reported, which is still
under investigation.

Dr. Todd stated he had nothing to else to add, but made himself available to entertain
questions.

Commissioner Berkbigler took time to commend Dr. Todd and his team, for all the work
they have done with the community.



February 27, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 10 

Chair Novak asked if the CDC has approved the Health District to perform their own 
tests.   

Dr. Todd explained that the tests can be performed, however, a test cannot be performed 
without CDC approval.  Mr. Dick added that CDC has restricted criteria before a person can 
be tested and he is hopeful that this criteria will change soon and the Health District is 
provided with flexibility from CDC.   

Commissioner Berkbigler stated that a concern in the community currently is whether 
there will be enough test kits. 

E. Office of the District Health Officer, Kevin Dick, District Health Officer
District Health Officer Report – COVID-19, Homelessness, Government Affairs

Update, Community Health Improvement Plan, Quality Improvement, Workforce
Development, Other Events and Activities, and Health District Media Contacts

Mr. Dick spoke about a special meeting the City of Reno had on February 10, 2020
regarding a review of the Reno Fire Department by the Center for Public of Safety
Management and had several recommendations on improvements.  The focus of the
meeting was on one recommendation mainly regarding Dispatch and Emergency
Medical Dispatch (EMD), the proposal was made that Reno should take over the EMD.

Mr. Dick informed that REMSA emergency Medical Dispatch process as a part of
the re-negotiated franchise agreement. However, City of Reno is talking about creating
a work group, that would include council members and regional partners, to discuss their
plan and come back with a final recommendation in 4 months. Dean Dow has offered
REMSA’s availability to participate with this work group, if desired.  Chief Brown has
also expressed his desire to participate with this group on behalf of the District Board of
Health, but to date no plans have been made to meet.

Mr. Dick discussed housing and homelessness and Manager Brown’s understanding
of public health and the issues that affect health in our community.  Mr. Dick has had
conversations with Manager regarding this subject and have arranged a conference call
with Manager Brown and Enterprise Community Partners that worked on the Regional
Strategy for Housing Affordability. Mr. Dick mentioned the Health District has been
working with some of the funds they have for improving public health communication
and a housing insert will coming out on the Reno News and Review around March 6,
2020. Mr. Dick made note as to how Manager Brown has had experience with different
partners assisting with funding housing initiatives and one of those was United Health
Care.

Mr. Dick shared that one of the things that came up at the Homeless Advisory Board
was a presentation from by Mike Kazmierski from EDAWN, regarding Built for Zero
Initiative that is ran by a not for profit.  Built for Zero engages over 80 communities
nationally whose purpose is to bring the homeless population down to zero. A cohort
meeting to address this issue regionally is scheduled for April, 2020 in Washington DC
and a discussion was had for this region to participate this year.  The Health District
agreed to pay $10,000 for this region to join and work with Built for Zero.

Mr. Dick spoke about COVID-19 and how active the Department has been in putting
an Emergency Operations Plan in place since January 27, 2020.  Mr. Dick elaborated on
the efforts that have been made to address concerns regarding people that are traveling
back to the community.  He also highlighted the shifts the CDC has made in the past
week from border control and keeping Coronavirus from coming into the country to
asking for local preparedness to prevent community transmission.



February 27, 2020 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 10 of 10 

 The Health District has discussed preparedness with community partners and will be 
meeting with County Manager and key leaders of Washoe County to discuss activating 
the Regional Emergency Operation Center as a Level 1 activation.  A briefing will be 
provided for regional partners in the event that we have community transmission.   
 Mr. Dick informed about a meeting being held by the Governor’s office in Las Vegas 
on February 28, 2020.  Along with this meeting, there is plan to have a press conference 
that will allow to demonstrate to the public that we are engaged and all working together 
on this issue.  Mr. Dick stated that Chair Novak has volunteered to travel to Las Vegas 
to represent the Health District.  
 Chair Novak reported he spoke to senators directly regarding COVID-19 and they all 
understand the gravity of the situation and the need for support. 

14. *Board Comment
Chair Novak opened the Board comment period. 
As there were no Board comments, Chair Novak closed the Board comment period. 

15. *Public Comment
As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Novak closed the public comment 

period. 
16. Adjournment

Chair Novak adjourned the meeting at 2:49 p.m. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing:  Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the 
agenda,  moved to the agenda of another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a 
specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are voted 
on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent agenda. 
Special Accommodations: The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe County Health District, 
1001 E. 9th Street, Building B, Reno, NV 89512, or by calling 775.328.2415, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
Public Comment:  During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter either on or off the agenda, to include items to 
be heard on consent.  For the remainder of the agenda, public comment will only be heard during items that are not marked with an asterisk (*).  Any 
public comment for hearing items will be heard before action is taken on the item and must be about the specific item being considered by the Board.  
In order to speak during any public comment, each speaker must fill out a “Request to Speak” form and/or submit comments for the record to the 
Recording Secretary.  Public comment and presentations for individual agenda items are limited as follows: fifteen minutes each for staff and applicant 
presentations, five minutes for a speaker representing a group, and three minutes for individual speakers unless extended by questions from the Board 
or by action of the Chair. 
Response to Public Comment: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda properly posted prior 
to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law 
does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public 
comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice 
of all matters the Board of Health will consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, 
ask for Health District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.” 

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website: Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV Reno City 
Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV 
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Downtown Reno Library, 301 S. Center St., Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health State of 
Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 
How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials: Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County Health District located 
at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, Nevada.  Susy Valdespin, Secretary to the District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe County 
District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Ms. Rogers is located at the Washoe County Health District and may be 
reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at svaldespin@washoecounty.us.  Supporting materials are also available at the Washoe County 
Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020. 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:svaldespin@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
CCHS Phone: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  March 26, 2020 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Nancy Kerns Cummins, Fiscal Compliance Officer 

775-328-2419; nkcummins@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Approve a Notice of Subaward from the State of Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public & Behavioral Health effective April 1, 2020 
through March 31, 2021 in the total amount of $168,633.00 (no required match) in 
support of the Community and Clinical Health Services Division (CCHS) Ryan White 
HIV/AIDS –Part B Early Intervention Services Program and authorize the District 
Health Officer to execute the Notice of Subaward.   

SUMMARY 
The Community and Clinical Health Services Division received a Notice of Subaward from the State 
of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public & Behavioral Health on 
March 10, 2020 to support the HIV Prevention Program.  The funding period is effective April 1, 2020 
through March 31, 2021.  A copy of the Notice of Subaward is attached.   

Health District Strategic Priority supported by this item:  

1. Healthy Lives: Improve the health of our community by empowering individuals to live
healthier lives.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action this fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND/GRANT AWARD SUMMARY 
The focus of the Early Intervention Services Program is to identify high-risk individuals and 
communities of color to provide targeted HIV testing, counseling and referral services to enable clients 
to navigate the HIV system of care.  In addition, there is funding to identify people living with HIV in 
Washoe County that are out of care in order to provide linkages to care and health education.  Funding 
for this program includes personnel, local travel, operating expenses, laboratory and testing supplies and 
indirect expenses.   

FISCAL IMPACT 
The District anticipated this award and included funding in the adopted FY20 budget.  As such, there 
is no fiscal impact to the FY20 adopted budget should the Board approve the Notice of Subaward. 

AHSO_________ 
DHO__________ 

AH

DBOH AGENDA NO. 5Ci



Subject: Approve Ryan White Subaward 
Date:  March 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Washoe County Health District approve a Notice of Subaward from the 
State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public & Behavioral Health 
effective April 1, 2020 through March 31, 2021 in the total amount of $168,633.00 (no required 
match) in support of the Community and Clinical Health Services Division (CCHS) Ryan White 
HIV/AIDS –Part B Early Intervention Services Program and authorize the District Health Officer to 
execute the Notice of Subaward.   
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “move to approve a 
Notice of Subaward from the State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of 
Public & Behavioral Health effective April 1, 2020 through March 31, 2021 in the total amount of 
$168,633.00 (no required match) in support of the Community and Clinical Health Services Division 
(CCHS) Ryan White HIV/AIDS –Part B Early Intervention Services Program and authorize the 
District Health Officer to execute the Notice of Subaward.”   
 























































ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
CCHS Phone: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  March 26, 2020 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Nancy Kerns Cummins, Fiscal Compliance Officer 

775-328-2419; nkcummins@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Approve a Notice of Subaward from the State of Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public & Behavioral Health retroactive to February 1, 
2020 through August 31, 2020 in the total amount of $142,124.00 (no required match) 
in support of the Community and Clinical Health Services Division (CCHS) Chronic 
Disease Prevention Program for opioid overdose prevention; authorize the creation of 
a 1.0 FTE, fully benefitted, full-time Health Educator position as evaluated by the Job 
Evaluation Committee; and authorize the District Health Officer to execute the Notice 
of Subaward.   

SUMMARY 
The Community and Clinical Health Services Division received a Notice of Subaward from the State 
of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public & Behavioral Health on 
March 6, 2020 to support the Chronic Disease Prevention Program.  The funding period is retroactive 
to February 1, 2020 through August 31, 2020.  A copy of the Notice of Subaward is attached.   

Health District Strategic Prioritiy supported by this item:  

1. Healthy Lives: Improve the health of our community by empowering individuals to live
healthier lives.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action this fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND/GRANT AWARD SUMMARY 
The State of Nevada recently received Opioid Overdose Data to Action funding from the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention in support of prevention activities related to the opioid overdose 
epidemic. States and local partners need access to complete and timely data to understand the scope of 
the epidemic in their community. Funding will support implementation of Good Grid, a community 
platform for requesting and delivering social services, with linkages to OpenBeds, to measure and 
monitor treatment outcomes.  It will also support a communitywide education campaign and staff 
travel. 

AHSO_________ 
DHO__________ 

AH

DBOH AGENDA NO. 5Cii



Subject: Approve Opioid Overdose Prevention Subaward 
Date:  March 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

The Subaward provides funding for personnel, travel and training, operating expenses, advertising, non-
capital equipment and indirect expenses.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve this Subaward, the adopted FY20 budget will be increased by 
$129,204.00 ($12,920.00 indirect expense) in the following accounts: 
 

Account Number Description Amount of Increase 
2002- IO-11685 – 431100 Federal Grants $129,204.00 

2002- IO-11685 – 701412 Salary Adjustment $54,404.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 705360 Benefit Adjustment $21,235.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 710100 Professional Services $3,850.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 710300 Operating Supplies $2,000.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 710334 Copy Expenses $120.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 710350 Office Supplies $401.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 710360 Postage  $50.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 710502 Printing $425.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 710508 Telephone $72.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 710546 Advertising $39,500.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 711210 Travel $3,147.00 
2002- IO-11685 – 711504 Non-Capital Equipment $4,000.00 
   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Washoe County Health District approve a Notice of Subaward from the 
State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public & Behavioral Health 
retroactive to February 1, 2020 through August 31, 2020 in the total amount of $142,124.00 (no 
required match) in support of the Community and Clinical Health Services Division (CCHS) Chronic 
Disease Prevention Program for opioid overdose prevention; authorize the creation of a 1.0 FTE, fully 
benefitted, full-time Health Educator position as evaluated by the Job Evaluation Committee; and 
authorize the District Health Officer to execute the Notice of Subaward.   
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “move to approve a 
Notice of Subaward from the State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of 
Public & Behavioral Health retroactive to February 1, 2020 through August 31, 2020 in the total 
amount of $142,124.00 (no required match) in support of the Community and Clinical Health 
Services Division (CCHS) Chronic Disease Prevention Program for opioid overdose prevention; 
authorize the creation of a 1.0 FTE, fully benefitted, full-time Health Educator position as evaluated 
by the Job Evaluation Committee; and authorize the District Health Officer to execute the Notice of 
Subaward.”   
 





































AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B-171, Reno, Nevada 89512 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   OurCleanAir.com 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD _______ 
DHO ______ 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date: March 26, 2020 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Francisco Vega, AQM Division Director 
775-784-7211, fvega@washoecounty.us

SUBJECT: Acceptance of the Air Quality Management Division portion of the Truckee 
Meadows Regional Plan Annual Report for Calendar Year 2019. 

SUMMARY 

As a local government or affected entity, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 278.0286 requires that 
an annual report be submitted to the Regional Planning Commission and the Regional Planning 
Governing Board indicating how actions in the previous year have furthered or assisted in 
implementing the Regional Plan.  This report satisfies the requirement for Calendar Year 2019. 

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item: 

4. Impactful Partnerships:  Extend our impact by leveraging partnerships to make meaningful
progress on health issues.

PREVIOUS ACTION 

The DBOH has accepted the AQMD portion of the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan Annual 
Report each year since 2013 and most recently on March 28, 2019. 

BACKGROUND 

The requirements for regional plan annual reporting are drawn from NRS 278.0286.  The statute 
requires each local planning commission responsible for the preparation of a city or county 
master plan and each affected entity to prepare and submit to the Regional Planning Commission 
and the Governing Board a complete report on progress to implement the Regional Plan by April 
1 of each year. 

FV

DBOH  AGENDA NO. 5D



Subject: Regional Plan Annual Report 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 5 
 

The attached report summarizes the progress made in Calendar Year 2019 by the Washoe 
County Health District, Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) to implement the Truckee 
Meadows Regional Plan.  It also includes a section that identifies ongoing projects or policies 
scheduled for completion in early 2020.  Additionally, the report includes projects or policies 
that are planned to begin in early 2020 that further or assist in carrying out the Regional Plan. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There will be no fiscal impact from the Board accepting this report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board accept the Air Quality Management Division portion of the Truckee 
Meadows Regional Plan Annual Report for Calendar Year 2019.   
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
 
Should the Board concur with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: 
 
“Move to accept the Air Quality Management Division portion of the Truckee Meadows 
Regional Plan Annual Report for Calendar Year 2019.” 
 



 

 

2019 Regional Plan Annual Report 
Washoe County Health District - Air Quality Management Division 

(Reporting Period: January - December 2019) 
 
The Clean Air Act requires the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to establish and 
review the health-based National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for six pollutants 
(ozone, particulate matter, carbon monoxide, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, and lead).  The 
goal of the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) is to 
develop and implement programs to meet these NAAQS.  As of February 2020, all areas of 
Washoe County meet all NAAQS for all pollutants and averaging times.   
 
Ozone is our local air pollutant that is closest to violating the NAAQS.  The standard is 0.070 
ppm and preliminary monitoring data for 2019 shows that we are at 0.070 ppm.  EPA is 
evaluating several additional days in 2017 and 2018 that could be eligible for Exceptional Events 
and lower the 2017-2019 design value calculation. 
 
AQMD’s efforts in 2019 were focused on implementing Ozone Advance, which is a 
collaborative effort to encourage voluntary initiatives that improve air quality.  Ozone Advance’s 
five primary goals are to: 

1. Reduce ozone precursor emissions from on-road motor vehicles 
2. Reduce ozone precursor emissions from non-road motor vehicles and equipment 
3. Reduce impacts from heat island effects that contribute to ozone formation 
4. Increase efficiency of buildings 
5. Educate and empower local jurisdictions to make good long-term decisions that improve 

air quality 
 
A successful Ozone Advance program requires a variety of policies that directly and indirectly 
reduce our region’s dependency on the automobile. 
 

Topic A: Population Growth (PG) 
 

PG 3 - Use of the Consensus Forecast for Planning: The Clean Air Act requires that the AQMD 
and Metropolitan Plan Organization (MPO) use consistent planning assumptions, such as 
population and employment, when developing State Implementation Plans.  These assumptions 
are used to develop the Transportation Conformity Motor Vehicle Emissions Budgets in the 
Regional Transportation Plan. 
 

Topic B: Regional Form (RF) 
 
RF 2 - Priority Hierarchy for Development in the Region: The AQMD encourages a more 
compact land use pattern and form to reduce Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT).  
 
  



 

 

Topic C: Public Facilities and Services (PF) 
 

PF 10 - Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Requirements: The RTP must conform to air quality 
State Implementation Plans to ensure attainment of federal air quality standards.  A 
transportation conformity analysis is conducted for the RTP, the Regional Transportation 
Improvement Plan, and any substantive amendment.  The analysis is conducted through regularly 
scheduled inter-agency consultation meetings that include the AQMD, Regional Transportation 
Commission, Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency, Nevada Department of 
Transportation, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection, Federal Highway Administration, 
and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.   
 

Topic D: Natural Resources (NR) 
 
NR 1 - Natural Resources Plan: The Health District’s Ozone Advance program encourages 
educating and empowering partners, such as TMRPA, to make good long-term decisions to 
protect air resources. 
 
NR 2 - Resilient Region: AQMD staff was an active member of the steering committee for the 
City of Reno’s Sustainability and Climate Action Plan. 
 
NR 9 - Parks and Open Space Connectivity: The Health District’s Ozone Advance program 
encourages connected parks and open spaces as an active transportation network to reduce VMT. 
 
NR 10 - Urban Heat Island: The Health District’s Ozone Advance program encourages all the 
strategies in NR 10.   
 
NR 11 - Air Quality: Air monitoring data determines compliance with federal air quality 
standards.  Every land use decision can positively or negatively impact air quality levels.  The 
AQMD has encouraged local jurisdictions to incorporate voluntary Ozone Advance strategies in 
these land use decisions.   
 
NR 14 - Sustainable Development: The Health District’s Ozone Advance program supports and 
encourages incentives for sustainable development.  
 

Topic E: Regional Coordination (RC) 
 
Air quality is a regional issue.  The AQMD encourages solutions that are implemented across the 
local jurisdictions.  This is done through agency review and comment on development proposals, 
presentations to boards and commissions, and preparation of annual reports.  While the bottom 
line for Ozone Advance is to meet the federal air quality standard, solutions also have co-benefits 
for the environment, public health, and the economy. 
 

Topic F: Implementing the Regional Plan in 2020 
 
The Clean Air Act has statutory timelines for “Non-Attainment” areas to improve air quality and 
meet the federal standards.  Long-term “Non-Attainment” not only means an increase in chronic 



 

 

disease rates, our area could be at an economic disadvantage compared to neighboring counties 
for businesses seeking to expand or relocate to Washoe County. 
 
In 2020, the AQMD will be implementing a lawn mower exchange program.  The goal is to 
replace gasoline powered lawn mowers with new, battery powered mowers.  Gasoline lawn 
mowers contribute to higher ozone levels in three ways: 1) Lawn mower exhaust contains 
nitrogen oxides (NOx) and volatile organic compounds (VOC) which are ozone precursors, 2) 
refueling causes VOC emissions, and 3) lawn mower usage peaks during the summer months 
when we typically experience our highest ozone levels. 
 



 

 

2019 Regional Plan Annual Report 
Washoe County Health District - Air Quality Management Division 

(Reporting Period: January - December 2019) 
 
The Clean Air Act requires the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to establish and 
review the health-based National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for six pollutants 
(ozone, particulate matter, carbon monoxide, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, and lead).  The 
goal of the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) is to 
develop and implement programs to meet these NAAQS.  As of February 2020, all areas of 
Washoe County meet all NAAQS for all pollutants and averaging times.   
 
Ozone is our local air pollutant that is closest to violating the NAAQS.  The standard is 0.070 
ppm and preliminary monitoring data for 2019 shows that we are at 0.070 ppm.  EPA is 
evaluating several additional days in 2017 and 2018 that could be eligible for Exceptional Events 
and lower the 2017-2019 design value calculation. 
 
AQMD’s efforts in 2019 were focused on implementing Ozone Advance, which is a 
collaborative effort to encourage voluntary initiatives that improve air quality.  Ozone Advance’s 
five primary goals are to: 

1. Reduce ozone precursor emissions from on-road motor vehicles 
2. Reduce ozone precursor emissions from non-road motor vehicles and equipment 
3. Reduce impacts from heat island effects that contribute to ozone formation 
4. Increase efficiency of buildings 
5. Educate and empower local jurisdictions to make good long-term decisions that improve 

air quality 
 
A successful Ozone Advance program requires a variety of policies that directly and indirectly 
reduce our region’s dependency on the automobile. 
 

Topic A: Population Growth (PG) 
 

PG 3 - Use of the Consensus Forecast for Planning: The Clean Air Act requires that the AQMD 
and Metropolitan Plan Organization (MPO) use consistent planning assumptions, such as 
population and employment, when developing State Implementation Plans.  These assumptions 
are used to develop the Transportation Conformity Motor Vehicle Emissions Budgets in the 
Regional Transportation Plan. 
 

Topic B: Regional Form (RF) 
 
RF 2 - Priority Hierarchy for Development in the Region: The AQMD encourages a more 
compact land use pattern and form to reduce Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT).  
 
  



 

 

Topic C: Public Facilities and Services (PF) 
 

PF 10 - Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Requirements: The RTP must conform to air quality 
State Implementation Plans to ensure attainment of federal air quality standards.  A 
transportation conformity analysis is conducted for the RTP, the Regional Transportation 
Improvement Plan, and any substantive amendment.  The analysis is conducted through regularly 
scheduled inter-agency consultation meetings that include the AQMD, Regional Transportation 
Commission, Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency, Nevada Department of 
Transportation, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection, Federal Highway Administration, 
and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.   
 

Topic D: Natural Resources (NR) 
 
NR 1 - Natural Resources Plan: The Health District’s Ozone Advance program encourages 
educating and empowering partners, such as TMRPA, to make good long-term decisions to 
protect air resources. 
 
NR 2 - Resilient Region: AQMD staff was an active member of the steering committee for the 
City of Reno’s Sustainability and Climate Action Plan. 
 
NR 9 - Parks and Open Space Connectivity: The Health District’s Ozone Advance program 
encourages connected parks and open spaces as an active transportation network to reduce VMT. 
 
NR 10 - Urban Heat Island: The Health District’s Ozone Advance program encourages all the 
strategies in NR 10.   
 
NR 11 - Air Quality: Air monitoring data determines compliance with federal air quality 
standards.  Every land use decision can positively or negatively impact air quality levels.  The 
AQMD has encouraged local jurisdictions to incorporate voluntary Ozone Advance strategies in 
these land use decisions.   
 
NR 14 - Sustainable Development: The Health District’s Ozone Advance program supports and 
encourages incentives for sustainable development.  
 

Topic E: Regional Coordination (RC) 
 
Air quality is a regional issue.  The AQMD encourages solutions that are implemented across the 
local jurisdictions.  This is done through agency review and comment on development proposals, 
presentations to boards and commissions, and preparation of annual reports.  While the bottom 
line for Ozone Advance is to meet the federal air quality standard, solutions also have co-benefits 
for the environment, public health, and the economy. 
 

Topic F: Implementing the Regional Plan in 2020 
 
The Clean Air Act has statutory timelines for “Non-Attainment” areas to improve air quality and 
meet the federal standards.  Long-term “Non-Attainment” not only means an increase in chronic 



 

 

disease rates, our area could be at an economic disadvantage compared to neighboring counties 
for businesses seeking to expand or relocate to Washoe County. 
 
In 2020, the AQMD will be implementing a lawn mower exchange program.  The goal is to 
replace gasoline powered lawn mowers with new, battery powered mowers.  Gasoline lawn 
mowers contribute to higher ozone levels in three ways: 1) Lawn mower exhaust contains 
nitrogen oxides (NOx) and volatile organic compounds (VOC) which are ozone precursors, 2) 
refueling causes VOC emissions, and 3) lawn mower usage peaks during the summer months 
when we typically experience our highest ozone levels. 
 



 

 

 
2018 Regional Plan Annual Report 

Washoe County Health District - Air Quality Management Division 
(Reporting Period: January - December 2018) 

 
The Clean Air Act requires the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to establish and 
review the health-based National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for six pollutants 
(ozone, particulate matter, carbon monoxide, nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, and lead).  The 
goal of the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) is to 
develop and implement programs to meet these NAAQS.  As of February 2019, all areas of 
Washoe County meet all NAAQS for all pollutants and averaging times with the exception of 
ozone.   
 
Ozone is our local air pollutant that is closest to violating the NAAQS.  The standard is 0.070 
ppm and preliminary monitoring data for 2018 shows that we are at 0.071 ppm.  (Note: This 
excludes six days in 2015 and 2016 that EPA agrees were influenced by wildfire smoke.)  EPA is 
evaluating several additional days in 2017 that could be eligible for Exceptional Events and 
lower the 2016-2018 design value calculation. 
 
AQMD’s efforts in 2018 were focused on implementing Ozone Advance, which is a 
collaborative effort to encourage voluntary initiatives that improve air quality.  Ozone Advance’s 
five primary goals are to: 

1. Reduce ozone precursor emissions from on-road motor vehicles 
2. Reduce ozone precursor emissions from non-road motor vehicles and equipment 
3. Reduce impacts from heat island effects that contribute to ozone formation 
4. Increase efficiency of buildings 
5. Educate and empower local jurisdictions to make good long-term decisions that improve 

air quality 
 
Incorporating Ozone Advance goals in the Regional Plan Update will further support these plans, 
policies, and priorities.   
 

A: Regional Form and Patterns 
B: Natural Resource Management 
C: Public Services and Facilities 

 
The built environment determines transportation choices in our area.  On-road motor vehicles 
such as cars and trucks are the largest category of ozone precursors.  Managing vehicle trips and 
vehicle miles traveled (VMT) will have the greatest impact on ozone concentrations.  The 
AQMD has continued to collaborate with stakeholders that influence the Truckee Meadows’ 
regional form and pattern.  These stakeholders include community development departments, 
planning commissions, governing boards, and other organizations.  The primary goals of 
AQMD’s collaboration with stakeholders are to: 1) Emphasize the connection between the built 
environment, transportation, and air quality; and 2) ensure “ . . . public health impacts related to 
land use decisions” (Policy 1.2.21) are included in the planning process. 
 



 

 

AQMD has collaborated with local jurisdictions to incorporate Ozone Advance goals into their 
master, comprehensive, and long-range plans.  Implementation relied on the collective impact of 
including Ozone Advance’s five goals into other plans, policies, and priorities.  The City of Reno 
Planning Commission has included air quality as one of its top priorities since 2016.  
 
The Ozone Advance program encourages increasing transportation choices to reduce our 
community’s dependence on the automobile.  Strategically expanding the open space and 
greenway network provides active transportation options such as walking and biking.  Strategies 
that address stormwater management (i.e., managing impervious surfaces) and food desert (i.e., 
edible landscaping) issues also support Ozone Advance’s goal to reduce urban heat island 
impacts.   
 
While the bottom line for Ozone Advance is to meet the federal air quality standard, solutions 
have co-benefits for the environment, public health, and the economy. 
 

Topic D: General Review of 2012 Truckee Meadows Regional Plan 
 
Historically, portions of Washoe County have not met federal air quality standards for ozone (1-
hour), carbon monoxide (8-hour), and particulates (24-hour).  Local control strategies 
implemented in the 1980’s such as the smog check and woodstove programs helped improve air 
quality and we currently meet all air quality standards.   
 
Since motor vehicles are the largest category of air pollutants in our area, the Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP) includes motor vehicle emission budgets (MVEB) for carbon 
monoxide and particulates.  These budgets were approved by EPA and ensure that transportation 
related emissions do not contribute to another “non-attainment” designation.  Transportation 
conformity must be demonstrated before the Federal Highway Administration can approve the 
RTP. 
 
Budgets for ozone (1-hour) were not developed because the 1-hour standard was rescinded when 
the 8-hour standard was promulgated in 1997.  If our area violates the 2015 ozone standard and 
designated as “non-attainment”, then a MVEB for ozone will be developed.  The MVEB will 
likely force a reduction of VMT in the RTP. 
 
The next Regional Plan update should acknowledge the impact of VMT and transportation 
related emissions with respect to future growth.   
 
  



 

 

Topic E: A Preview of 2019 
 
The federal standard for ozone is 0.070 ppm and the certified 2015-2017 monitoring data is 
0.070 ppm.  All areas of Washoe County are designated as “Attainment/Unclassifiable” for the 
2015 ozone standard.  Based on preliminary 2016-2018 air monitoring data, three monitors 
(Reno3, Sparks, and Lemmon Valley) have design values of 0.071 ppm and will violate the 
standard.  EPA is evaluating several additional days in 2017 that could be eligible for 
Exceptional Events and lower the 2016-2018 design value calculation. 
 
The AQMD is committed to providing input to ensure region-wide, master, and long-range plans 
support Ozone Advance goals.  The AQMD will also provide comments on land-use projects to 
incorporate specific Ozone Advance initiatives that improve air quality.  Two examples are 
recommendations to include conditions for: 1) Smart Trips (aka, Employee Trip Reduction) 
programs for all businesses, and 2) all new residential construction to be Electric Vehicle 
charging ready.  These recommendations will reduce the vehicle trips, vehicle miles traveled, 
and tailpipe emissions. 
 
The Clean Air Act has statutory timelines for “non-attainment” areas to improve air quality and 
meet the federal standards.  Long-term “non-attainment” not only means an increase in chronic 
disease rates, our area could be less attractive than neighboring counties to businesses seeking to 
expand or relocate to Washoe County.  



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Office: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date: March 26, 2020 

DATE: March 26, 2020 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 

775-328-2644; calbee@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of the 2019 Annual Report to the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning 

Agency by the Washoe County Health District as the Solid Waste Management 
Authority 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes 278.0286, the Division of Environmental Health 
Services of the Washoe County Health District, acting as the Solid Waste Management Authority for 
Washoe County has completed the 2019 Annual Report for the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning 
Agency (TMRPA). The report is due to the TMRPA by April first of each year with a reporting period 
of the preceding calendar year.  

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item: 

2. Healthy Environment: Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy everything
Washoe County has to offer.

PREVIOUS ACTION  

The 2018 Annual Report was approved on March 28, 2019. 

BACKGROUND  

The Washoe County Health District, acting as the Solid Waste Management Authority is required to 
submit various reports to different agencies related to solid waste activities within the Health District. 
The annual report submitted to the TMRPA provides an update on solid waste facilities and the 
implementation of the solid waste management plan for the community. Data used within the report is 
from 2018 as the current recycling and tonnage reports are not calculated until on or after April 1 for the 
previous year.  

DD___________ 

DHO _________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5E

CA

mailto:calbee@washoecounty.us


Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: Acceptance of the 2019 Annual Report to the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency 
Page: 2 of 2 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY19 budget should the Board approve this annual report.  
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Environmental Health Services Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health 
(Board) accept the 2019 Annual Report to the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency by the 
Washoe County Health District as the Solid Waste Management Authority.  
 
POSSIBLE MOTION  
 
Should the Board agree with staff recommendations, a possible motion would be “Move to accept the 
2019 Annual Report to the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency by the Washoe County Health 
District as the Solid Waste Management Authority.” 



2019 ANNUAL REPORT TO 
THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

(Reporting Period:  January – December 2018) 
 
By the Washoe County Health District (WCHD) as the Solid Waste Management Authority 
 

C. Public Services and Facilities 
3. Solid Waste Management (Appendix I, 2012 Regional Plan Version 13) 

 
Solid waste collected in Washoe County is disposed primarily in the Lockwood Regional Landfill 
with a small amount of waste going to the Russel Pass and Carson City Landfills.  The cities 
and the unincorporated areas have franchise agreements to provide for solid waste collection, 
transportation, disposal and recycling services.  The franchised waste hauler pays franchise 
fees to the cities of Reno and Sparks, Washoe County and the Incline General Improvement 
District. 
 
At the present rate of waste generation, the existing transfer stations are adequate.  WCHD has 
been in discussions with Waste Management about the need for additional transfer stations and 
Waste Management is in the planning and design phase for a new transfer station in South 
Reno.  The Stead Transfer Station continues to have capacity for the ongoing growth in the 
northern valleys. 
 
The data below continues to demonstrate the growth in the region’s economy.  With the ongoing 
growth and limited recycling markets in the community the overall Washoe County recycling rate 
has decreased year over year.  The recycling rate has seen and ongoing decrease since 2016.   
 
 
2018 Dataset Inventory: 
 
The amount of domestic solid waste disposed at the landfill:  MSW = 787,224.00 T 
 
The amount of industrial and special waste generated:  I & P = 580,575.00 T 
 
The total amount of MSW generated in the county:  990,906.99 T 
 
The total waste generated in the county: 2,079,884.37 T 
(Note:  Total waste generated is the sum of the recycled MSW and C & D, plus the 
quantity of MSW which was reported as generated in the county plus the I & P and 
special wastes disposed of in the county.) 

 
The amount of recycled material diverted from disposal at the landfill:  Recycled MSW = 
203,682.99 T 
 
The amount of construction and demolition debris diverted from disposal at the landfill:  
Recycled C & D = 304,719.39 T 
 
The total recycled material collected:  Recycled MSW + C&D =  508,402.38T 
 
MSW recycling rate = 21%   MSW + C & D recycling rate = 27% 
 
 



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Office: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 
DDA    

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  March 26, 2020 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Charlene Albee, EHS Division Director  

775-328-2644 , calbee@washoecounty.us 
THROUGH: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

 775-328-2615, kdick@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board for 

the Approval of Variance Case No. 2-20FP Levy Premium Food Service 
Application for Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, 
applicable requirements), 060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and 
classification) and 070.020 (Plumbing system) of the regulations of the Washoe 
County District Board of Health Governing Food Establishments. 

SUMMARY 

The District Board of Health has the authority to affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection 
Hearing and Advisory Board (FPHAB) to the Approval of Variance Case No. 2-20FP Levy Premium 
Food Service Application for Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, applicable 
requirements), 060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 (Plumbing 
system) of the regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food 
Establishments. 

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item:  
2. Healthy Environment:  Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy

everything Washoe County has to offer.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
On February 25, 2020 the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board held a Public Hearing to 
consider Staff’s Recommendation for Approval of Variance Case No. 2-20FP Levy Premium Food 
Service Application for Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, applicable 
requirements), 060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 (Plumbing 
system) of the regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food 
Establishments.   

CA

DBOH AGENDA NO. 5F

mailto:calbee@washoecounty.us
mailto:kdick@washoecounty.us


Subject:  DBOH consideration of FSHAB recommendation on Levy Premium Food Service 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

BACKGROUND 
On July 17, 2019, July 24, 2019, August 3, 2019 and August 24, 2019 Washoe County Health 
District (WCHD) staff conducted routine inspections of various Levy Premium Food Service food 
establishments located inside Greater Nevada Field at 250 Evans Ave in Reno.  Many of these 
food establishments had been previously classified as Portable Units for the Service of Food. Due 
to the business demands of the facility, additional equipment was frequently utilized in order to 
supply the units.  
 
Therefore, it was noted during the inspections of specific units that they no longer met the 
definition of a Portable Unit because the food operations were not contained to a single unit. It was 
noted that the food establishments more closely met the definition of an Outdoor Food 
Establishment and required a written Operational Plan to be submitted to WCHD. It was also noted 
during the inspections that the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health 
Governing Food Establishments were in the process of being revised and the proposed changes 
included disallowing portable hand sinks to be utilized at Outdoor Food Establishments. The 
proposed changes would also require all equipment to be ANSI certified and all plumbing systems 
to have individual sewage disposal system piping. With respect to Levy Premium Food Service, 
this meant that all Outdoor Food Establishments would be required to have a plumbed hand sink, 
rather than a portable unit with fresh and gray water tanks. Since these food establishments did not 
have a plumbed hand sink it was noted that the operators would be required to either install 
plumbed hand sinks or request a variance from the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board 
if the revisions to the regulations were approved.  
 
The proposed changes to the Regulations were approved and became effective September 13, 
2019. Therefore, Levy Premium Food Service operators have submitted a variance request to allow 
a portable hand sink. Additionally, Levy Premium Food Service operators have prepared and 
submitted an Operational Plan for their Outdoor Food Establishment and the plan has been 
conditionally approved by WCHD. The Operational Plan includes procedures for the maintenance 
of the proposed portable handwashing sink 
 
Pursuant to Section 240.085 of the regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health 
Governing Food Establishments, the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board shall hold 
hearings to consider variance requests to any section of the regulations. 
Section 240.110 Hearings, variances; conditions for approval, documentation, and justification 

A. After considering the recommendations of the Food Protection Hearing and 
Advisory Board, the District Board of Health may grant a variance to these 
regulations if it is determined that: 
1. Strict application of the regulation would result in exceptional and undue 

hardship to the person requesting the variance; and 
2. The variance, if granted, would not: 

a) Cause substantial detriment to the public health; or 



Subject:  DBOH consideration of FSHAB recommendation on Levy Premium Food Service 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

b) Substantially impair the purpose of that regulation 
 
Section 200.005 Outdoor food establishments must comply with all applicable requirements 
of these regulations. When facilities or equipment are inadequate to protect the public health, the 
Health Authority may impose operational and/or menu restrictions on an outdoor food 
establishment to protect against potential health hazards. 
Section 060.205(A) Except as provided in Subsections B and C of this section, food equipment 
that is certified or classified for sanitation by an American National Standards Institute (ANSI) 
accredited certification program is deemed to comply with these regulations. 
Section 070.020 Except as otherwise provided in these regulations, all plumbing systems 
including individual sewage disposal system piping, must be sized, constructed, installed, located 
and maintained according to the requirements in the most recent edition of the Uniform Plumbing 
Code or pursuant to the authority having jurisdiction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT   
There are no fiscal impacts to the Health District resulting from the Board deciding to ratify the 
recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board. 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and 
Advisory Board (FPHAB) to the Approval of Variance Case No. 2-20FP Levy Premium Food 
Service Application for Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, applicable 
requirements), 060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 (Plumbing 
system) of the regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food 
Establishments. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with Staff’s recommendation, the motion would be: 
“Move to affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board (FPHAB) 
to the Approval of Variance Case No. 2-20FP Levy Premium Food Service Application for Variance 
to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, applicable requirements), 060.205(A) (Food 
equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 (Plumbing system) of the regulations of the 
Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food Establishments. 

 
 
  

 



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Office: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 
DDA    

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  March 26, 2020 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Charlene Albee, EHS Division Director  

775-328-2644 , calbee@washoecounty.us 
THROUGH: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

 775-328-2615, kdick@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board for 

the Approval of Variance Case No. 1-20FP Rocky Mountain Chocolate Factory 
Application for Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, applicable 
requirements), 060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 
070.020 (Plumbing system) of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of 
Health Governing Food Establishments. 

SUMMARY 

The District Board of Health has the authority  to affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection 
Hearing and Advisory Board (FPHAB) to the Approval of Variance Case No. 1-20FP Rocky Mountain 
Chocolate Factory Application for Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, 
applicable requirements), 060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 
(Plumbing system) of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food 
Establishments. 

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item:  
2. Healthy Environment:  Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy

everything Washoe County has to offer.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
On February 25, 2020 The Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board held a Public Hearing to 
consider Staff’s Recommendation for Approval of Variance Case No. 1-20FP Rocky Mountain 
Chocolate Factory Application for Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, 

DBOH AGENDA NO. 5G

mailto:calbee@washoecounty.us
mailto:kdick@washoecounty.us


Subject:  DBOH consideration of FSHAB recommendation on Rocky Mountain Chocolate Factory Variance. 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

applicable requirements), 060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 
(Plumbing system) of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food 
Establishments.  Case #1-20FP 
 
BACKGROUND  
On May 13, 2019 Washoe County Health District (WCHD) staff met with Rocky Mountain 
Chocolate Factory owner Greg Zrinyi at his store located at 5100 Mae Anne Ave in Reno to explain 
proposed changes to the Regulations Governing Food Establishments. The proposed changes 
included disallowing portable hand sinks to be utilized at Outdoor Food Establishments. The 
proposed changes would also require all equipment to be ANSI certified and all plumbing systems 
to have individual sewage disposal system piping. WCHD staff presented the possibility of Rocky 
Mountain Chocolate Factory relocating within Greater Nevada Field to Mr. Zrinyi at that time and 
suggested he work with Levy Premium Food Services staff to explore that option.  
 
On October 10, 2019, WCHD staff conducted a routine inspection of the Rocky Mountain 
Chocolate Factory food establishment located inside Greater Nevada Field at 250 Evans Ave in 
Reno.  It was noted during the inspection that the food establishment met the definition of an 
Outdoor Food Establishment and required a written Operational Plan to be submitted to the 
WCHD. It was also noted during that inspection that the Regulations of the Washoe County 
District Board of Health Governing Food Establishments require all Outdoor Food Establishments 
to have a plumbed hand sink, rather than a portable unit with fresh and gray water tanks. Since this 
outlet does not have a plumbed hand sink, it was noted that the operators will be required to request 
a variance from the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board or relocate to an area within 
Greater Nevada Field where adequate plumbing is available.  
 
Rocky Mountain Chocolate Factory owners, Greg and Brita Zrinyi have indicated to WCHD that 
due to the length of time their food establishment has been located on the walkway in front of 
Concession Stand #4 at Greater Nevada Field they preferred to not relocate and pursue the 
variance. They have prepared and submitted an Operational Plan for their Outdoor Food 
Establishment and the plan has been conditionally approved by WCHD. The Operational Plan 
includes procedures for the maintenance of the proposed portable handwashing sink. 
 
Pursuant to Section 240.085 of the regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health 
Governing Food Establishments, the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board shall hold 
hearings to consider variance requests to any section of the regulations. 
Section 240.110 Hearings, variances; conditions for approval, documentation, and justification 

A. After considering the recommendations of the Food Protection Hearing and 
Advisory Board, the District Board of Health may grant a variance to these 
regulations if it is determined that: 
1. Strict application of the regulation would result in exceptional and undue 

hardship to the person requesting the variance; and 
2. The variance, if granted, would not: 



Subject:  DBOH consideration of FSHAB recommendation on Rocky Mountain Chocolate Factory Variance. 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

a) Cause substantial detriment to the public health; or 
b) Substantially impair the purpose of that regulation 

 
Section 200.005 Outdoor food establishments must comply with all applicable requirements 
of these regulations. When facilities or equipment are inadequate to protect the public health, the 
Health Authority may impose operational and/or menu restrictions on an outdoor food 
establishment to protect against potential health hazards. 
Section 060.205(A) Except as provided in Subsections B and C of this section, food equipment 
that is certified or classified for sanitation by an American National Standards Institute (ANSI) 
accredited certification program is deemed to comply with these regulations. 
Section 070.020 Except as otherwise provided in these regulations, all plumbing systems 
including individual sewage disposal system piping, must be sized, constructed, installed, located 
and maintained according to the requirements in the most recent edition of the Uniform Plumbing 
Code or pursuant to the authority having jurisdiction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT   
There are no fiscal impacts to the Health District resulting from the Board deciding to ratify the 
recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory 
Board (FPHAB) to the Approval of Variance Case No. 1-20FP Rocky Mountain Chocolate Factory 
Application for Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, applicable requirements), 
060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 (Plumbing system) of the 
Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food Establishments. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with Staff’s recommendation, the motion would be: 

“Move to affirm the recommendation by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board 
(FPHAB) to  the Approval of Variance Case No. 1-20FP Rocky Mountain Chocolate Factory 
Application for Variance to Sections 200.005 (Outdoor food establishment, applicable 
requirements), 060.205(A) (Food equipment, certification and classification) and 070.020 
(Plumbing system) of the Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health 
Governing Food Establishments. 

 
 



ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   Reno, Nevada 89512 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD__NA_______ 
DHO__________ 
DA__NA_______ 
Risk_NA_______ 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date: March 26, 2020 

TO: District Board of Health  
FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 

328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us
SUBJECT: Acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund Financial Review for February, Fiscal Year 

2020 

SUMMARY 
The eighth month of fiscal year 2020, (FY20) ended with a cash balance of $7,669,601.  Total revenues 
of $14,744,572 were 61.3% of budget and an increase of $43,633 over FY19.  The expenditures totaled 
$15,019,649 or 59.1% of budget and up $596,143 compared to FY19. 

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item:  
6. Financial Stability:  Enable the Health District to make long-term commitments in areas that will

positively impact the community’s health by growing reliable sources of income.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Fiscal Year 2020 Budget was adopted May 21, 2019. 

BACKGROUND 
Review of Cash 
The available cash at the end of February, 
FY20, was $7,669,601 which is enough to 
cover approximately 3.6 months of 
expenditures. The encumbrances and other 
liability portion of the cash balance totals $1.5 
million; the cash restricted as to use is 
approximately $1.7 million (e.g. DMV pollution
control revenue, Solid Waste Management Tire revenue, 
Accela Regional Permitting Technology Fees and the 
Hazardous Materials 1995 litigation revenue); leaving a 
balance of approximately $4.5 million.  

$14,744,572
$15,019,649

$20,469,870

$22,370,420
$24,061,302

$24,063,371
$24,067,457

$19,770,532
$21,157,367

$21,905,797 $22,558,237

$25,413,854

$0
$2,000,000
$4,000,000
$6,000,000
$8,000,000
$10,000,000
$12,000,000
$14,000,000
$16,000,000

$17,000,000

$19,000,000

$21,000,000

$23,000,000

$25,000,000

 Actual FY16  Actual FY17  Actual FY18  Actual FY19  Budget FY20  Year to Date
FY20

Revenues and Expenditures

 Revenues  Expenditures

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

Beg Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Trend of Available Cash at Month End

 FY16  FY17  FY18  FY19  FY20

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5H

mailto:aheenan@washoecounty.us


Date: DBOH meeting March 26, 2020 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2020, February Financial Review 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Review of Revenues (including transfers from General Fund) and Expenditures by category 

  
 

 

 
 
 
The total revenues year to date were 
$14,744,572 up $43,633 or 0.3% compared 
to February FY19.  The revenue categories 
up over FY19 were: licenses and permits of 
$2,212,797 up $59,624; and charges for 
services of $2,355,909 up $128,799. The 
revenue categories down compared to FY19 
were: tire and pollution control funding of 
$825,639 down $3,114; Federal and State 
grants of $2,916,440 down $87,113; and, 
miscellaneous revenues of $89,216 down 
$54,564. The County General Fund support 
of $6,344,571 is level at the FY19 funding. 

 
 
 
The total year to date expenditures of 
$15,019,649 increased by $596,143 or 4.1% 
compared to FY19. Salaries and benefits 
expenditures for the fiscal year were 
$11,934,983 up $302,740 or 2.6% over the 
prior year and 62.8% of budget.  The total 
services and supplies of $3,025,081 up 
$237,132 or 8.5% compared to FY19 and 
48.6% of budget. The major expenditures 
included in the services and supplies were; 
the professional services, which totaled 
$392,309 up $55,047 over FY19; chemical 
supplies of $294,450 up $63,398; the 
biologicals of $191,910, were down $32,119; 
and, County overhead charges of $933,861 
were up $121,808. There has been $59,585 in 
capital expenditures up $56,270 compared to 
FY19. 

  
 

 

 $-
 $1,000,000
 $2,000,000
 $3,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $5,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $7,000,000
 $8,000,000
 $9,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $11,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $13,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $15,000,000

Revenues
FY20 February Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000
 $22,000,000
 $24,000,000
 $26,000,000

 FY 16
Actual

 FY 17
Actual

 FY 18
Actual

 FY 19
Actual

 FY20
Budget

 FY20
February
Year to

Date

Revenues 
(including General Fund support)

GF Operating Support Grants Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits Tires & Pollution Control Miscellaneous

 $-
 $1,000,000
 $2,000,000
 $3,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $5,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $7,000,000
 $8,000,000
 $9,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $11,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $13,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $15,000,000
 $16,000,000

Expenditures
FY20 February Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000
 $22,000,000
 $24,000,000
 $26,000,000

 FY 16
Actual

 FY 17
Actual

 FY 18
Actual

 FY 19
Actual

 FY20
Budget

 FY20
February
Year to

Date

Expenditures

Salaries & Wages Benefits County Overhead
Misc. Services & Supplies Professional/Other Agencies Chemical Supplies
Advertising Work Force Development Biologicals
Capital



Date: DBOH meeting March 26, 2020 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2020, February Financial Review 
Page 3 of 4 
 
Review of Revenues and Expenditures by Division 
ODHO has spent $807,188 up $18,432 or 2.3% over FY19 and includes funding for public service 
announcements for suicide awareness and funding for workforce development in leadership training. 
 

AHS has spent $810,287 up $81,292 or 11.2% compared to FY19 mainly due to County overhead charges, 
safety expenditures and increased utilities costs for the District. 
 

AQM revenues were $2,219,353 up $104,217 or 4.9% mainly due to and increase in air pollution permits. 
The Division spent $1,991,141 up $56,333 or 2.9% over FY19 mainly due to the cost of the new Reno4 
Monitoring Station. 
 

CCHS revenues were $2,285,219 up $13,415 or 0.6% over FY19 mainly due to a decline in federal and 
state grants over FY19.  The division spent $5,269,779 or $280,973 or 5.6% more than FY19 mainly due 
to an increase in employee retirement payouts for accrued benefits; an increase in part-time and on-call 
staff; and, funding to support a youth prevention campaign that focuses on education and prevention of 
use of e-cigarettes. 
 

EHS revenues were $2,804,658 down $57,237 or 2.0% over FY19. The decline is due to a one-time 
payment from closing a bank account that was previously set up for hazardous mitigation issues; excluding 
the one-time funding in FY19 the revenues are up $51,189 or 1.9%. EHS spent $4,386,816 an increase of 
$108,021 over last year mainly due to temporary staff for a digital scanning project for historical records 
and chemical supplies for the Vector program. 
 

EPHP revenues were $1,090,771 down $16,762 or 1.5%.  The division spent $1,754,439 up $51,093 over 
FY19 due to increased expenditures for the Public Health Preparedness program for supplies and 
temporary help for a statewide preparedness exercise. 
 

  

2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018
 Actual Year 

End 
 February           

Year to Date 
 Adjusted 

Budget 
 February           

Year to Date 
 Percent of 

Budget 
 FY20 Increase 

over FY19 
Revenues (all sources of funds)

ODHO 15,000         51,228         3,365           -              -              -              -               - -
AHS -              -              -              -              -              -              -               - -
AQM 2,520,452     2,979,720     3,543,340     3,443,270     2,115,136    3,581,031     2,219,353     62.0% 4.9%
CCHS 3,506,968     3,872,898     4,179,750     4,104,874     2,271,804    4,390,137     2,285,219     52.1% 0.6%
EHS 2,209,259     3,436,951     4,428,294     4,871,791     2,861,895    4,379,323     2,804,658     64.0% -2.0%
EPHP 2,141,334     2,027,242     1,854,862     2,126,580     1,107,533    2,200,110     1,090,771     49.6% -1.5%
GF support 10,076,856   10,002,381   10,051,691   9,516,856     6,344,571    9,516,856     6,344,571     66.7% 0.0%
Total Revenues 20,469,870$ 22,370,420$ 24,061,302$ 24,063,371$ 14,700,939$ 24,067,457$ 14,744,572$ 61.3% 0.3%
Expenditures (all uses of funds)

ODHO 594,672       904,268       826,325       1,336,494     788,756       1,570,329     807,188       51.4% 2.3%
AHS 996,021       1,119,366     1,016,660     1,059,669     728,995       1,312,474     810,287       61.7% 11.2%
AQM 2,670,636     2,856,957     2,936,261     2,935,843     1,934,808    3,842,317     1,991,141     51.8% 2.9%
CCHS 6,880,583     7,294,144     7,538,728     7,700,440     4,988,806    8,449,993     5,269,779     62.4% 5.6%
EHS 5,939,960     6,366,220     7,030,470     6,669,768     4,278,795    7,148,095     4,386,816     61.4% 2.5%
EPHP 2,688,659     2,616,411     2,557,352     2,856,024     1,703,346    3,090,647     1,754,439     56.8% 3.0%
Total Expenditures 19,770,532$ 21,157,367$ 21,905,797$ 22,558,237$ 14,423,506$ 25,413,854$ 15,019,649$ 59.1% 4.1%
Revenues (sources of funds) less Expenditures (uses of funds):
ODHO (579,672)      (853,040)      (822,960)      (1,336,494)    (788,756)      (1,570,329)    (807,188)      
AHS (996,021)      (1,119,366)    (1,016,660)    (1,059,669)    (728,995)      (1,312,474)    (810,287)      
AQM (150,184)      122,763       607,078       507,427       180,328       (261,286)      228,212       
CCHS (3,373,615)    (3,421,246)    (3,358,978)    (3,595,566)    (2,717,002)   (4,059,856)    (2,984,560)   
EHS (3,730,701)    (2,929,269)    (2,602,177)    (1,797,977)    (1,416,900)   (2,768,772)    (1,582,158)   
EPHP (547,325)      (589,169)      (702,490)      (729,444)      (595,813)      (890,537)      (663,668)      
GF Operating 10,076,856   10,002,381   10,051,691   9,516,856     6,344,571    9,516,856     6,344,571     
Surplus (deficit) 699,338$      1,213,053$   2,155,505$   1,505,134$   277,433$     (1,346,397)$  (275,077)$    
Fund Balance (FB) 2,967,844$   4,180,897$   6,336,402$   7,841,536$   6,495,139$   
FB as a % of Expenditures 15.0% 19.8% 28.9% 34.8% 25.6%
Note: ODHO=Office of the District Health Officer, AHS=Administrative Health Services, AQM=Air Quality Management,  CCHS=Community and Clinical Health Services, EHS=Environmental 
Health Services, EPHP=Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, GF=County General Fund

Fiscal Year 2019/2020

Washoe County Health District
Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

Fiscal Year 2015/2016 through February Year to Date Fiscal Year 2019/2020 (FY20)
Fiscal Year 2018/2019Actual Fiscal Year



Date: DBOH meeting March 26, 2020 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2020, February Financial Review 
Page 4 of 4 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact associated with the acknowledgement of this staff report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund financial 
review for February, Fiscal Year 2020. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
 
Move to acknowledge receipt of the Health Fund financial review for February, Fiscal Year 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: 
Health District Fund financial system summary report 













OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
ODHO Office: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  March 26, 2020 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

775-328-2416; kdick@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Possible approval of the Interlocal Agreement for Incident Command and Coordinated 

Response to COVID-19. 

SUMMARY 

The representatives of the Cities of Reno and Sparks, Washoe County, and the Washoe County Health 
District have met and discussed the public health, safety and welfare issues and concerns presented by 
COVID 19 and have determined that a unified response by the Parties to the emergency situation created by 
COVID 19 is beneficial to the health, safety and welfare of the citizens within the territorial limits of Washoe 
County. The City and County Managers and District Health Officer signed the agreement on March 20, 2020.  
The Parties agreed to each present this Agreement to their governing boards at the earliest practicable 
opportunity for approval. 

District Health Strategic Priorities supported by this item:  

1. Healthy Lives: Improve the health of our community by empowering individuals to live healthier lives.
2. Healthy Environment: Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy everything

Washoe County has to offer.
4. Impactful Partnerships: Extend our impact by leveraging partnerships to make meaningful progress on

health issues.
5. Organizational Capacity: Strengthen our workforce and increase operational capacity to support a

growing population.
PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action by the District Board of Health in regard to this matter. 

DBOH AGENDA NO. 6

mailto:kdick@washoecounty.us


Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: DBOH possible approval of Interlocal Agreement for Incident Command and Coordination for COVID-19 
Page: 2 of 2 
 

BACKGROUND 
The U.S. President, the Governor of Nevada, the Cities of Reno and Sparks, and Washoe County have all issued 
emergency declarations regarding COVID-19.  In order to coordinate a regional response to COVID-19 in 
Washoe County the Interlocal Agreement for Incident Command and Coordinated Response to COVID-19 was 
developed to allow the parties to operate in a unified response under one Incident Command in alignment with 
the National Incident Management System (NIMS).  The Incident Commander shall conduct all duties 
delegated by this Agreement consistent with the following objectives for the management of this incident: 
A. Public and Responder Safety 
B. Protecting public health and mitigating impacts of a COVID-19 outbreak 
C. Serve as central point to coordinate emergency management disciplines to include- legal, fire, EMS, health, 
public-private partners and volunteer agencies. 
D. Providing daily updates 
E. Providing robust, coordinated public affairs as necessary 
FISCAL IMPACT  
The Fiscal Impact to the Health District will be determined through the cost-sharing agreement to be 
developed between the other Parties to the Agreement and the Health District.  Total costs of the COVID 
response remain unknown.   The Parties will submit the costs of the COVID-19 response to the federal 
government to request reimbursement of these costs at a ratio of 75:25 percent federal to local-state cost share. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board approve the Interlocal Agreement for Incident Command and Coordinated 
Response to COVID-19. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with Staff’s recommendation, the motion would be: 
“Move to approve the Interlocal Agreement for Incident Command and Coordinated Response to  
COVID-19.” 
 













AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B-171, Reno, Nevada 89512 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   OurCleanAir.com 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: March 26, 2020 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Francisco Vega, Division Director, Air Quality Management Division 775-784-
7214, fvega@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Review, discussion, and possible adoption of the Business Impact Statement 
regarding proposed revisions to the District Board of Health Regulations Governing 
Air Quality Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning with a finding that 
the revised regulations do not impose a direct and significant economic burden on 
a business; nor do the revised regulations directly restrict the formation, operation 
or expansion of a business; and set a public hearing for possible adoption of the 
proposed revisions to the Regulations for April 23, 2020 at 1:00 pm. 

SUMMARY 

The Washoe County District Board of Health must adopt any revisions to the District Board of 
Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management (Regulations).  Per NRS 237, Business 
Impact Statements “must be considered by the governing body at its regular meeting next 
preceding any regular meeting held to adopt” the proposed revisions. 

District Health Strategic Priority supported by this item: 
2. Healthy Environment: Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy

everything Washoe County has to offer.

PREVIOUS ACTION 

Prescribed burning requirements were last revised on August 25, 1993 when they were part of 
Section 040.035 (Open Burning).  

BACKGROUND 

Prescribed burning requirements were originally part of Section 040.035 (Open Fires).  Section 
040.035 was revised and renamed on September 26, 2019 and removed the prescribed burning 
portions from the regulation.  This revision of Section 040.037 creates a new rule for prescribed 
burning and distinct from Section 040.035 (Open Burning).  Below is a summary of the major 
revisions being proposed: 

1. The regulation applies to any federal, state and local fire control agencies and land
management agencies that conduct prescribed burns in Washoe County;

DD ___________ 
DHO _________ 
DA ___________ 
Risk __________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7

FV



Subject: DBOH Regulations Governing Air Quality Management Section 040.037 BIS 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

2. Agencies conducting prescribed burning in Washoe County shall consider all reasonable 
alternatives to prescribed burning prior to the issuance of a Smoke Management Permit; 

3. Compliance with the Smoke Management Program; 
4. A Smoke Management Permit (revised from “prescribed burning permit”) must be 

obtained for all prescribed burns.  Smoke Management Permits may only be issued to 
federal, state, and local fire control agencies and land managers for lands under their control 
and jurisdiction.  The Control Officer shall review the burn plan and set forth conditions 
of operation to limit the air quality impacts of prescribed burn related emissions; 

5. All prescribed burns must follow the Smoke Management Permit conditions: 
a. Permits will not be valid during an air pollution alert, warning, or emergency (as 

defined by the “District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality 
Management” Section 050.001.C.1, Emergency Episode Plan).  At the 
determination of such an episode, the Control Officer shall notify each Permittee. 

b. The land manager must notify the Control Officer on the calendar day preceding 
the burn before the prescribed burn can be ignited. 

c. To minimize smoke impacts and emissions, each land manager will apply the best 
smoke management and emission reduction techniques. 

d. The approved permit, or copy thereof, shall be kept at the prescribed fire site and 
made available upon request of the Control Officer or their representative. 

e. All prescribed burn operations shall be subject to inspection by the Control Officer. 
f. The permit is for compliance with Washoe County air pollution control 

requirements only and is not a permit to violate any existing state laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances regarding fire, zoning, or building. 

g. If at any time the Control Officer determines that any condition of the permit is not 
being complied with, the permit may be revoked for the specific project where non-
compliance is occurring.  At such time, all burning activities at the site of non-
compliance shall be terminated.  In addition to revocation of the permit, the Control 
Officer may take any other enforcement action authorized under state statutes, rules 
and regulations. 

 
The following methods were used to provide notice of the proposed revisions and public 
workshops: 
 

1. A public notice of the proposed revisions was published in the Reno Gazette-Journal on 
January 3, 8 and 17, 2020 and again on February 7, 12 and 21, 2020. 

2. The proposed revisions and workshop information was posted in the “Current Topics” 
section of the AQMD website (OurCleanAir.com).   

3. The notifications were emailed to fire control agencies and land management agencies that 
conduct prescribed burning in Washoe County, canal and irrigation companies, and the 
Tahoe Sierra Clean Air Coalition. 

 
One public workshop was held on January 15, 2020.  Two individuals attended the workshop with 
comments related to the Open Burning regulation, Section 040.035.  Two public workshops were 
held on February 19, 2020.  Two individuals from a land management agency attended the morning 
workshop for the presentation and discussion of the revisions.  They did not provide public 
comment.  One individual from a local fire protection district attended the afternoon workshop for 



Subject: DBOH Regulations Governing Air Quality Management Section 040.037 BIS 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

the presentation and discussion of the revisions and did not provide public comment.  Additional 
attendees at each meeting included AQMD staff.  During the workshops, a presentation was 
prepared to discuss the background and proposed regulatory revisions.  A sign-in sheet, hard copies 
of the proposed revision and public comment forms were available at the workshop and a link to 
the location of the draft Smoke Management Plan was provided.  A copy of the workshop 
presentation and Smoke Management Plan is attached. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The fee for a Smoke Management Permit did not increase, therefore there are no fiscal impacts 
resulting from the Board accepting the Business Impact Statement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the District Board of Health approve and adopt the Business Impact Statement 
for the proposed revisions to District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality 
Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning, and set a public hearing for possible adoption 
of said revisions for April 23, 2020 at 1:00 pm. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: 
 
“Move to approve and adopt the Business Impact Statement for the proposed revisions to the 
District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, Section 040.037 
Prescribed Burning.  Further move to set a public hearing for possible adoption of the District 
Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed 
Burning for April 23, 2020 at 1:00 pm”. 
 



The following business impact statement was prepared pursuant to NRS 237.090 to address the proposed impact of the 
revision to the DBOH Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, Section 040.037 (Prescribed Burning). 

1. The following constitutes a description of the manner in which comment was solicited from affected businesses 
and citizens, a summary of their response and an explanation of the manner in which other interested persons 
may obtain a copy of the summary. (List all trade association or owners and officers of businesses likely to be 
affected by the proposed rule that have been consulted).  

Notification of the proposed regulation revision were posted on the Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) 
website and emailed to Fire Protection Districts, Land Managers, ditch and irrigation companies that conduct 
prescribed burns within Washoe County, and the Tahoe Sierra Clean Air Coalition.  Notification of the public 
hearing to address the proposed revisions were published on January 3, 8 and 17, 2020 and again on February 7, 
12 and 21, 2020, in the Reno Gazette-Journal.  Three public workshops were held in January and February to 
solicit feedback. 

Written comments were received from five individuals.  In summary, the comments were: 
 

• Suggested additional language added to the Prescribed Burn regulation and Smoke Management Plan 
regarding additional monitoring. 

• Suggested additional language added to the Prescribed Burn regulation Smoke Management Plan 
regarding public notification. 

• Suggested additional language added to the Prescribed Burn regulation Smoke Management Plan 
regarding pile burning. 

• Reducing the time period for a valid Smoke Management Permit. 
• The addition of a “Smoke Pollution Complaint” form. 
• Questions regarding clarification of items in Section E of the proposed regulation revision. 

2. The estimated economic effect of the proposed rule on businesses and citizens, including, without limitation, both 
adverse and beneficial effects, and both direct and indirect effects:  

Adverse effects: None. 

Beneficial effects: The regulation has been revised from the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air 
Quality Management Section 040.035 (Open Burning) to separate Open Burning from Prescribed Burning.   

Direct effects:  Fire control agencies and land management agencies conducting prescribed burns must justify 
alternatives to burning for a burn plan to be approved. 

Indirect effects: Fire control agencies and land management agencies conducting prescribed burns must still 
comply with the AQMD Smoke Management Program. 

3. The following constitutes a description of the methods the local government considered to reduce the impact of 
the proposed rule on businesses and citizens and a statement regarding whether any, and if so, which of these 
methods were used: (Include whether the following was considered: simplifying the proposed rule; establishing 
different standards of compliance for a business or citizen; and if applicable, modifying a fee or fine set forth in the 
rule so that business could pay a lower fee or fine). 

• The rule was simplified by separating residential open burning from prescribed burning. 
• The rule establishes compliance with the Smoke Management Plan and the consideration of alternatives 

to burning. 

4. The governing body estimates the annual cost to the local government for enforcement of the proposed rule is:  

There is no increase in anticipated annual cost as the work is already being conducted.  

5. The proposed rule provides for a new fee or increases and existing fee and the total annual amount expected to 
be collected is: No new fees or increases to the fees are proposed. 

6. The money generated by the new fee or increase in existing fee will be used by the local government to: N/A. 

 



7. The proposed rule includes provisions that duplicate or are more stringent than federal, state or local standards 
regulating the same activity. The following explains when such duplicative or more stringent provisions are 
necessary: 

The proposed change is not duplicative, nor more stringent than existing federal, state or local standards.  

8. The following constitutes an explanation of the reasons for the conclusions regarding the impact of the proposed 
rule on businesses:  The proposed rule will have no impacts on businesses. 

To the best of my knowledge or belief, the information contained in this statement is prepared properly and is 
accurate. 

__________________________     __________________________ 
Kevin Dick, District Health Officer     Date 



 

 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B-171, Reno, Nevada 89512 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   OurCleanAir.com 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

December 31, 2019 
 
Subject: Revision to the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality 

Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning (Revised from 040.035 Open 
Fires) 

 
The Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division is issuing the following 
Notice of Proposed Action pursuant to the Health District Regulations Governing Air Quality 
Management and the Federal Clean Air Act. 
 
The Director is proposing amendments to the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air 
Quality Management Section 040.037, Prescribed Burning (revised from 040.035 Open Fires).  The 
proposed revision to Section 040.037 include compliance with the Air Quality Management 
Division’s Smoke Management Program and require federal, state, local agencies conducting 
prescribed burning to obtain a Smoke Management Permit for prescribed burns occurring in Washoe 
County.  The complete language for the proposed revision is available on the Washoe County Air 
Quality Management Division website (OurCleanAir.com).  A public workshop will be held to 
provide individuals affected by these revisions with additional information and opportunity for input.  
Interested persons who may be affected or wish to comment should appear at the workshop to submit 
oral testimony, or may submit comments, data, views, or arguments in written form to Daniel Inouye, 
Branch Chief by: 
 

Mail to: Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division 
1001 East Ninth Street, B-171 
Reno, NV 89512, or 
 
Email to: KeepItClean@washoecounty.us, or 
 
FAX to: 775-784-7225.  

 
The public workshop will be held: 

Wednesday, January 15, 2020 from 12:30 to 2:30 pm at 1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, 
South Auditorium 

 
Written comments will be accepted until the close of business on Monday, February 3, 2020, and will 
be considered prior to any final action being taken on the proposed revisions.  Comments received 
will be included in the Business Impact Statement to be presented to the District Board of Health for 
consideration of acceptance at a public hearing to be held at 1:00 p.m. on February 27, 2020, at the 
Board of County Commissioners Chambers, located at 1001 East Ninth Street, Building A, Reno, NV.  
If the Business Impact Statement is accepted, adoption of the proposed regulations will be considered 
at the next District Board of Health meeting scheduled at 1:00 pm on March 26, 2020, at the same 
location. If adopted, this revision will be submitted to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 
 

mailto:KeepItClean@washoecounty.us


 

 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B-171, Reno, Nevada 89512 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   OurCleanAir.com 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

February 7, 2020 
 
Subject: Revision to the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality 

Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning (Revised from 040.035 Open 
Fires) 

 
The Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division is issuing the following 
Notice of Proposed Action pursuant to the Health District Regulations Governing Air Quality 
Management and the Federal Clean Air Act. 
 
The Director is proposing amendments to the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air 
Quality Management Section 040.037, Prescribed Burning (revised from 040.035 Open Fires).  The 
proposed revision to Section 040.037 include justification to alternative methods to burning, 
compliance with the Air Quality Management Division’s Smoke Management Program and requires 
federal, state, local agencies conducting prescribed burning to obtain a Smoke Management Permit for 
prescribed burns occurring in Washoe County.  The complete language for the proposed revision is 
available on the Washoe County Air Quality Management Division website (OurCleanAir.com).  A 
public workshop will be held to provide individuals affected by these revisions with additional 
information and opportunity for input.  Interested persons who may be affected or wish to comment 
should appear at the workshop to submit oral testimony, or may submit comments, data, views, or 
arguments in written form to Daniel Inouye, Branch Chief by: 
 

Mail to: Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division 
1001 East Ninth Street, B-171 
Reno, NV 89512, or 
 
Email to: KeepItClean@washoecounty.us, or 
 
FAX to: 775-784-7225.  

 
The public workshop will be held: 

Wednesday, February 19, 2020 from 10:00 to 12:30 pm and 3:00 to 5:00pm at 1001 East 
Ninth Street, Building B, South Auditorium 

 
Written comments will be accepted until the close of business on Monday, March 2, 2020 and will be 
considered prior to any final action being taken on the proposed revisions.  Comments received will 
be included in the Business Impact Statement to be presented to the District Board of Health for 
consideration of acceptance at a public hearing to be held at 1:00 p.m. on March 26, 2020, at the 
Board of County Commissioners Chambers, located at 1001 East Ninth Street, Building A, Reno, NV.  
If the Business Impact Statement is accepted, adoption of the proposed regulations will be considered 
at the next District Board of Health meeting scheduled at 1:00 pm on April 23, 2020, at the same 
location. If adopted, this revision will be submitted to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 
 

mailto:KeepItClean@washoecounty.us


 

040.037 PRESCRIBED BURNING (Revised from 040.035) 
 
SECTION A – GENERAL 
 

1. PURPOSE: To limit particulate material (PM) emissions and other pollutants released into the ambient 
air from prescribed burning. 
 

2. APPLICABILITY: The provisions of this Rule shall apply to any persons conducting prescribed burning 
within Washoe County. 

 
SECTION B – DEFINITIONS: For the purpose of this regulation, the following definitions shall apply. 
 

1. Allowable Vegetation.  Means only plant material that grew on the property where the burn is to be 
conducted. 
 

2. Open Burning. Means the burning of any allowable vegetation wherein the products of combustion are 
discharged directly into the atmosphere without passing through a stack or chimney. 

 
3. Prescribed Burning.  Means any fire purposefully ignited by land management agencies to meet 

specific land management objectives with controlled application under specified conditions.  The 
definition does not include fire training, residential open burning, or any other type of burning that is not 
specifically listed in the applicability section of this rule. 
 

4. Recreational Fires. An outdoor fire burning materials other than rubbish where the fuel being burned is 
not contained in an incinerator, outdoor fireplace, portable outdoor fireplace, barbeque grill or barbeque 
pit and has a total fuel area of 3 feet (914 mm) or less in diameter and 2 feet (610mm) or less in height 
for pleasure, religious, ceremonial, cooking, warmth or similar purposes. 

 
5. Smoke Impacts. Means anything that is causing pollution levels to be harmful to humans or become a 

safety hazard. 

SECTION C – STANDARDS:  The following standards shall apply: 
 

1. Prescribed burns include all outdoor fires with the exception of: 
i. Residential open burning; 
ii. Recreational fires; and  
iii. Fires set for training purposes as defined in Section 040.040. 

 
2. Only allowable vegetation shall be burned.  No other materials may be burned at any time within 

Washoe County. 
 

3. Smoke from prescribed burning shall not contribute to exceedances or violations of any National 
Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS).  Prescribed burning will not be allowed if concentrations 
of any pollutant are exceeded or expected to exceed any NAAQS.   

 
4. Prescribed burning is exempt from opacity standards as defined in Section 010.106. 

 
5. If the concentrations of an air contaminant/pollutant reach or are predicted to reach levels that 

constitute a Stage 1 alert as defined in Section 050.001.C, all prescribed burning shall be suspended 
in accordance with the requirements of Section 050.001.C. 

 



 

SECTION D – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS:  The following administrative requirements shall apply: 
 

1. Agencies conducting prescribed burning in Washoe County shall consider reasonable alternatives to 
burning prior to conducting a prescribed burn. 

 
2. Prescribed burning within Washoe County is applicable to the following agencies: 

a. Divisions of federal, state, and local fire control agencies; 
b. Divisions of local municipalities; and 
c. Canal and irrigation companies. 

 
SECTION E – COMPLIANCE AND RECORDS: For the purpose of these regulations, the following compliance and 
record requirements shall apply: 
 

1. Prescribed burning within Washoe County shall comply with the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality 
Management Division’s Smoke Management Program.   
 

2. Prescribed burning is allowed during favorable air dispersion conditions.  For the purposes of this regulation, 
a prescribed burn shall mean the controlled application of fire to natural vegetation under specified 
conditions.  Prescribed burns shall not be subject to the burn limitations of Section 040.035. 
 

3. A Smoke Management Permit must be obtained for all prescribed burns.  Smoke Management Permits may 
only be issued to federal, state, and local fire control agencies and land managers for lands under their 
control and jurisdiction.  The Control Officer shall review the burn plan and set forth conditions of operation 
to limit the air quality impacts of prescribed burn related emissions.  
 

4. Any application for a Smoke Management Permit must be submitted at least ten (10) calendar days in 
advance of the burn. The application shall include the agency overseeing the burn, a responsible person to 
be contacted in relation to the burn, the area to be burned, a copy of the burn plan and any other information 
as required by the Control Officer.  
 

5. All prescribed burns must follow the following Smoke Management Permit conditions: 
a. Permits will not be valid during an air pollution alert, warning, or emergency (as defined by the 

“District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management” Section 050.001.C.1, 
Emergency Episode Plan).  At the determination of such an episode, the Control Officer shall notify 
each Permittee. 

b. The land manager must notify the Control Officer on the calendar day preceding the burn before 
the prescribed burn can be ignited. 

c. To minimize smoke impacts and emissions, each land manager will apply the best smoke 
management and emission reduction techniques. 

d. The approved permit, or copy thereof, shall be kept at the prescribed fire site and made available 
upon request of the Control Officer or their representative. 

e. All prescribed burn operations shall be subject to inspection by the Control Officer. 
f. The permit is for compliance with Washoe County air pollution control requirements only and is not 

a permit to violate any existing state laws, rules, regulations, or ordinances regarding fire, zoning, 
or building. 

g. If at any time the Control Officer determines that any condition of the permit is not being complied 
with, the permit may be revoked for the specific project where non-compliance is occurring.  At 
such time, all burning activities at the site of non-compliance shall be terminated.  In addition to 
revocation of the permit, the Control Officer may take any other enforcement action authorized 
under state statutes, rules and regulations. 



 

040.037 PRESCRIBED BURNING (Revised from 040.035) 
 
SECTION A – GENERAL 
 

1. PURPOSE: To limit particulate material (PM) emissions and other pollutants released into the ambient 
air from prescribed burning. 
 

2. APPLICABILITY: The provisions of this Rule shall apply to any persons conducting prescribed burning 
within Washoe County. 

 
SECTION B – DEFINITIONS: For the purpose of this regulation, the following definitions shall apply. 
 

1. Allowable Vegetation.  Means only plant material that grew on the property where the burn is to be 
conducted. 
 

2. Open Burning. Means the burning of any allowable vegetation wherein the products of combustion are 
discharged directly into the atmosphere without passing through a stack or chimney. 

 
3. Prescribed Burning.  Means any fire purposefully ignited by land management agencies to meet 

specific land management objectives with controlled application under specified conditions.  The 
definition does not include fire training, residential open burning, or any other type of burning that is not 
specifically listed in the applicability section of this rule. 
 

4. Recreational Fires. An outdoor fire burning materials other than rubbish where the fuel being burned is 
not contained in an incinerator, outdoor fireplace, portable outdoor fireplace, barbeque grill or barbeque 
pit and has a total fuel area of 3 feet (914 mm) or less in diameter and 2 feet (610mm) or less in height 
for pleasure, religious, ceremonial, cooking, warmth or similar purposes. 

 
5. Smoke Impacts. Means anything that is causing pollution levels to be harmful to humans or become a 

safety hazard. 

SECTION C – STANDARDS:  The following standards shall apply: 
 

1. Prescribed burns include all outdoor fires with the exception of: 
i. Residential open burning; 
ii. Recreational fires; and  
iii. Fires set for training purposes as defined in Section 040.040. 

 
2. Only allowable vegetation shall be burned.  No other materials may be burned at any time within 

Washoe County. 
 

3. Smoke from prescribed burning shall not contribute to exceedances or violations of any National 
Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS).  Prescribed burning will not be allowed if concentrations 
of any pollutant are exceeded or expected to exceed any NAAQS.   

 
4. Prescribed burning is exempt from opacity standards as defined in Section 010.106. 

 
5. If the concentrations of an air contaminant/pollutant reach or are predicted to reach levels that 

constitute a Stage 1 alert as defined in Section 050.001.C, all prescribed burning shall be suspended 
in accordance with the requirements of Section 050.001.C. 

 



 

SECTION D – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS:  The following administrative requirements shall apply: 
 

1. Agencies conducting prescribed burning in Washoe County shall consider reasonable alternatives to 
burning prior to conducting a prescribed burn. 

 
2. Prescribed burning within Washoe County is applicable to the following agencies: 

a. Divisions of federal, state, and local fire control agencies; 
b. Divisions of local municipalities; and 
c. Canal and irrigation companies. 

 
SECTION E – COMPLIANCE AND RECORDS: For the purpose of these regulations, the following compliance and 
record requirements shall apply: 
 

1. Prescribed burning within Washoe County shall comply with the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality 
Management Division’s Smoke Management Program.   
 

2. Prescribed burning is allowed during favorable air dispersion conditions.  For the purposes of this regulation, 
a prescribed burn shall mean the controlled application of fire to natural vegetation under specified 
conditions.  Prescribed burns shall not be subject to the burn limitations of Section 040.035. 
 

3. A Smoke Management Permit must be obtained for all prescribed burns.  Smoke Management Permits may 
only be issued to federal, state, and local fire control agencies and land managers for lands under their 
control and jurisdiction.  The Control Officer shall review the burn plan and set forth conditions of operation 
to limit the air quality impacts of prescribed burn related emissions.  
 

4. Any application for a Smoke Management Permit must be submitted at least ten (10) calendar days in 
advance of the burn. The application shall include the agency overseeing the burn, a responsible person to 
be contacted in relation to the burn, the area to be burned, a copy of the burn plan and any other information 
as required by the Control Officer.  
 

5. All prescribed burns must follow the following Smoke Management Permit conditions: 
a. Permits will not be valid during an air pollution alert, warning, or emergency (as defined by the 

“District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management” Section 050.001.C.1, 
Emergency Episode Plan).  At the determination of such an episode, the Control Officer shall notify 
each Permittee. 

b. The land manager must notify the Control Officer on the calendar day preceding the burn before 
the prescribed burn can be ignited. 

c. To minimize smoke impacts and emissions, each land manager will apply the best smoke 
management and emission reduction techniques. 

d. The approved permit, or copy thereof, shall be kept at the prescribed fire site and made available 
upon request of the Control Officer or their representative. 

e. All prescribed burn operations shall be subject to inspection by the Control Officer. 
f. The permit is for compliance with Washoe County air pollution control requirements only and is not 

a permit to violate any existing state laws, rules, regulations, or ordinances regarding fire, zoning, 
or building. 

g. If at any time the Control Officer determines that any condition of the permit is not being complied 
with, the permit may be revoked for the specific project where non-compliance is occurring.  At 
such time, all burning activities at the site of non-compliance shall be terminated.  In addition to 
revocation of the permit, the Control Officer may take any other enforcement action authorized 
under state statutes, rules and regulations. 



 

040.037 PRESCRIBED BURNING (Revised from 040.035) 
SECTION A – GENERAL 
 

1. PURPOSE: To limit particulate material (PM) emissions and other pollutants released into the ambient air 
from prescribed burning. 
 

2. APPLICABILITY: The provisions of this Rule shall apply to any federal, state and local fire control agencies 
and land management agencies conducting prescribed burning within Washoe County. 

 
SECTION B – DEFINITIONS: For the purpose of this regulation, the following definitions shall apply. 
 

1. Allowable Vegetation.  Means only plant material that is identified in the burn plan or project grew on the 
property where the burn is to be conducted. 
 

2. Fire Control Agency: Agencies that are qualified to conduct prescribed burns. 
 

3. Land Management Agency: Agencies that are qualified to conduct prescribed burns. 
 

4. Open Burning. Means the burning of any allowable vegetation wherein the products of combustion are 
discharged directly into the atmosphere without passing through a stack or chimney.  Open burning is 
defined in Section 040.035. 
 

5. Prescribed Burning.  Means any fire purposefully ignited by land management agencies to meet specific 
land management objectives with controlled application under specified conditions.  The definition does not 
include fire training, residential open burning, or any other type of burning that is not specifically listed in the 
applicability section of this rule. 
 

6. Recreational Fires. An outdoor fire burning materials other than rubbish where the fuel being burned is not 
contained in an incinerator, outdoor fireplace, portable outdoor fireplace, barbeque grill or barbeque pit and 
has a total fuel area of 3 feet (914 mm) or less in diameter and 2 feet (610mm) or less in height for pleasure, 
religious, ceremonial, cooking, warmth or similar purposes. 
 

7. Smoke Impacts. Means anything that is causing pollution levels to be harmful to humans or become a safety 
hazard. 

 
SECTION C – STANDARDS:  The following standards shall apply: 
 

1. Prescribed burns include all outdoor fires with the exception of: 
 
a. Residential open burning (defined in Section 040.035); 
b. Recreational fires; and  
c. Fires set for training purposes as defined in Section 040.040. 
 

2. Only allowable vegetation shall be burned.  No other materials may be burned at any time within Washoe 
County. 
 

3. Smoke from prescribed burning shall not contribute to exceedances or violations of any National Ambient 
Air Quality Standards (NAAQS).  Prescribed burning will not be allowed if concentrations of any pollutant 
are exceeded or expected to exceed any NAAQS.   
 

4. Prescribed burning is exempt from opacity standards as defined in Section 010.106. 



 

 
5. If the concentrations of an air contaminant/pollutant reach or are predicted to reach levels that constitute a 

Stage 1 alert as defined in Section 050.001.C, all prescribed burning shall be suspended in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 050.001.C. 

 
SECTION D – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS:  The following administrative requirements shall apply: 
 

1. Agencies conducting prescribed burning in Washoe County shall consider all reasonable alternatives to 
prescribed burning prior to the issuance of a Smoke Management Permit. 
 

2. Prescribed burning within Washoe County is applicable to the following agencies: 
 

a. Divisions of federal, state, and local fire control agencies; 
b. Divisions of local municipalities; and 
c. Canal and irrigation companies. 

 
SECTION E – COMPLIANCE AND RECORDS: For the purpose of these regulations, the following compliance and 
record requirements shall apply: 
 

1. Prescribed burning within Washoe County shall comply with the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality 
Management Division’s Smoke Management Program.   
 

2. Prescribed burning is allowed during favorable air dispersion conditions.  For the purposes of this regulation, 
a prescribed burn shall mean the controlled application of fire to natural vegetation under specified 
conditions.  Prescribed burns shall not be subject to the burn limitations of Section 040.035. 
 

3. A Smoke Management Permit must be obtained for all prescribed burns.  Smoke Management Permits may 
only be issued to federal, state, and local fire control agencies and land managers for lands under their 
control and jurisdiction.  The Control Officer shall review the burn plan and set forth conditions of operation 
to limit the air quality impacts of prescribed burn related emissions.  
 

4. Any application for a Smoke Management Permit must be submitted at least fourteen (14) calendar days in 
advance of the burn. The application shall include the agency overseeing the burn, a responsible person to 
be contacted in relation to the burn, the area to be burned, a copy of the burn plan and any other information 
as required by the Control Officer.  
 

5. All prescribed burns must follow the following Smoke Management Permit conditions: 
 

a. Permits will not be valid during an air pollution alert, warning, or emergency (as defined by the 
“District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management” Section 050.001.C.1, 
Emergency Episode Plan).  At the determination of such an episode, the Control Officer shall notify 
each Permittee. 

b. The land manager must notify the Control Officer on the calendar day preceding the burn before 
the prescribed burn can be ignited. 

c. To minimize smoke impacts and emissions, each land manager will apply the best smoke 
management and emission reduction techniques. 

d. The approved permit, or copy thereof, shall be kept at the prescribed fire site and made available 
upon request of the Control Officer or their representative. 

e. All prescribed burn operations shall be subject to inspection by the Control Officer. 



 

f. The permit is for compliance with Washoe County air pollution control requirements only and is not 
a permit to violate any existing state laws, rules, regulations, or ordinances regarding fire, zoning, 
or building. 

g. If at any time the Control Officer determines that any condition of the permit is not being complied 
with, the permit may be revoked for the specific project where non-compliance is occurring.  At 
such time, all burning activities at the site of non-compliance shall be terminated.  In addition to 
revocation of the permit, the Control Officer may take any other enforcement action authorized 
under state statutes, rules and regulations. 



From: Doug Flaherty
To: KeepItClean; Inouye, Daniel; Vega, Francisco
Subject: Comments Regarding Washoe County Proposed Revisions to Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning
Date: Monday, February 3, 2020 2:05:04 PM
Attachments: EZ Form Comments Proposed Washoe Precribed Burn Ordinanance 040.037(2).pdf

040.037 PRESCRIBED BURNING_Suggested Track Changes.doc

[NOTICE:  This message originated outside of Washoe County -- DO NOT CLICK on links or
open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

Dear AQMD:

Please find attached, 2 files attached containing  my comments regarding Washoe
County's Proposed Revision of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality
Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning (Revised from 040.035 Open
Fires).

My emphasis is on suggested improvements to help protect public health in
Residential Areas during Agency Prescribed Burning. 

One attached file contains suggested changes to your proposed ordinance in WORD
TRACK CHANGES.

The second file contains a letter to your office containing comments and specifics
regarding the proposed ordinance.

Along with all of the comments provided, I am concerned that your office did not
take the time to revise current section 040.035. The proposed wording offered in
040.037 as written could serve to create some conflict on precisely what limitations
may or may not apply to prescribed burns.

Therefore , I have offered suggested language in the WORD Track Changes
document LIne E 2. concerning this item.

Additionally, as an interested party and full time resident of Incline Village, NV I
wish to be placed on any interested party list you may have concerning Washoe
County prescribed burning discussions, meetings or notifications concerning this
topic going forward.

Sincerely
Doug Flaherty
Resident 
774 Mays Blvd 10-691
Incline Village, NV 89451

mailto:tahoeblue365@gmail.com
mailto:KeepItClean@washoecounty.us
mailto:DInouye@washoecounty.us
mailto:FVega@washoecounty.us



Page 1 of 2 


To: Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division 
1001 East 9th Street, B-171 
Reno, NV 89512 


KeepItClean@WashoeCounty .us 


Fax: 775-784-7225 


RE: Comments regarding Washoe County Prosed Revision of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality 
Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning (Revised from 040.035 Open Fires) - My 
emphasis is on basic Residential Area and Smoke Sensitive Site Health and Safety during Agency 
Prescribed Burning 


Dear Washoe County AQMD, 


In the spirit of helping to ensure public health and safety during agency prescribed burning in residential 
and smoke sensitive areas, the proposed Washoe County Prescribed Burn regulation 040.035 as written, 
is void of prescribed burn agency basic accountability and responsibility as follows: 


• Void of a basic, reasonable and prudent requirement that prescribed burn agencies have the 
responsibility to adequately mechanically monitor, gather and record real time transparent 
smoke/emission data during prescribed burns in or near residential neighborhoods/areas and 
other smoke sensitive sites.


• Void of prescribed burn agency responsibility to ensure reasonable, timely and adequate 
advanced notification of potentially smoke impacted residential neighborhoods/areas and other 
smoke sensitive sites before a prescribed burn is carried out.


In the spirit of prioritizing public health and safety in and around residential neighborhoods/areas and 
other smoke sensitive sites before and during Public Agency prescribed burning, I am requesting that 
Washoe County add the following prudent and very reasonable items to the County’s proposed 
Prescribed Burn Regulation 040.037. 


1. Prescribed Burn agencies must record their reason(s) for choosing burning over other
alternatives as part of their burn plan or smoke management plan in or within ¼ mile of
residential neighborhoods/areas, schools, school bus stops, public transportation bus stops,
businesses or other smoke sensitive sites. When vegetation can be reasonably chipped or
removed within these areas utilizing close proximity transportation roadway access, or spread
on site, cost shall not be considered to be a reasonable justification to burn over other
alternatives.


2. Prescribed burn agencies shall be required to accurately and mechanically monitor and
minimize smoke impact emissions that may potentially impact residential
neighborhoods/areas and other smoke sensitive sites. Each land manager will apply the best
and latest technology real time smoke management mechanical air monitoring and
smoke/emission reduction techniques.







Page 2 of 2 


3. A minimum of two Washoe County Air Management Division approved mechanical air 
monitors or portable mechanical air monitors that have the capability to accurately measure 
PM10 and PM2.5 emissions in real and transparent time from prescribed burns shall be 
deployed in downwind proximity of all prescribed burn sites potentially causing smoke impacts 
to residential neighborhoods/areas schools, school bus stops, public transportation bus stops, 
businesses or other smoke sensitive sites and shall be present and actively operational from 
the time of prescribed burn ignition and until burndown is complete. 


 
a. Planned locations of the approved mechanical air monitors shall be included in and as 


part of the approved agency prescribed burn smoke management plan and fire control 
agency representatives shall continually observe and record smoke impacts and 
immediately report those smoke impacts to the Washoe County Air Quality Control 
Officer as soon as possible. 


 
b. If during agency prescribed burn operations including burndown, the direction of 


planned prescribed burn smoke emissions shifts away from the original smoke 
management plan projected locations, the required portable mechanical smoke 
monitors will be immediately re-positioned in anticipation of gathering more accurate 
smoke emission data in the interest of residential neighborhood/area and other smoke 
sensitive site public health and safety. 


 
c. Prescribed burn agencies shall perform good faith efforts to deploy the approved 


portable mechanical air monitors during prescribed burns potentially affecting 
residential neighborhoods/areas and other smoke sensitive sites in order to gather real 
time accurate smoke emissions data in the interest of public health and safety. 


 
4. Prescribed burn agencies shall make a reasonable and good faith effort to notify the public 


within ¼ mile of all plan prescribed burns within 24 hr of planned ignition. Simply placing 
prescribed burn signs on roadways is to be considered as only one aspect of public notification 
but does not alone satisfy a reasonable and good faith effort to make public notifications. 


 
Thank you for considering these prudent and very reasonable additions to your proposed Prescribed 
Burn regulation 040.035 in the interest of prioritizing public health and safety. 
 
 
 
 
 
 __________________________________   _________________     _____________________________  
 Name  Date (MM/DD/YYYY) Email Address 





		Name: Doug Flaherty

		Date MMDDYYYY: 02/03/2020

		Email Address: TahoeBlue365@gmail.com






SUGGESTED MODIFICATIONS TO PROPOSED 040.037 



040.037 PRESCRIBED BURNING (Revised from 040.035)



SECTION A – GENERAL



PURPOSE: To limit particulate material (PM) emissions and other pollutants released into the ambient air from prescribed burning.



file_0.png











file_1.wmf



		APPLICABILITY: The provisions of this Rule shall apply to any persons conducting prescribed burning within Washoe County.



SECTION B – DEFINITIONS: For the purpose of this regulation, the following definitions shall apply.



		Allowable Vegetation. Means only plant material that grew on the property where the burn is to be conducted.





		Open Burning. Means the burning of any allowable vegetation wherein the products of combustion are discharged directly into the atmosphere without passing through a stack or chimney.





		Prescribed Burning. Means any fire purposefully ignited by land management agencies to meet specific land management objectives with controlled application under specified conditions. The definition does not include fire training, residential open burning, or any other type of burning that is not specifically listed in the applicability section of this rule.





		Recreational Fires. An outdoor fire burning materials other than rubbish where the fuel being burned is not contained in an incinerator, outdoor fireplace, portable outdoor fireplace, barbeque grill or barbeque pit and has a total fuel area of 3 feet (914 mm) or less in diameter and 2 feet (610mm) or less in height for pleasure, religious, ceremonial, cooking, warmth or similar purposes.





		Smoke Impacts. Means anything that is causing pollution levels to be harmful to humans  or become a safety hazard.



SECTION C – STANDARDS: The following standards shall apply:



		Prescribed burns include all outdoor fires with the exception of:

		Residential open burning;

		Recreational fires; and

		Fires set for training purposes as defined in Section 040.040.





		Only allowable vegetation shall be burned. No other materials may be burned at any time within Washoe County.





		Smoke from prescribed burning shall not contribute to exceedances or violations of any National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). Prescribed burning will not be allowed if concentrations of any pollutant are exceeded or expected to exceed any NAAQS.





		Prescribed burning is exempt from opacity standards as defined in Section 010.106.





		If the concentrations of an air contaminant/pollutant reach or are predicted to reach levels that constitute a Stage 1 alert as defined in Section 050.001.C, all prescribed burning shall be suspended in accordance with the requirements of Section 050.001.C.



SECTION D – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS: The following administrative requirements shall apply:



		Agencies conducting prescribed burning in Washoe County shall consider reasonable alternatives to burning prior to conducting a prescribed burn. Agencies must record their reason(s) for choosing burning over other alternatives in their burn plan or smoke management plan. When vegetation can be reasonably chipped or removed utilizing close proximity transportation roadway access, or spread on site. Cost shall not be considered to be a reasonable justification to burn over other alternatives. 





2. Mechanical smoke monitors as described below shall be deployed and utilized during all prescribed burns within residential areas or within ¼ mile of residential areas, schools, school or public transportation bus stops, businesses or smoke sensitive sites.



3. Prescribed burning within Washoe County is applicable to the following agencies:

		Divisions of federal, state, and local fire control agencies;



Divisions of local municipalities; and

file_2.png











file_3.wmf



		Canal and irrigation companies.



4..  A minimum of two Washoe County Air Management Division approved mechanical air monitors or portable mechanical air monitors that have the capability to accurately measure PM10 and PM2.5 emissions from prescribed burns shall be deployed in downwind proximity of all prescribed burn sites and shall be present and operational from the time of prescribed burn ignition and until burndown is complete.

a. Planned locations of the approved mechanical air monitors shall be included in and as part of the approved prescribed burn smoke management plan and fire control agency representatives shall continually observe and record smoke impacts as defined herein from prescribed burns and report smoke impacts as defined herein to the Control Officer as soon as possible.

b. If during prescribed burn operations including burndown, the direction of planned prescribed burn emissions shifts away from the original smoke management plan projected locations, the portable mechanical smoke monitors will be immediately re-positioned in anticipation of gathering more accurate smoke emission data in the interest of public health and safety.

c. Agencies shall perform good faith efforts to deploy the approved portable mechanical air monitors during prescribed burns in the interest of gathering accurate emissions data in the interest of public health and safety.



SECTION E – COMPLIANCE AND RECORDS: For the purpose of these regulations, the following compliance and record requirements shall apply:



		Prescribed burning within Washoe County shall comply with the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division’s Smoke Management Program.





		Prescribed burning is allowed during favorable air dispersion conditions. For the purposes of this regulation, a prescribed burn shall mean the controlled application of fire to natural vegetation under specified conditions. This ordinance supersedes the Prescribed burns shall not be subject to the burn limitations of Section 040.035.





		A Smoke Management Permit must be obtained for all prescribed burns. Smoke Management Permits may only be issued to federal, state, and local fire control agencies and land managers for lands under their control and jurisdiction. The Control Officer shall review the burn plan and including the Smoke Management Plan set forth conditions of operation to limit the air quality impacts of prescribed burn related emissions.





		Any application for a Smoke Management Permit must be submitted at least ten (10) calendar days in advance of the burn. The application shall include the agency overseeing the burn, a responsible person to be contacted in relation to the burn, the area to be burned, location and type of mechanical air monitoring devices, a copy of the burn plan and any other information as required by the Control Officer.





		All prescribed burns must follow the following Smoke Management Permit conditions:

		Permits will not be valid during an air pollution alert, warning, or emergency (as defined by the “District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management” Section 050.001.C.1, Emergency Episode Plan). At the determination of such an episode, the Control Officer shall notify each Permittee.

		The land manager must notify the Control Officer on the calendar day preceding the burn before the prescribed burn can be ignited.

		To more accurately monitor and minimize potential smoke impacts minimize smoke impacts and emissions, each land manager will apply the best and latest technology smoke management mechanical emission monitoring and emission reduction techniques.

		The approved permit, or copy thereof, shall be kept at the prescribed fire site and made available to the public and upon request of the Control Officer or their representative.

		All prescribed burn operations shall be subject to inspection by the Control Officer.

		The permit is for compliance with Washoe County air pollution control requirements only and is not a permit to violate any existing state laws, rules, regulations, or ordinances regarding fire, zoning, or building.

		If at any time the Control Officer determines that any condition of the permit is not being complied with, the permit may be revoked for the specific project where non-compliance is occurring. At such time, all burning activities at the site of non-compliance shall be terminated. In addition to revocation of the permit, the Control Officer may take any other enforcement action authorized under state statutes, rules and regulations.







Page 1 of 2 

To: Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division 
1001 East 9th Street, B-171 
Reno, NV 89512 

KeepItClean@WashoeCounty .us 

Fax: 775-784-7225 

RE: Comments regarding Washoe County Prosed Revision of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality 
Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning (Revised from 040.035 Open Fires) - My 
emphasis is on basic Residential Area and Smoke Sensitive Site Health and Safety during Agency 
Prescribed Burning 

Dear Washoe County AQMD, 

In the spirit of helping to ensure public health and safety during agency prescribed burning in residential 
and smoke sensitive areas, the proposed Washoe County Prescribed Burn regulation 040.035 as written, 
is void of prescribed burn agency basic accountability and responsibility as follows: 

• Void of a basic, reasonable and prudent requirement that prescribed burn agencies have the 
responsibility to adequately mechanically monitor, gather and record real time transparent 
smoke/emission data during prescribed burns in or near residential neighborhoods/areas and 
other smoke sensitive sites.

• Void of prescribed burn agency responsibility to ensure reasonable, timely and adequate 
advanced notification of potentially smoke impacted residential neighborhoods/areas and other 
smoke sensitive sites before a prescribed burn is carried out.

In the spirit of prioritizing public health and safety in and around residential neighborhoods/areas and 
other smoke sensitive sites before and during Public Agency prescribed burning, I am requesting that 
Washoe County add the following prudent and very reasonable items to the County’s proposed 
Prescribed Burn Regulation 040.037. 

1. Prescribed Burn agencies must record their reason(s) for choosing burning over other
alternatives as part of their burn plan or smoke management plan in or within ¼ mile of
residential neighborhoods/areas, schools, school bus stops, public transportation bus stops,
businesses or other smoke sensitive sites. When vegetation can be reasonably chipped or
removed within these areas utilizing close proximity transportation roadway access, or spread
on site, cost shall not be considered to be a reasonable justification to burn over other
alternatives.

2. Prescribed burn agencies shall be required to accurately and mechanically monitor and
minimize smoke impact emissions that may potentially impact residential
neighborhoods/areas and other smoke sensitive sites. Each land manager will apply the best
and latest technology real time smoke management mechanical air monitoring and
smoke/emission reduction techniques.



Page 2 of 2 

3. A minimum of two Washoe County Air Management Division approved mechanical air 
monitors or portable mechanical air monitors that have the capability to accurately measure 
PM10 and PM2.5 emissions in real and transparent time from prescribed burns shall be 
deployed in downwind proximity of all prescribed burn sites potentially causing smoke impacts 
to residential neighborhoods/areas schools, school bus stops, public transportation bus stops, 
businesses or other smoke sensitive sites and shall be present and actively operational from 
the time of prescribed burn ignition and until burndown is complete. 

 
a. Planned locations of the approved mechanical air monitors shall be included in and as 

part of the approved agency prescribed burn smoke management plan and fire control 
agency representatives shall continually observe and record smoke impacts and 
immediately report those smoke impacts to the Washoe County Air Quality Control 
Officer as soon as possible. 

 
b. If during agency prescribed burn operations including burndown, the direction of 

planned prescribed burn smoke emissions shifts away from the original smoke 
management plan projected locations, the required portable mechanical smoke 
monitors will be immediately re-positioned in anticipation of gathering more accurate 
smoke emission data in the interest of residential neighborhood/area and other smoke 
sensitive site public health and safety. 

 
c. Prescribed burn agencies shall perform good faith efforts to deploy the approved 

portable mechanical air monitors during prescribed burns potentially affecting 
residential neighborhoods/areas and other smoke sensitive sites in order to gather real 
time accurate smoke emissions data in the interest of public health and safety. 

 
4. Prescribed burn agencies shall make a reasonable and good faith effort to notify the public 

within ¼ mile of all plan prescribed burns within 24 hr of planned ignition. Simply placing 
prescribed burn signs on roadways is to be considered as only one aspect of public notification 
but does not alone satisfy a reasonable and good faith effort to make public notifications. 

 
Thank you for considering these prudent and very reasonable additions to your proposed Prescribed 
Burn regulation 040.035 in the interest of prioritizing public health and safety. 
 
 
 
 
 
 __________________________________   _________________     _____________________________  
 Name  Date (MM/DD/YYYY) Email Address 



 
 

SUGGESTED MODIFICATIONS TO PROPOSED 040.037  
 

40.37 040.037 PRESCRIBED BURNING (Revised from 040.035) 
 

SECTION A – GENERAL 
 

1. PURPOSE: To limit particulate material (PM) emissions and other pollutants released into the ambient 
air from prescribed burning. 

 
2. APPLICABILITY: The provisions of this Rule shall apply to any persons conducting prescribed burning 

within Washoe County. 
 

SECTION B – DEFINITIONS: For the purpose of this regulation, the following definitions shall apply. 
 

1. Allowable Vegetation. Means only plant material that grew on the property where the burn is to be 
conducted. 

 
2. Open Burning. Means the burning of any allowable vegetation wherein the products of combustion are 

discharged directly into the atmosphere without passing through a stack or chimney. 
 

3. Prescribed Burning. Means any fire purposefully ignited by land management agencies to meet 
specific land management objectives with controlled application under specified conditions. The 
definition does not include fire training, residential open burning, or any other type of burning that is not 
specifically listed in the applicability section of this rule. 

 
4. Recreational Fires. An outdoor fire burning materials other than rubbish where the fuel being burned is 

not contained in an incinerator, outdoor fireplace, portable outdoor fireplace, barbeque grill or barbeque 
pit and has a total fuel area of 3 feet (914 mm) or less in diameter and 2 feet (610mm) or less in height 
for pleasure, religious, ceremonial, cooking, warmth or similar purposes. 

 
5. Smoke Impacts. Means anything that is causing pollution levels to be harmful to humans  or become 

a safety hazard. 

SECTION C – STANDARDS: The following standards shall apply: 
 

1. Prescribed burns include all outdoor fires with the exception of: 
i. Residential open burning; 
ii. Recreational fires; and 
iii. Fires set for training purposes as defined in Section 040.040. 

 
2. Only allowable vegetation shall be burned. No other materials may be burned at any time within 

Washoe County. 
 

3. Smoke from prescribed burning shall not contribute to exceedances or violations of any National 
Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). Prescribed burning will not be allowed if concentrations 
of any pollutant are exceeded or expected to exceed any NAAQS. 

 
4. Prescribed burning is exempt from opacity standards as defined in Section 010.106. 

 
5. If the concentrations of an air contaminant/pollutant reach or are predicted to reach levels that 

constitute a Stage 1 alert as defined in Section 050.001.C, all prescribed burning shall be suspended 
in accordance with the requirements of Section 050.001.C. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering



 
 

SECTION D – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS: The following administrative requirements shall apply: 
 

1. Agencies conducting prescribed burning in Washoe County shall consider reasonable alternatives to 
burning prior to conducting a prescribed burn. Agencies must record their reason(s) for choosing 
burning over other alternatives in their burn plan or smoke management plan. When vegetation can be 
reasonably chipped or removed utilizing close proximity transportation roadway access, or spread on 
site. Cost shall not be considered to be a reasonable justification to burn over other alternatives.  
 

a. 2. Mechanical smoke monitors as described below shall be deployed and utilized during all prescribed 
burns within residential areas or within ¼ mile of residential areas, schools, school or public 
transportation bus stops, businesses or smoke sensitive sites. 

 
b. 3. Prescribed burning within Washoe County is applicable to the following agencies: 

c.a. Divisions of federal, state, and local fire control agencies; 
d.b. Divisions of local municipalities; and 
c. Canal and irrigation companies. 

 
4..  A minimum of two Washoe County Air Management Division approved mechanical air monitors or portable 
mechanical air monitors that have the capability to accurately measure PM10 and PM2.5 emissions from prescribed 
burns shall be deployed in downwind proximity of all prescribed burn sites and shall be present and operational from the 
time of prescribed burn ignition and until burndown is complete. 
 a. Planned locations of the approved mechanical air monitors shall be included in and as part of the approved 

prescribed burn smoke management plan and fire control agency representatives shall continually observe 
and record smoke impacts as defined herein from prescribed burns and report smoke impacts as defined 
herein to the Control Officer as soon as possible. 

 b. If during prescribed burn operations including burndown, the direction of planned prescribed burn emissions 
shifts away from the original smoke management plan projected locations, the portable mechanical smoke 
monitors will be immediately re-positioned in anticipation of gathering more accurate smoke emission data in 
the interest of public health and safety. 

e. c. Agencies shall perform good faith efforts to deploy the approved portable mechanical air monitors during 
prescribed burns in the interest of gathering accurate emissions data in the interest of public health and 
safety. 

 
SECTION E – COMPLIANCE AND RECORDS: For the purpose of these regulations, the following compliance and 
record requirements shall apply: 

 
1. Prescribed burning within Washoe County shall comply with the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality 

Management Division’s Smoke Management Program. 
 

2. Prescribed burning is allowed during favorable air dispersion conditions. For the purposes of this regulation, 
a prescribed burn shall mean the controlled application of fire to natural vegetation under specified 
conditions. This ordinance supersedes the Prescribed burns shall not be subject to the burn limitations of 
Section 040.035. 

 
3. A Smoke Management Permit must be obtained for all prescribed burns. Smoke Management Permits may 

only be issued to federal, state, and local fire control agencies and land managers for lands under their 
control and jurisdiction. The Control Officer shall review the burn plan and including the Smoke 
Management Plan set forth conditions of operation to limit the air quality impacts of prescribed burn related 
emissions. 

 
4. Any application for a Smoke Management Permit must be submitted at least ten (10) calendar days in 

advance of the burn. The application shall include the agency overseeing the burn, a responsible person to 
be contacted in relation to the burn, the area to be burned, location and type of mechanical air monitoring 
devices, a copy of the burn plan and any other information as required by the Control Officer. 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.83",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.58", Hanging:  0.25",  No
bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.58",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.33",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.56",  No
bullets or numbering



5. All prescribed burns must follow the following Smoke Management Permit conditions: 
a. Permits will not be valid during an air pollution alert, warning, or emergency (as defined by the 

“District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management” Section 050.001.C.1, 
Emergency Episode Plan). At the determination of such an episode, the Control Officer shall notify 
each Permittee. 

b. The land manager must notify the Control Officer on the calendar day preceding the burn before 
the prescribed burn can be ignited. 

c. To more accurately monitor and minimize potential smoke impacts minimize smoke 
impacts and emissions, each land manager will apply the best and latest technology 
smoke management mechanical emission monitoring and emission reduction techniques. 

d. The approved permit, or copy thereof, shall be kept at the prescribed fire site and made available 
to the public and upon request of the Control Officer or their representative. 

e. All prescribed burn operations shall be subject to inspection by the Control Officer. 
f. The permit is for compliance with Washoe County air pollution control requirements only and is not 

a permit to violate any existing state laws, rules, regulations, or ordinances regarding fire, zoning, 
or building. 

g. If at any time the Control Officer determines that any condition of the permit is not being complied 
with, the permit may be revoked for the specific project where non-compliance is occurring. At 
such time, all burning activities at the site of non-compliance shall be terminated. In addition to 
revocation of the permit, the Control Officer may take any other enforcement action authorized 
under state statutes, rules and regulations. 



From: Doug Flaherty
To: KeepItClean; Inouye, Daniel; Washoe311; Vega, Francisco
Subject: Comments Washoe County Proposed Prescribed Burn Regulations and SMP
Date: Monday, March 2, 2020 3:17:47 PM
Attachments: Washoe County NV Smoke Complaint Form.pdf

Comments Proposed Washoe Cnty Prescribed Burn Regulation and SMT Feb 7 2020 040.037(1).pdf

[NOTICE:  This message originated outside of Washoe County -- DO NOT CLICK on links or
open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

Dear AQMD:

 

As a resident of Incline Village, NV and outdoor enthusiast in
Washoe County and the Lake Tahoe Basin, please find
attached:

1. My comments in PDF regarding Washoe County's Proposed
Revision of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality
Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning (Revised
from 040.035 Open Fires) and Smoke Management Plan both
watermark dated February 7, 2020.

and

2. A sample of an EZ Citizen Smoke Pollution Complaint
Form

 

Additionally, as an interested party and full time resident of
Incline Village, NV I wish to be placed on any interested party

mailto:tahoeblue365@gmail.com
mailto:KeepItClean@washoecounty.us
mailto:DInouye@washoecounty.us
mailto:Washoe311@washoecounty.us
mailto:FVega@washoecounty.us



SMOKE POLLUTION COMPLAINT 
TO 


WASHOE COUNTY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(775) 784-7200 (24 hrs per day)


FAX (775) 784-7225
KeepItClean@washoecounty.us 


Dear Washoe County Air Quality Management Officer: 


As you know, Burn Agencies are required to comply with the Clean Air Act even during prescribed burn operations. 


Valid smoke pollution complaints are Important to protect our health and our families health from dangerous PM1, 
PM2.5 and PM10 smoke emissions. Please help protect our health. 


Please consider this a formal smoke emission air pollution complaint in connection with the burning/smoldering that 
is being conducted, or has recently been conducted in the vicinity of (check all that apply): 


Washoe Valley Mt Rose Hwy North Valleys 


Reno Sand Harbor Other location: 


Northern Washoe County Incline Village / Crystal Bay 


Provide additional location information or comments: 


The smoke is impacting and/or polluting (check all that apply): 


My Health / My families health Residential neighborhoods 


Bus stops Businesses  


Public streets, roadway or highways Portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin 


Schools 


Recreation or recreation events


My pets, livestock or wildlife


I am having a difficult time breathing. 


The smoke is preventing me from going outside or recreating. 


I am a COPD, heart lung, Asthma patient or disabled and the smoke is making it difficult or painful to breath. 


The smoke has gotten into my house even though my windows are closed. 


I do not have a car. I must walk or bicycle wherever I go. The smoke is making it hard for me to breathe, travel to my job, 
walk my kids to school, go to the store, or perform other daily tasks. 


I have attached a photograph(s) I am unable to attach a photograph 


Name Date (MM/DD/YYYY) Phone Email Address 


Street address or PO Box  City/Zip Code 


Please ensure that an Air Quality Notice of Violation is issued to the burn agency or persons responsible for this 
pollution/smoke emission event if they are found to be creating unhealthful smoke impacts to persons. Please keep 
me informed of the outcome of my formal smoke/pollution complaint. Please do not try to dissuade me that this 
is just a temporary prescribed burn and it’s just something we need to live with. The human lung is not smoke 
adapted. We have a right to Clean Air. 





		Please ensure that an Air Quality Notice of Violation is issued to the burn agency or persons responsible for this pollution/smoke emission event if they are found to be creating unhealthful smoke impacts to persons. Please keep me informed of the out...



		Incline Village NV  Crystal Bay: Off

		Mt Rose Hwy: Off

		North Valleys: Off

		Sand Harbor: Off

		Washoe Valley: Off

		Reno: Off

		Northern Washoe County: Off

		My Health  My families health: Off

		Residential neighborhoods: Off

		Schools: Off

		Bus stops: Off

		Businesses: Off

		Recreation or recreation events: Off

		Public streets roadway or highways: Off

		Portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin: Off

		Additional location information: 

		Other location name: 

		Other location: Off

		Group6: Off

		Having a difficult time breathing: Off

		Smoke is preventing me going outside/recreating: Off

		COPD/heart lung/Asthma or disabled: Off

		Smoke in my house: Off

		Day to day functions: Off

		Email Address: 

		Date MMDDYYYY: 

		Phone: 

		Other impact: Off

		Name: 

		Street address or PO Box: 

		City/Zip Code: 








Page 1 of 6 


To: Daniel Inouye, Branch Chief,  


KeepitClean@Washoe.County.US 


Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division 
1001 East 9th Street, B-171 
Reno, NV 89512 


Comments Due By Close of Business Today 3/2/2020 


RE: Comments regarding Washoe County Proposed Revision of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality 
Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning (Revised from 040.035 Open Fires) and the Draft 
Washoe County Smoke Management Plan both watermarked draft and both dated February 7, 2020 


Dear Washoe County AQMD, 


Thank you for the revised copy of the Washoe County Health District proposed Prescribed Burn Regulation 
and Smoke Management Plan draft both watermark dated February 7, 2020. 


These comments are being provided by me as a resident of Incline Village, NV and as a recreational 
enthusiast in and around Washoe County, NV and the Lake Tahoe Basin. 


While I understand and appreciate your efforts regarding the complicated issues surrounding Burn Agency 
Managers created smoke management, unfortunately, the Washoe County Health District proposed Air 
Quality Regulation and Smoke Management Plan draft as written, is heavily weighted in favor of prioritizing 
government Burn Agency Managers created pollution and carbon production over the health and safety of 
our citizens here in Washoe County.  


Unfortunately, the Washoe County Health District proposed Prescribed Burn and Smoke Management Plan 
regulations as written fall short when comes to protecting our health and clean air against unfortunate 
unhealthy agency created smoke generation as follows: 


• Washoe County Health District and public Burn Agency Managers have known for quite some time
that wildland fire smoke in any amount, including smoke from agency created pile burning contains
dangerous levels of PM1. You are aware that PM1 is proven to be even more invasive and dangerous
than PM 2.5 and PM10. Yet, the Washoe County Health District refuses to provide adequate PM1
mechanical government monitors throughout Washoe County including Incline Village, NV. The
proposed documents as written are void of any requirements that agencies must educate the public
on the heightened health dangers of PM1 during agency created burning and provide adequate, real
time mechanical smoke monitoring especially when burning in or near smoke sensitive areas
including residential areas like Incline Village, NV and the Washoe County portions of the Lake Tahoe
Basin.


The proposed “paper tiger” Regulation and Smoke Management Plan language purposely avoids
discussion regarding any specific requirement that would require burn agencies to provide even the
most basic adequate and prudent mechanical air quality monitoring of PM1, PM2.5, PM10 and ozone
in or near smoke sensitive areas including residential areas like Incline Village, NV as well during
agency created smoke generation affecting Washoe County portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin.







Page 2 of 6 


This lack of avoidance on the part of Washoe County Health District to provide a very basic and 
reasonable requirement that burn agencies provide mechanical smoke monitoring to help 
adequately monitor, measure and control public health exposure will continue to degrade our air 
quality, continue to release unnecessary dangerous and massive amounts of unhealthy PM1, PM2.5, 
PM10 and carcinogenic Carbon Black, all resulting in the purposeful release of 1000’s of tons of 
harmful carbon within Washoe County, Washoe Valley and the Washoe County Portion of the  Lake 
Tahoe Basin.  


 
• Washoe County Health District’s stated goals within your proposed Smoke Management plan are 


inadequate and heavily weighted in favor of Burn Agency Managers degradation of public health 
when burning in or near smoke sensitive areas.  
 
As an example, the Washoe County Air Management District proposed Smoke Management Plan 
states two goals and two goals only (as follows):  
 
1) “to allow fire to function, as nearly as possible, in its natural role in maintaining healthy 
wildland ecosystem’s, and  
 
2) “to protect public health and welfare by mitigating the impacts of smoke on air quality and 
visibility”  


 
These two stated goals are interesting since the burning of slash piles has absolutely nothing to do 
with “allowing fire to function, as nearly as possible, in its “natural” role in maintaining wildland 
ecosystems”. 
 
A third goal should be added as a first line to the existing stated two goals of the Districts proposed 
Smoke Management Plan as follows: “To protect the public from EPA pollution exceedance levels by 
prioritizing human air quality health over forest health whenever possible”. Please add this language 
to your stated goals. 


 
The Washoe County Health District has failed to recognize that the subjective burning of slash piles, 
in or near smoke sensitive areas or not, including residential and recreational areas like Incline 
Village and the Washoe County portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin are not subject to the EPA 
“Exceptional Event” rule and are easily preventable and controllable. 
 
Additionally, the subjective burning of slash piles, especially in or near smoke sensitive areas where 
roadways and access provides for easy alternatives like chipping and removal (especially in 
residential and business parcels less than 5 acres in size) do not fall within your first stated Smoke 
Management Plan goal and is actually contrary to your goal of:…… “Allowing fire to function, as 
nearly as possible, in its natural role in maintaining healthy wildland ecosystems”…….Subjective 
Agency Burning of slash piles, especially those within or near smoke sensitive areas including 
residential areas like Incline Village, NV and the Lake Tahoe Basin, have nothing to do with allowing 
fire to function “in it’s natural role” and does not fit the often utilized theoretical concept of re-
introducing a regimen of fire for forest health purposes. 


 
There is nothing natural about the subjective agency burning of slash piles especially in or 
near smoke sensitive areas, including recreation areas, scenic byways including neighborhoods like 
Incline Village, Nv. Once burned, this dangerous process promotes unhealthy extension of 
smoldering pollution for days and sometimes weeks polluting our communities including Incline 







Page 3 of 6 


Village, NV, and the Lake Tahoe Basin. The agency burning of these slash piles are the number 1 
Lake Tahoe Basin source polluter along with agency created and purposely grown managed burns. 
 
Further, the proposed Regulation and Smoke Management Plan completely avoids any discussion of 
the repeated and very real long and short term pollution health impacts from unmonitored extended 
burn down of agency created slash piles inside Washoe County and particularly Incline Village, Nv 
and Washoe County portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin.  
 
This avoidance and failure on the part of the Washoe County Health District to acknowledge natural 
Lake Tahoe Basin inversion layering and the adverse effects on public health during and after pile 
burning burn down seems purposeful and seems to be a further indication of continued bias favoring 
Burn Agency Managers created slash pile burning pollution in or near sensitive areas over public 
health.  
 
This type of agency burn down pollution abuse continues regularly in the Lake Tahoe basin without 
adequate regulation, required mechanical monitoring, data or any real accountability. Please ban 
agency created slash pile burning in Washoe County in or near Smoke Sensitive areas. If the forest 
can be chipped and piled safely and effectively by land management agencies, then most assuredly 
slash can be removed or chipped safely and effectively with fiscal planning, safety planning 
leadership and the acknowledgement that current slash pile burning is an unacceptable form of 
pollution and a dangerous choice.  
 
Additionally, as far as forest health is concerned, the NWCG Smoke Management Guide for 
Prescribed Fires, which the proposed Smoke Management Plan references, states that “the burning 
of piles and windrows also causes temperature extremes in the soils directly underneath (the 
burn) and can sterilize soil. If fuels in piles or windrows are wet or mixed with dirt, extended 
smoldering can result in residual smoke problems…..Note: This is especially true in the Lake Tahoe 
Basin. 


 
A Burn Agency Managers decision to burn slash piles after a forest area has been thinned is simply a 
subjective pollution and carbon introducing choice pure and simple, not natural, not an 
exceptional event and easily preventable and controllable with options. This choice is often made 
without considering the priority of public health, the damaging effects of releasing tons of 
particulate carbon over what amounts to be a budgetary consideration to be able to cheaply pollute 
rather than spending the money and providing necessary alternative to do what is right. 


 
In order then to accomplish the second stated goal of the Washoe County Health District proposed 
smoke management plan i.e. “to protect public health and welfare by mitigating the impacts of 
smoke on air quality and visibility” ….please include in your proposed regulations that slash pile 
burning not be considered prescribed burning “for the purpose of allowing fire to function, as nearly 
as possible, in its natural role in maintaining healthy wildland ecosystems”. And that slash pile 
burning either be banned or not be allowed within two miles of any smoke sensitive area and that 
“suppression” of out of control slash pile burning takes place in an aggressive and decisive manner 
and USFS MIST techniques not be considered as “suppression”.  
 
We only need to look at the recent escaped Caples wildfire slash pile burning debacle in El Dorado 
County to validate the unacceptable results driven by the incompetent and dangerous “must burn”, 
“just burn”, “just let it burn” mindset of our El Dorado County burn agencies and Air Quality District. 
This tragic outcome, aided and abetted by weak and weakly enforced El Dorado County Air Pollution 
regulations continued to reveal a dangerous outcome promoted by theory and regulatory weakness. 







Page 4 of 6 


The massive pollution from this “out of control” slash burning project heavily affected the Lake 
Tahoe Basin and Nevada. 
 
Public records indicate that the firebombed burn piles resulted in USFS incompetent non 
responsibility immunity attitude memos like this one…… “Looks like the burn piles made a run last 
night”. This line speaks volumes in helping to define an out of control mindset of non-responsibility 
and accountability on the part of our “Must Burn”, “Just Burn”, and “Just Let It Burn” mindset of 
many of our burn agencies. 
 
The same mindset by the way, that gave us the tragic Little Valley catastrophe and the recent 
“Baseball” fire last month on February 25, 2020 that took place on the Covelo Ranger District of the 
Mendocino National Forest caused by a recent smoldering “pile burn” on the Baseball prescribed 
Fire Project. 


 
The proposed Washoe County Health District regulations as written do not in any way provide for a 
the prevention of a similar very real potential pile burning incident here in Washoe County.  
 
The Washoe County Health District proposed regulations and Smoke Management Plan do not 
provide for adequate 24 hour visual specific monitoring, 24 hour mechanical air monitoring, size and 
scope limitations (i.e. Little Valley deficiencies) or suppression protection resource requirements 
needed to protect the public from the Burn Agency Managers reckless impunity mindset we are 
living with today.  
 
To further demonstrate the Washoe County Health District regulatory shaped bias in favor of agency 
burning over public health, your regulations are however quick to give the burn agencies a pass to 
allow burn agencies to utilize Minimal Impact Suppression Tactics (MIST) as part of fire “suppression” 
by allowing natural barriers to be utilized during fire suppression rather than aggressive suppression 
action. We all know that MIST activities prolong smoldering prolong the fire size and burn time and 
create extensive additional dangerous regional pollution that would not have otherwise occurred 
with aggressive fire suppression.  Yet, the Health Districts proposed Smoke Management Plan 
promotes this behavior. 
 


• Additionally and unbelievably, in favor of the burn agencies agenda over public health and safety, 
the Washoe County Health District proposed regulations and Smoke Management Plan allow the 
Prescribed Burn Permit time period to run up to 18 months. This is purely unconscionable and 
diminishes any real control or accountability on the part of burn agencies or regulators over the 
scope and scale of near term agency burns created burns simply based on changing conditions and 
environments. The public expects this type of reasonable and responsible planning and 
accountability. 
 
Please shorten your Prescribed Burn Permit language which now favors Burn Agency Managers 
“must burn” agendas In favor of public health and safety, to a six month to a one year Prescribed 
Burn Permit with a 10 day pre burn re-assessment addendum, that each burn agency should 
complete within 10 days. The 10 day advanced burn re-assessment for any agency created planned 
burn should contain written limitations regarding specific no go conditions, 24 hr mechanical and 
visual smoke monitoring, an updated SMP, specific discussions for prevention of escaped fire like 
slope topography for each burn project including specifics in burn size amounts tonnage, adequate 
24 hr fire suppression resource standby as well as potential changing conditions.  
 







Page 5 of 6 


During a recent public address to a governing body here in Washoe County a fire official indicated on 
the record something to effect that “We can’t do anything (during a fire) about slope and wind” 
conditions. If that is true, considering the potential of agency escaped burns, in the name of common 
sense public safety, why wouldn’t we simply update the agency burn permit concerning monitoring 
and escaped fire resource preparedness during any agency created burn. If Washoe County Health 
District is going to address and bless fire tactics like MIST to support the burn agency managers 
“Must Burn” agenda, you may be negligent in your responsibilities not to address preparedness 
during near term upcoming agency created burns. 


 
• Language needs to be added and strengthened in the proposed Prescribed Burn Regulation and 


Smoke Management Plan that agency responsibility to ensure reasonable, timely and adequate 
advanced notification of potentially smoke impacted residential neighborhoods/areas and other 
smoke sensitive sites before a prescribed burn is successfully carried out. 


 
• More space and emphasis on prescribed burning alternatives should be included in the proposed 


Burn Permit Application. Prescribed Burn agencies must provide an in depth record their reason(s) 
for choosing burning over other alternatives as part of their burn plan, permit application or Smoke 
Management Plan. 
 


• Prescribed burn agencies shall be specifically required to accurately and mechanically monitor and 
minimize smoke impact emissions that may potentially impact any smoke sensitive areas. Each land 
manager will apply the best and latest technology real time smoke management mechanical air 
monitoring and smoke/emission reduction techniques. 


 
• A minimum of two Washoe County Air Management Division approved mechanical air monitors or 


portable mechanical air monitors that have the capability to accurately measure PM1, PM10 and 
PM2.5 emissions in real and transparent time from prescribed burns shall be deployed in downwind 
proximity of all prescribed burn sites potentially causing smoke impacts to any smoke sensitive 
areas and shall be present and actively operational from the time of prescribed burn ignition and 
until burndown is complete. 


 
a.   Planned locations of the approved mechanical air monitors shall be included in and as part 


of the approved agency prescribed burn Smoke Management Plan and fire control agency 
representatives shall continually observe and record smoke impacts and immediately 
report those smoke impacts to the Washoe County Air Quality Control Officer as soon as 
possible. 


 
b.    If during agency prescribed burn operations including burndown, the direction of planned 


prescribed burn smoke emissions shifts away from the original smoke management plan 
projected locations, the required portable mechanical smoke monitors will be immediately 
re-positioned in anticipation of gathering more accurate smoke emission data in the 
interest of residential neighborhood/area and other smoke sensitive site public health and 
safety. 


 
c.   Prescribed burn agencies shall perform good faith efforts to deploy the approved portable 


mechanical air monitors during prescribed burns potentially affecting smoke sensitive 
areas in order to gather real time accurate smoke emissions data in the interest of public 
health and safety. 


 
• Prescribed burn agencies shall make a reasonable and good faith effort to notify the public 







Page 6 of 6 


within 1 mile of all plan prescribed burns within 24 hr of planned ignition. Simply placing 
prescribed burn signs on roadways is to be considered as only one aspect of public notification 
but does not alone satisfy a reasonable and good faith effort to make public notifications. 


 
• And finally the mechanism for the public to easily access and completely described the impact 


from Burn Agency created smoke and carbon pollution is inadequate and undermines the 
ability of the public to make accurate smoke pollution complaints. I have attached a sample 
Citizen EZ Smoke Pollution Complaint for Washoe County. I understand that there are planned 
mechanism to distribute this form far and wide on Social Media to our fellow citizens to help 
describe and express the adverse impact of agency generated unhealthful smoke pollution, 
including those who must commute and travel on foot. 


 
Thank you for considering these prudent and very reasonable additions to your proposed February 7, 2020 
draft. Prescribed Burn regulation 040.035 and Smoke Management Plan in the interest of prioritizing public 
heath over Agency Burn Managers “must burn”, “just burn” “just let it burn” agendas. 
 
Doug Flaherty 
Resident 
Incline Village, NV 
TahoeBlue365@gmail.com 







list you may have concerning Washoe County prescribed
burning discussions, meetings or notifications concerning this
topic going forward.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

 

Sincerely

Doug Flaherty

Resident

774 Mays Blvd 10-691

Incline Village, NV 89451



Page 1 of 6 

To: Daniel Inouye, Branch Chief,  

KeepitClean@Washoe.County.US 

Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management Division 
1001 East 9th Street, B-171 
Reno, NV 89512 

Comments Due By Close of Business Today 3/2/2020 

RE: Comments regarding Washoe County Proposed Revision of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality 
Management, Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning (Revised from 040.035 Open Fires) and the Draft 
Washoe County Smoke Management Plan both watermarked draft and both dated February 7, 2020 

Dear Washoe County AQMD, 

Thank you for the revised copy of the Washoe County Health District proposed Prescribed Burn Regulation 
and Smoke Management Plan draft both watermark dated February 7, 2020. 

These comments are being provided by me as a resident of Incline Village, NV and as a recreational 
enthusiast in and around Washoe County, NV and the Lake Tahoe Basin. 

While I understand and appreciate your efforts regarding the complicated issues surrounding Burn Agency 
Managers created smoke management, unfortunately, the Washoe County Health District proposed Air 
Quality Regulation and Smoke Management Plan draft as written, is heavily weighted in favor of prioritizing 
government Burn Agency Managers created pollution and carbon production over the health and safety of 
our citizens here in Washoe County.  

Unfortunately, the Washoe County Health District proposed Prescribed Burn and Smoke Management Plan 
regulations as written fall short when comes to protecting our health and clean air against unfortunate 
unhealthy agency created smoke generation as follows: 

• Washoe County Health District and public Burn Agency Managers have known for quite some time
that wildland fire smoke in any amount, including smoke from agency created pile burning contains
dangerous levels of PM1. You are aware that PM1 is proven to be even more invasive and dangerous
than PM 2.5 and PM10. Yet, the Washoe County Health District refuses to provide adequate PM1
mechanical government monitors throughout Washoe County including Incline Village, NV. The
proposed documents as written are void of any requirements that agencies must educate the public
on the heightened health dangers of PM1 during agency created burning and provide adequate, real
time mechanical smoke monitoring especially when burning in or near smoke sensitive areas
including residential areas like Incline Village, NV and the Washoe County portions of the Lake Tahoe
Basin.

The proposed “paper tiger” Regulation and Smoke Management Plan language purposely avoids
discussion regarding any specific requirement that would require burn agencies to provide even the
most basic adequate and prudent mechanical air quality monitoring of PM1, PM2.5, PM10 and ozone
in or near smoke sensitive areas including residential areas like Incline Village, NV as well during
agency created smoke generation affecting Washoe County portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin.



Page 2 of 6 

This lack of avoidance on the part of Washoe County Health District to provide a very basic and 
reasonable requirement that burn agencies provide mechanical smoke monitoring to help 
adequately monitor, measure and control public health exposure will continue to degrade our air 
quality, continue to release unnecessary dangerous and massive amounts of unhealthy PM1, PM2.5, 
PM10 and carcinogenic Carbon Black, all resulting in the purposeful release of 1000’s of tons of 
harmful carbon within Washoe County, Washoe Valley and the Washoe County Portion of the  Lake 
Tahoe Basin.  

 
• Washoe County Health District’s stated goals within your proposed Smoke Management plan are 

inadequate and heavily weighted in favor of Burn Agency Managers degradation of public health 
when burning in or near smoke sensitive areas.  
 
As an example, the Washoe County Air Management District proposed Smoke Management Plan 
states two goals and two goals only (as follows):  
 
1) “to allow fire to function, as nearly as possible, in its natural role in maintaining healthy 
wildland ecosystem’s, and  
 
2) “to protect public health and welfare by mitigating the impacts of smoke on air quality and 
visibility”  

 
These two stated goals are interesting since the burning of slash piles has absolutely nothing to do 
with “allowing fire to function, as nearly as possible, in its “natural” role in maintaining wildland 
ecosystems”. 
 
A third goal should be added as a first line to the existing stated two goals of the Districts proposed 
Smoke Management Plan as follows: “To protect the public from EPA pollution exceedance levels by 
prioritizing human air quality health over forest health whenever possible”. Please add this language 
to your stated goals. 

 
The Washoe County Health District has failed to recognize that the subjective burning of slash piles, 
in or near smoke sensitive areas or not, including residential and recreational areas like Incline 
Village and the Washoe County portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin are not subject to the EPA 
“Exceptional Event” rule and are easily preventable and controllable. 
 
Additionally, the subjective burning of slash piles, especially in or near smoke sensitive areas where 
roadways and access provides for easy alternatives like chipping and removal (especially in 
residential and business parcels less than 5 acres in size) do not fall within your first stated Smoke 
Management Plan goal and is actually contrary to your goal of:…… “Allowing fire to function, as 
nearly as possible, in its natural role in maintaining healthy wildland ecosystems”…….Subjective 
Agency Burning of slash piles, especially those within or near smoke sensitive areas including 
residential areas like Incline Village, NV and the Lake Tahoe Basin, have nothing to do with allowing 
fire to function “in it’s natural role” and does not fit the often utilized theoretical concept of re-
introducing a regimen of fire for forest health purposes. 

 
There is nothing natural about the subjective agency burning of slash piles especially in or 
near smoke sensitive areas, including recreation areas, scenic byways including neighborhoods like 
Incline Village, Nv. Once burned, this dangerous process promotes unhealthy extension of 
smoldering pollution for days and sometimes weeks polluting our communities including Incline 



Page 3 of 6 

Village, NV, and the Lake Tahoe Basin. The agency burning of these slash piles are the number 1 
Lake Tahoe Basin source polluter along with agency created and purposely grown managed burns. 

Further, the proposed Regulation and Smoke Management Plan completely avoids any discussion of 
the repeated and very real long and short term pollution health impacts from unmonitored extended 
burn down of agency created slash piles inside Washoe County and particularly Incline Village, Nv 
and Washoe County portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin.  

This avoidance and failure on the part of the Washoe County Health District to acknowledge natural 
Lake Tahoe Basin inversion layering and the adverse effects on public health during and after pile 
burning burn down seems purposeful and seems to be a further indication of continued bias favoring 
Burn Agency Managers created slash pile burning pollution in or near sensitive areas over public 
health.  

This type of agency burn down pollution abuse continues regularly in the Lake Tahoe basin without 
adequate regulation, required mechanical monitoring, data or any real accountability. Please ban 
agency created slash pile burning in Washoe County in or near Smoke Sensitive areas. If the forest 
can be chipped and piled safely and effectively by land management agencies, then most assuredly 
slash can be removed or chipped safely and effectively with fiscal planning, safety planning 
leadership and the acknowledgement that current slash pile burning is an unacceptable form of 
pollution and a dangerous choice.  

Additionally, as far as forest health is concerned, the NWCG Smoke Management Guide for 
Prescribed Fires, which the proposed Smoke Management Plan references, states that “the burning 
of piles and windrows also causes temperature extremes in the soils directly underneath (the 
burn) and can sterilize soil. If fuels in piles or windrows are wet or mixed with dirt, extended 
smoldering can result in residual smoke problems…..Note: This is especially true in the Lake Tahoe 
Basin. 

A Burn Agency Managers decision to burn slash piles after a forest area has been thinned is simply a 
subjective pollution and carbon introducing choice pure and simple, not natural, not an 
exceptional event and easily preventable and controllable with options. This choice is often made 
without considering the priority of public health, the damaging effects of releasing tons of 
particulate carbon over what amounts to be a budgetary consideration to be able to cheaply pollute 
rather than spending the money and providing necessary alternative to do what is right. 

In order then to accomplish the second stated goal of the Washoe County Health District proposed 
smoke management plan i.e. “to protect public health and welfare by mitigating the impacts of 
smoke on air quality and visibility” ….please include in your proposed regulations that slash pile 
burning not be considered prescribed burning “for the purpose of allowing fire to function, as nearly 
as possible, in its natural role in maintaining healthy wildland ecosystems”. And that slash pile 
burning either be banned or not be allowed within two miles of any smoke sensitive area and that 
“suppression” of out of control slash pile burning takes place in an aggressive and decisive manner 
and USFS MIST techniques not be considered as “suppression”.  

We only need to look at the recent escaped Caples wildfire slash pile burning debacle in El Dorado 
County to validate the unacceptable results driven by the incompetent and dangerous “must burn”, 
“just burn”, “just let it burn” mindset of our El Dorado County burn agencies and Air Quality District. 
This tragic outcome, aided and abetted by weak and weakly enforced El Dorado County Air Pollution 
regulations continued to reveal a dangerous outcome promoted by theory and regulatory weakness. 



Page 4 of 6 

The massive pollution from this “out of control” slash burning project heavily affected the Lake 
Tahoe Basin and Nevada. 
 
Public records indicate that the firebombed burn piles resulted in USFS incompetent non 
responsibility immunity attitude memos like this one…… “Looks like the burn piles made a run last 
night”. This line speaks volumes in helping to define an out of control mindset of non-responsibility 
and accountability on the part of our “Must Burn”, “Just Burn”, and “Just Let It Burn” mindset of 
many of our burn agencies. 
 
The same mindset by the way, that gave us the tragic Little Valley catastrophe and the recent 
“Baseball” fire last month on February 25, 2020 that took place on the Covelo Ranger District of the 
Mendocino National Forest caused by a recent smoldering “pile burn” on the Baseball prescribed 
Fire Project. 

 
The proposed Washoe County Health District regulations as written do not in any way provide for a 
the prevention of a similar very real potential pile burning incident here in Washoe County.  
 
The Washoe County Health District proposed regulations and Smoke Management Plan do not 
provide for adequate 24 hour visual specific monitoring, 24 hour mechanical air monitoring, size and 
scope limitations (i.e. Little Valley deficiencies) or suppression protection resource requirements 
needed to protect the public from the Burn Agency Managers reckless impunity mindset we are 
living with today.  
 
To further demonstrate the Washoe County Health District regulatory shaped bias in favor of agency 
burning over public health, your regulations are however quick to give the burn agencies a pass to 
allow burn agencies to utilize Minimal Impact Suppression Tactics (MIST) as part of fire “suppression” 
by allowing natural barriers to be utilized during fire suppression rather than aggressive suppression 
action. We all know that MIST activities prolong smoldering prolong the fire size and burn time and 
create extensive additional dangerous regional pollution that would not have otherwise occurred 
with aggressive fire suppression.  Yet, the Health Districts proposed Smoke Management Plan 
promotes this behavior. 
 

• Additionally and unbelievably, in favor of the burn agencies agenda over public health and safety, 
the Washoe County Health District proposed regulations and Smoke Management Plan allow the 
Prescribed Burn Permit time period to run up to 18 months. This is purely unconscionable and 
diminishes any real control or accountability on the part of burn agencies or regulators over the 
scope and scale of near term agency burns created burns simply based on changing conditions and 
environments. The public expects this type of reasonable and responsible planning and 
accountability. 
 
Please shorten your Prescribed Burn Permit language which now favors Burn Agency Managers 
“must burn” agendas In favor of public health and safety, to a six month to a one year Prescribed 
Burn Permit with a 10 day pre burn re-assessment addendum, that each burn agency should 
complete within 10 days. The 10 day advanced burn re-assessment for any agency created planned 
burn should contain written limitations regarding specific no go conditions, 24 hr mechanical and 
visual smoke monitoring, an updated SMP, specific discussions for prevention of escaped fire like 
slope topography for each burn project including specifics in burn size amounts tonnage, adequate 
24 hr fire suppression resource standby as well as potential changing conditions.  
 



Page 5 of 6 

During a recent public address to a governing body here in Washoe County a fire official indicated on 
the record something to effect that “We can’t do anything (during a fire) about slope and wind” 
conditions. If that is true, considering the potential of agency escaped burns, in the name of common 
sense public safety, why wouldn’t we simply update the agency burn permit concerning monitoring 
and escaped fire resource preparedness during any agency created burn. If Washoe County Health 
District is going to address and bless fire tactics like MIST to support the burn agency managers 
“Must Burn” agenda, you may be negligent in your responsibilities not to address preparedness 
during near term upcoming agency created burns. 

 
• Language needs to be added and strengthened in the proposed Prescribed Burn Regulation and 

Smoke Management Plan that agency responsibility to ensure reasonable, timely and adequate 
advanced notification of potentially smoke impacted residential neighborhoods/areas and other 
smoke sensitive sites before a prescribed burn is successfully carried out. 

 
• More space and emphasis on prescribed burning alternatives should be included in the proposed 

Burn Permit Application. Prescribed Burn agencies must provide an in depth record their reason(s) 
for choosing burning over other alternatives as part of their burn plan, permit application or Smoke 
Management Plan. 
 

• Prescribed burn agencies shall be specifically required to accurately and mechanically monitor and 
minimize smoke impact emissions that may potentially impact any smoke sensitive areas. Each land 
manager will apply the best and latest technology real time smoke management mechanical air 
monitoring and smoke/emission reduction techniques. 

 
• A minimum of two Washoe County Air Management Division approved mechanical air monitors or 

portable mechanical air monitors that have the capability to accurately measure PM1, PM10 and 
PM2.5 emissions in real and transparent time from prescribed burns shall be deployed in downwind 
proximity of all prescribed burn sites potentially causing smoke impacts to any smoke sensitive 
areas and shall be present and actively operational from the time of prescribed burn ignition and 
until burndown is complete. 

 
a.   Planned locations of the approved mechanical air monitors shall be included in and as part 

of the approved agency prescribed burn Smoke Management Plan and fire control agency 
representatives shall continually observe and record smoke impacts and immediately 
report those smoke impacts to the Washoe County Air Quality Control Officer as soon as 
possible. 

 
b.    If during agency prescribed burn operations including burndown, the direction of planned 

prescribed burn smoke emissions shifts away from the original smoke management plan 
projected locations, the required portable mechanical smoke monitors will be immediately 
re-positioned in anticipation of gathering more accurate smoke emission data in the 
interest of residential neighborhood/area and other smoke sensitive site public health and 
safety. 

 
c.   Prescribed burn agencies shall perform good faith efforts to deploy the approved portable 

mechanical air monitors during prescribed burns potentially affecting smoke sensitive 
areas in order to gather real time accurate smoke emissions data in the interest of public 
health and safety. 

 
• Prescribed burn agencies shall make a reasonable and good faith effort to notify the public 



Page 6 of 6 

within 1 mile of all plan prescribed burns within 24 hr of planned ignition. Simply placing 
prescribed burn signs on roadways is to be considered as only one aspect of public notification 
but does not alone satisfy a reasonable and good faith effort to make public notifications. 

 
• And finally the mechanism for the public to easily access and completely described the impact 

from Burn Agency created smoke and carbon pollution is inadequate and undermines the 
ability of the public to make accurate smoke pollution complaints. I have attached a sample 
Citizen EZ Smoke Pollution Complaint for Washoe County. I understand that there are planned 
mechanism to distribute this form far and wide on Social Media to our fellow citizens to help 
describe and express the adverse impact of agency generated unhealthful smoke pollution, 
including those who must commute and travel on foot. 

 
Thank you for considering these prudent and very reasonable additions to your proposed February 7, 2020 
draft. Prescribed Burn regulation 040.035 and Smoke Management Plan in the interest of prioritizing public 
heath over Agency Burn Managers “must burn”, “just burn” “just let it burn” agendas. 
 
Doug Flaherty 
Resident 
Incline Village, NV 
TahoeBlue365@gmail.com 



SMOKE POLLUTION COMPLAINT 
TO 

WASHOE COUNTY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(775) 784-7200 (24 hrs per day)

FAX (775) 784-7225
KeepItClean@washoecounty.us 

Dear Washoe County Air Quality Management Officer: 

As you know, Burn Agencies are required to comply with the Clean Air Act even during prescribed burn operations. 

Valid smoke pollution complaints are Important to protect our health and our families health from dangerous PM1, 
PM2.5 and PM10 smoke emissions. Please help protect our health. 

Please consider this a formal smoke emission air pollution complaint in connection with the burning/smoldering that 
is being conducted, or has recently been conducted in the vicinity of (check all that apply): 

Washoe Valley Mt Rose Hwy North Valleys 

Reno Sand Harbor Other location: 

Northern Washoe County Incline Village / Crystal Bay 

Provide additional location information or comments: 

The smoke is impacting and/or polluting (check all that apply): 

My Health / My families health Residential neighborhoods 

Bus stops Businesses  

Public streets, roadway or highways Portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin 

Schools 

Recreation or recreation events

My pets, livestock or wildlife

I am having a difficult time breathing. 

The smoke is preventing me from going outside or recreating. 

I am a COPD, heart lung, Asthma patient or disabled and the smoke is making it difficult or painful to breath. 

The smoke has gotten into my house even though my windows are closed. 

I do not have a car. I must walk or bicycle wherever I go. The smoke is making it hard for me to breathe, travel to my job, 
walk my kids to school, go to the store, or perform other daily tasks. 

I have attached a photograph(s) I am unable to attach a photograph 

Name Date (MM/DD/YYYY) Phone Email Address 

Street address or PO Box  City/Zip Code 

Please ensure that an Air Quality Notice of Violation is issued to the burn agency or persons responsible for this 
pollution/smoke emission event if they are found to be creating unhealthful smoke impacts to persons. Please keep 
me informed of the outcome of my formal smoke/pollution complaint. Please do not try to dissuade me that this 
is just a temporary prescribed burn and it’s just something we need to live with. The human lung is not smoke 
adapted. We have a right to Clean Air. 



Comments on: 040.037 PRESCRIBED BURNING (2/7/20 draft) 

By: Anna Higgins, Resource Management Officer, Nevada Division of Forestry 

Section C 2. What about soil, other debris, and/or organic matter that may be pushed 
into burn piles during logging operations?  

Section D.1 – what does ‘consider’ cover? 

Section E.2 – Definition of ‘favorable air dispersion conditions’?  

Section E.2 – If the ‘Control Officer’ is adding ‘conditions’ to the burn plan is that then 
altering the burn plan? A burn plan is a legal document that sets the parameters for 
burning conditions as approved by the burn plan preparer, the agency administrator, 
and the technical reviewer. The ‘Control Officer’ is not a signature of an approved burn 
plan. Also, who is the ‘Control Officer’? 

Section E.3 – Is there a time limit for the ‘Control Officer’ to request information related 
to the burn plan application? 

Section E.4 – 2 weeks seems like a lengthy time to get a burn permit approved as 
NDEP sometimes approves a permit within 1 day & burn conditions may change 
drastically in 2 weeks.  

Section E.5.a – ‘Permits will not be valid during an air pollution alert, warning, or 
emergency.’ What is the geographic range/area for the air pollution alert, warning, or 
emergency? When Reno has degraded air quality due to an inversion that should not 
affect prescribed burn operations in Lake Tahoe or northern Washoe County, especially 
if the areas outside of Reno have good dispersion conditions. 

Section E.5.e – ‘All prescribed burn operations shall be subject to inspection by the 
Control Officer’ – Can a weekend burn occur if the ‘Control Officer’ is not available to 
inspect the operations? The ‘Control Officer’ may need to be escorted by a qualified 
firefighter during operations and this should be scheduled in advance of the prescribed 
burn. 

 

 









Proposed Revisions to District Board of Health 
Regulations Governing Air Quality Management 

Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning

February 19, 2020

Daniel Inouye
Monitoring and Planning Branch Chief

&
Julie Hunter

Senior Air Quality Specialist 



040.037 Prescribed Burning
• Revised from 040.035 Open Fire Regulation (Section E)

– Prescribed burning is allowed in forested areas during 
favorable air dispersion conditions

– A prescribed burn permit shall be required for all 
prescribed burns

– Permits may be issued to local fire control authorities or 
managers of the Forest Service, BLM, and NDF for lands 
under their control and jurisdiction

– The smoke management portion of the burn prescription 
shall be reviewed and conditions set to limit air quality 
impacts

– Applications for a prescribed burn permit and burn plan 
must be submitted at least 10 days prior to the burn



040.037 Prescribed Burning
• Agencies shall consider reasonable alternatives 
• Regulations applicable to the following agencies

– Divisions of federal, state and local fire control agencies
– Divisions of local municipalities
– Canal and irrigation companies

• Prescribed burning shall comply with the Division’s 
Smoke Management Program

• A “smoke management” permit must be obtained for 
all prescribed burns

• Prescribed burns must follow the Smoke Management 
Permit Conditions



Revision Summary

• Separated from Open Fires (040.035)
• Applies to federal, state, local fire control 

agencies, local municipalities, and canal and 
irrigation companies

• Compliance with Smoke Management 
Program

• Obtain a “Smoke Management” permit 
(previously called “prescribed burning”)

• Follow Smoke Management Permit conditions



What’s next?

• Public comments – Business Impact Statement
• Business Impact Statement

– District Board of Health March 26, 2020

• Adoption of revised regulation
– District Board of Health April 23, 2020



Discussion and Questions

Contact Information:
Daniel Inouye

Monitoring and Planning Branch Chief
1001 E. 9th Street, B171

dinouye@washoecounty.us
(775) 784-7214

Revised Regulation: OurCleanAir.com 



Proposed Revisions to District Board of Health 
Regulations Governing Air Quality Management 

Section 040.037 Prescribed Burning

January 15, 2020

Daniel Inouye
Monitoring and Planning Branch Chief

&
Julie Hunter

Senior Air Quality Specialist 



040.037 Prescribed Burning
• Revised from 040.035 Open Fire Regulation (Section E)

– Prescribed burning is allowed in forested areas during
favorable air dispersion conditions

– A prescribed burn permit shall be required for all
prescribed burns

– Permits may be issued to local fire control authorities or
managers of the Forest Service, BLM, and NDF for lands
under their control and jurisdiction

– The smoke management portion of the burn prescription
shall be reviewed and conditions set to limit air quality
impacts

– Applications for a prescribed burn permit and burn plan
must be submitted at least 10 days prior to the burn



040.037 Prescribed Burning
• Agencies shall consider reasonable alternatives 
• Regulations applicable to the following agencies

– Divisions of federal, state and local fire control agencies
– Divisions of local municipalities
– Canal and irrigation companies

• Prescribed burning shall comply with the Division’s 
Smoke Management Program

• A “smoke management” permit must be obtained for 
all prescribed burns

• Prescribed burns must follow the Smoke Management 
Permit Conditions



Revision Summary

• Separated from Open Fires (040.035)
• Applies to federal, state, local fire control 

agencies, local municipalities, and canal and 
irrigation companies

• Compliance with Smoke Management 
Program

• Obtain a “Smoke Management” permit 
(previously called “prescribed burning”)

• Follow Smoke Management Permit conditions



What’s next?

• Public comments – Business Impact Statement
• Business Impact Statement

– District Board of Health February 27, 2020

• Adoption of revised regulation
– District Board of Health March 26, 2020



Discussion and Questions

Contact Information:
Daniel Inouye

Monitoring and Planning Branch Chief
1001 E. 9th Street, B171

dinouye@washoecounty.us
(775) 784-7214

Revised Regulation: OurCleanAir.com 



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Office: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  March 26, 2020 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 

 775-328-2644; calbee@washoecounty.us 
Francisco Vega, P.E., Division Director 
775-784-7211; fvega@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer  
775-328-2644; kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible direction regarding potential deferral of annual renewal fee 
collection for businesses impacted by the COVID-19 emergency for the 
Environmental Health Services and Air Quality Management Divisions. 

SUMMARY 

The Environmental Health Services Division and the Air Quality Management Division is requesting 
the District Board of Health (Board) consider deferral of annual renewal fee collection for businesses  
impacted by the COVID-19 emergency. The intent of this is to assist business owners who have been 
or may be negatively impacted by this emergency. 

District Health Strategic Priorities supported by this item:  

2. Healthy Environment:  Create a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy
everything Washoe County has to offer.

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action. 
BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County area has been affected by the COVID-19 emergency. The full effects of this 
emergency have yet to be seen by local businesses. As a part of being prepared for the possible 
economic impacts on businesses staff is requesting the Board give direction regarding potential 
deferral of annual renewal fees. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8

CA

mailto:calbee@washoecounty.us
mailto:fvega@washoecounty.us
mailto:kdick@washoecounty.us


Subject:  DBOH consideration deferral of annual renewal fee collection 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

FISCAL IMPACT   
Should the Board give direction to defer fees, the result would be a temporary loss of revenue. Most of 
this revenue would be collected at a later date. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board provide direction to both the Environmental Health Services and Air 
Quality Management Divisions regarding potential deferral of annual renewal fee collection for 
businesses impacted by the COVID-19 emergency for some period of time.  The Board should consider 
what period of time they believe is appropriate.  It is recommended to consider a 60-day deferral at this 
point in time.   
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with Staff’s recommendation, the motion would be: 
“Move to allow the deferral of annual renewal fee collection [for period of time proposed] for 
businesses impacted by the COVID-19 Emergency for both the Environmental Health Services and 
Air Quality Management Divisions.” 
 
 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B-171, Reno, Nevada 89512 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   OurCleanAir.com 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Air Quality Management 
Division Director Staff Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 26, 2020 

DATE: March 26, 2020 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Francisco Vega, P.E., Division Director 

775-784-7211; fvega@washoecounty.us
SUBJECT: Program Update – EPA Comments, RENOvation, Divisional Update, Program 

Reports, Monitoring and Planning, Permitting and Enforcement 

1. Program Update

a. Recently, the Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) submitted comments on the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) Advanced Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking (ANPRM) “Control of Air Pollution from New Motor Vehicles: Heavy-Duty
Engine Standards,”.   On-road motor vehicles, including heavy-duty trucks, represent the
largest category of NOx emissions in Washoe County.  Freight/goods movement by
heavy-duty trucks is a major factor in Northern Nevada’s economy.  Washoe County is
home to many warehouses and distribution centers that generate heavy-duty truck trips.
Just east of Reno/Sparks is the world’s largest industrial center (Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center) which also generates heavy-duty truck trips.  In addition, Interstate-80 is the
primary east/west transportation corridor for goods moving through the Port of Oakland
in California, generating even more heavy-duty truck trips through the Reno/Sparks area.
In summary, on-road heavy-duty trucks are a large category of ozone precursor emissions
and are outside the jurisdiction of the AQMD.  As such, the AQMD strongly supports
EPA’s effort with the Cleaner Trucks Initiative to establish new emission standards for
NOx and other pollutants for highway heavy-duty trucks and engines.

The AQMD has also been heavily involved in the City of Reno’s RENOvation Zoning
Code Update.  The AQMD has presented information and provided comment at Reno
City Council meetings in regard to the importance of incorporating Ozone Advance and
sustainability measures into the code.  In addition, the AQMD has participated in the
technical working group meetings.  Having these sustainability measures written into
code is important in addressing the county’s ozone pollution issue.

Francisco Vega, P.E.,
Division Director

DD___________ 

DHO _________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9A

FV



Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 2 of 5 
 
Divisional Update 
 

a. Below are two charts detailing the most recent ambient air monitoring data.  The first chart 
indicates the highest AQI by pollutant and includes the highest AQI from the previous three 
years in the data table for comparison.  The second chart indicates the number of days by 
AQI category and includes the previous year to date for comparison. 
 

 
 

 
 
Please note the ambient air monitoring data are neither fully verified nor validated and 
should be considered PRELIMINARY.  As such, the data should not be used to formulate 
or support regulation, guidance, or any other governmental or public decision.  For a daily 
depiction of the most recent ambient air monitoring data, visit OurCleanAir.com. 

  

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
PM2.5 66 54

PM10 48 62

Ozone 44 47

Max (2017-19) 102 99 71 71 101 101 153 148 97 83 71 119

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

Ai
r Q

ua
lit

y 
In

de
x

Highest Monthly AQI by Pollutant (2020)

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
2020

YTD
2019

Good 20 24 44 35

Moderate 11 5 16 24

USG - - - -

Unhealthy or worse - - - -

 -

 5

 10

 15

 20

 25

 30

Da
ys

 p
er

 M
on

th

Number of Days by AQI Category (2020)



Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 3 of 5 
 

3. Program Reports 
 

a. Monitoring and Planning 
 
February Air Quality and Know the Code: There were no exceedances of any National 
Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) during the month of February.  For the 2019-
2020 Know the Code season, AQM issued 121 Green burn codes, 0 Yellows, and 0 Reds.  
 
Know the Code Season: Green.  That summarizes the 2019-2020 season.  
For the second consecutive winter season, Washoe County residents 
were allowed to use their woodstoves, pellet stoves, and fireplaces every 
day between November and February.  Weather is the primary factor 
related to the burn code.  We did not have any long periods of stagnant 
conditions which lead to strong temperature inversions that trap 
pollution in our valley.   
 
While weather is the primary element influencing our burn code, several other factors were 
just as important in contributing to our Green burn codes. 
 

• The Health District’s Woodstove program has been in place since the late 1980’s.  
It was the first of its kind in the nation and required: 1) Removal of old, high 
polluting stoves when a property was sold, 2) a minimum 1-acre parcel size for new 
construction for any woodburning device, and 3) a mandatory burning curtailment 
during high pollution episodes. 

• Woodstove and pellet stove design has improved resulting in more complete 
combustion and less smoke (aka, pollution).  This also means stoves generate more 
heat while burning less wood.   

• Our media partners and National Weather Service do a great job communicating 
our burn code to the public.  Getting this information to the public is critical in 
making good decisions to reduce pollution and avoid exposure.   

• The public is our most important partner.  They make good decisions based on our 
burn code, use seasoned wood, and keep their stoves in good running condition. 

 
The best measure of success is that our area was in 
the worst air quality classification and is now in 
compliance with both the PM10 and PM2.5 NAAQS.  
The District Board of Health made a progressive, 
yet unpopular decision in the 1980’s to tackle 
woodstove pollution.  Thirty plus years of the 
woodstove program and air monitoring data shows 
that was the right decision. 
 
 
Daniel Inouye  
Chief, Monitoring and Planning 
  

Most Popular Tweet for February 
 

 
Impressions: 415 



Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 4 of 5 
 

a. Permitting and Compliance 
 

February 
 

Staff reviewed thirty-four (34) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or Washoe 
County Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air Quality 
requirements. 

 
In February 2020, Staff conducted forty-eight (48) stationary source inspections with two 
initial compliance inspections and twelve (12) gasoline station inspections.  Staff was also 
assigned eleven (11) new asbestos abatement projects, overseeing the removal of over 
67,000 square feet of asbestos-containing materials.  Staff received four (4) new building 
demolition projects to monitor.  Further, there were fourteen (14) new construction/dust 
projects to monitor. Staff documented forty-eight (48) construction site inspections, with 
almost 200 acres of new acreage opened.  Each asbestos, demolition and construction 
notification project are monitored regularly until each project is complete and the permit is 
closed.  During the month enforcement staff also responded to eleven (11) complaints.  

 

Type of Permit 
2020 2019 

February YTD February Annual 
Total 

Renewal of Existing Air 
Permits 100 178 97 1,086 

New Authorities to 
Construct 2 6 7 52 

Dust Control Permits 14 
(197 acres) 

36 
(399 acres) 

8 
(267 acres) 

197 
(2436 acres) 

Wood Stove (WS) 
Certificates 38 78 20 442 

WS Dealers Affidavit of 
Sale 

9 
(8 replacements) 

26 
(20 replacements) 

2 
(1 replacements) 

118 
(83 replacements) 

WS Notice of 
Exemptions 

507 
(1 stove removed) 

993 
(4 stoves 
removed) 

374 
(2 stoves 
removed) 

8,353 
(80 stoves 
removed) 

Asbestos Assessments 51 101 85 1,034 
Asbestos Demo and 
Removal (NESHAP) 11 21 21 300 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

COMPLAINTS 
2020 2019 

February YTD February Annual  
Total 

Asbestos 0 0 2 11 

Burning 3 6 1 14 

Construction Dust 4 7 1 74 

Dust Control Permit 0 0 1 6 

General Dust 1 4 0 35 

Diesel Idling 0 0 0 4 

Odor 2 2 1 31 

Spray Painting 0 0 0 3 

Permit to Operate 1 1 0 8 

Woodstove 0 0 0 2 

TOTAL 11 20 6 188 

NOV’s February YTD February Annual  
Total 

Warnings 0 0 1 27 

Citations 0 0 1 15 

TOTAL 0 0 2 42 
 

Mike Wolf 
Chief, Permitting and Enforcement  



COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
CCHS Phone: 775-328-2441   I   Fax: 775-785-4189   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Community and Clinical Health Services 
Director Staff Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 26, 2020 

DATE: March 13, 2020 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Lisa Lottritz, MPH, RN 

775-328-6159; llottritz@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Divisional Update – 2020 World TB Day; Data & Metrics; Sexual Health (HIV and 

Disease Investigation), Immunizations, Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program, 
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services, Chronic Disease Prevention Program, 
Maternal Child and Adolescent Health and Women Infants and Children 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Divisional Update –

a. 2020 World TB Day - Washoe County Tuberculosis and Control Program Report

One hundred and thirty-eight years ago on March 24, 1882, Dr. Robert Koch announced his discovery of the 
TB bacillus, the cause of Tuberculosis. Annually we recognize this day to educate the public about the 
devastating impact of TB around the world.    

• One fourth of the world’s population is infected with TB.
• In 2018, 10 million people around the world became sick with TB disease. There were 1.49 million

TB related deaths worldwide.
• TB continues to be the leading killer of people who are HIV infected.

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 

LL

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9B



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 9 
 

 “It’s TIME”, continues its second year as the theme for World TB Day.  Within this theme CDC, National 
TB Controllers Association, Stop TB USA, and the global Stop TB Partnership continue to focus on four 
primary goals as we work to end this deadly disease:  
 

• It’s time to test and treat latent TB infection 
• It’s time we strengthen TB education and awareness among health care providers 
• It’s time to speak up 
• It’s time to end stigma  

 
The WCHD TB Program prioritizes the “It’s Time” goals for those affected by Tuberculosis in Washoe County 
and is the program’s number one priority.  The program provides coordination of care for all active Tuberculosis 
cases; by overseeing the care of these cases the program ensures appropriate treatment and thorough contact 
investigations are completed.  
  
Since more than 80% of active Tuberculosis comes from untreated latent Tuberculosis infection (LTBI), the 
program’s next efforts are focused on assessment, diagnosis, and treatment of LTBI in high risk populations 
including immigrants, individuals with immune system disorders/chronic health conditions, and those taking 
certain medications. The WCHD TB program provides coordination of care for these groups with many treated 
by the program and others treated through their primary provider.   
 
For low risk LTBI patients are encouraged to access preventive treatment through their primary provider.  The 
WCHD TB program does not have the capacity to treat all lower risk individuals but does provide support for 
treatment with local hospitals, health care agencies, and community-based clinicians.  Since treatment for LTBI 
is almost always optional, many patients decline treatment and many primary care providers do not encourage 
treatment.  These barriers continue to be the primary reason LTBI is not treated and why treating LTBI remains 
the number one goal for the “It’s Time” movement.  Efforts by the WCHD TB program to educate community 
providers continue in a variety of ways, including direct correspondence, Epi-News, cohort reviews and 
continuing education programs.  Many providers consult with WCHD TB program regarding cases and all 
providers are encouraged to seek Tuberculosis support through the program.   
 
The WCHD TB program continues to spread the motto “Think TB”, as active disease can still be overlooked, 
and latent infection continues to go untreated.  The WCHD TB program provides strong support and education 
to patients. Staff work with patients to address their needs and decrease the stigma associated with TB disease. 
Continued education is needed as stigma persists in the larger community. The WCHD TB program routinely 
communicates the message that, “no one chooses this infection” and “appropriate treatment provides a cure”.  
As we continue to send these types of messages and to educate the public barriers to eliminating this disease 
will decrease.  The WCHD TB program is truly working hard to make Tuberculosis elimination a reality.  
 
The WCHD TB program utilizes a set of objective targets from the National Tuberculosis Indicators Project 
(NTIP) to highlight TB care and treatment provided to Washoe County residents diagnosed with TB.  The NTIP 
objectives were created as a monitoring system for tracking the progress of U.S. Tuberculosis Control Programs 
toward achieving national TB program objectives.   
 
 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 3 of 9 
 

Goals for Reducing TB Incidence 
Goal 2020 

Target 
National 
2018 

Nevada 
2018 

WCHD 2017 WCHD 2018 

Reduce the incidence of TB 
disease. 

1.4 cases/ 
100,000 

2.8 cases/ 
100,000 

2.3 cases/  
100,000 

3.7 
cases/100,000 

2.0 cases/100,000 

Decrease the incidence of TB 
disease among U.S. born 
persons. 

0.4 cases/ 
100,000 

1.0 cases/ 
100,000 

20% 
14/69 

6% (1/17) 22% (2/9) 

Decrease the incidence of TB 
disease among foreign born 
persons. 

11.1 cases/ 
100,000 

14.3 cases/ 
100,000 

80% 
(55/69) 

94% (16/17) 78%  (7/9) 

Decrease the incidence of TB 
disease among U.S. born non-
Hispanic blacks or African 
Americans. 

1.5 cases/ 
100,000 

4.4 cases/ 
100,000 
blacks 

1.2 cases/ 
100,000 

0% (0/17) 0% (0/9) 

Decrease the incidence of TB 
disease among children 
younger than 5 years of age.  

0.3 cases/ 
100,000 

0.9 cases/ 
100,000 

2.1 cases/ 
100,000 
(4 cases) 

0 cases 1 case 

Objectives:  Case Management and Treatment 
Goal 2020 

Target 
WCHD 
2017 

WCHD 
2018 

Increase the proportion of TB patients who have a HIV test result reported. 98% 100% 100% 

For TB patients with positive AFB sputum smear results, increase the 
proportion who initiated treatment within 7 days of specimen collection. 

97% 100% (3/3) 100% 
(3/3) 

For patients whose diagnosis is likely to be TB disease, increase the 
proportion who are started on the recommended initial 4 drug regimen. 

97% 94%       
(16/17)** 

100% 
(9/9) 

For TB patients ages 12 years or older with a pleural or respiratory site of 
disease, increase the proportion who have a sputum culture result reported. 

98% 100%    
(11/11) 

100% 
(5/5) 

1 case sputum 
NAAT+ /  No 

growth in 
Culture 

For TB patients with positive sputum culture results, increase the 
proportion who have documented conversion to negative results within 60 
days of treatment initiation. 

73% 88%       
(8/9)** 

100% 
(2/3) 

One delayed 
conversion 

For patients with newly diagnosed TB disease for whom 12 months or less 
of treatment is indicated, increase the proportion who complete treatment 
within 12 months. 

95%  94%    
(16/17)** 

100% 
9/9 

• *Client with prior treatment in 2013 – lost to follow-up.  
• **One death prior to treatment 

  



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 4 of 9 
 

Contact Investigations 
Goal 2020 

Target 
WCHD 2017 WCHD 2018 

For TB patients w/positive AFB sputum smear results, 
increase the proportion who have contacts elicited. 

100 % 100% 
(3/3) 

100% 
(3/3) 

For contacts to sputum AFB smear positive TB cases, 
increase the proportion who are examined for infection 
and disease.  

93% 95%     
(42/44) * 

51% 
(104/203) 

Large shelter 
investigation, yielded 

few evaluations.   

For contacts to sputum AFB smear positive TB cases 
diagnosed with LTBI, increase the proportion who start 
treatment.  

91%     100%                                 
(10/10) 

       67% 
      (2/3) 
One lost to f/u.   

For contacts to sputum AFB smear positive TB cases who 
have started treatment for LTBI, increase the proportion 
who complete treatment.  

81%     90%                  
(9/10)** 

     100% 
     (2/2) 

• * Two refused 2
nd

 tests 
• ** 1 non-adherent-lost to f/u 

   

 
Laboratory Reporting 

Goal 2020 
Target 

WCHD 
2016 

WCHD 
2017 

WCHD 
2018 

For TB patients w/positive culture result, increase the 
proportion who have a M.tbc genotyping result reported.  

100% 100% 100% 100% 

For TB patients w/positive culture results, increase the 
proportion who have initial drug susceptibility results 
reported.  

100% 100% 100% 100% 

For TB patients’ w/cultures of respiratory specimens 
identified w/M.tbc, increase the proportion reported by the 
lab w/in 25 days from the date the specimen was collected. 

78% 100% 100% 100% 

For TB patients w/respiratory specimens positive for M.tbc 
by NAAT, increase the proportion reported by the 
laboratory w/in 6 days from the date the specimen was 
collected.  

92%  100% 100% 100% 

 

 
 
 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 5 of 9 
 

Examination of Immigrants 
Goal 2020 

Target 
WCHD 
2016 

WCHD 2017 WCHD 2018 

For TB patients w/positive AFB sputum smear 
results, increase the proportion who have contacts 
elicited. 

100 % 100% 
(3/3) 

100% 
(3/3) 

100% 
(3/3) 

For contacts to sputum AFB smear positive TB 
cases, increase the proportion who are examined for 
infection and disease.  

93% 100% (3/3) 95%    
(42/44) * 

51% 
(104/203) 

Large shelter 
investigation 
yielded few 
evaluations.   

For contacts to sputum AFB smear positive TB cases 
diagnosed with LTBI, increase the proportion who 
start treatment.  

91%       67%  
     (2/3) 

    100%                                 
(10/10) 

       67% 
      (2/3) 
One lost to 
f/u.   

For contacts to sputum AFB smear positive TB cases 
who have started treatment for LTBI, increase the 
proportion who complete treatment.  

81%       100%  
      (2/3) 

    90%                 
(9/10)** 

     100% 
     (2/2) 

• * Two refused 2
nd

 tests 
• ** 1 non-adherent-lost to f/u 

    

 
Challenges to meeting NTIP goals include: 

• Collaboration with primary providers. 
• Treatment of high risk LTBI by primary providers. 
• Educating/enabling community providers with tools for LTBI treatment.   
• Staff capacity to conduct outreach.  
• Delayed evaluation of high-risk contacts. 
• Resources for contact investigations. 

 
Successes 

• Positive immigration outcomes for evaluation and LTBI treatment.   
• Overall high case initiation, DOT, and COT success rate.  
• Consistently obtain HIV status for clients with TB disease. 
• Consistent NSPHL reporting.  
• Positive relationship/communication with hospital infection control programs (Saint Mary’s, 

Renown, NNMC, and VAMC).   
 

 
 
 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 6 of 9 
 

 
2. Data & Metrics 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community demand, changes in staffing and changes in scope of work/grant 
deliverables, all which may affect the availability of services. 
 
 

351

32
172

323

1

879

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

IZ Clinic IZ
Offsite

TB STD FP MCAH Total

Number of Visits by Program
February 2019 and February 2020

February 2019 February 2020

243 274 351 883

2092

3843

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
4000
4500

Number of WIC Participants Served 
Feburary 2020



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 7 of 9 
 

 
 
3. Program Reports – Outcomes and Activities 

 
a. Sexual Health (Outreach and Disease Investigation) – Sexual Health Disease Investigation 

Specialist (DIS) staff received Washoe County’s first two congenital syphilis cases for 2020 in 
February. These cases, as well as diagnosed/treated pregnant women, are being followed by our 
congenital syphilis case manager. DIS staff continue to be very busy investigating ever 
increasing numbers of sexually transmitted disease. All 2019 STD cases have been entered into 
the NBS data base and reconciled; to date the program has not received any notifications from 
the State regarding any entered data requiring updating. Staff have been planning on moving to a 
paperless investigation process with July 1, 2020 as the go-live target date and may be able to 
move that date forward to 5/1/20 depending on the impact COVID-19 has on program goals.  
 

b. Immunizations – An offsite clinic was held at the Family Health Festival on March 4, 2020 at the 
Boys and Girls Club, in partnership with Immunize Nevada and Walmart.  Forty-four people were 
seen, and 114 doses of vaccine administered. All recommended vaccines were offered to anyone 
2 months and over and flu vaccines were offered to anyone 6 months and over. 
 

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program -  Of immediate interest WCHD TB and 
CCHS staff have been busy conducting testing for COVID-19. Testing began on March 2, 2020 
and was initially completed by TB program staff inside negative air pressure exam rooms located 
within the TB clinic. Friday, March 6, 2019 saw the beginning of drive through testing 
conducted from the building’s back entrance with clients remaining in their vehicle or seated 
outside and continues to be the testing process utilized.   
 
No active TB cases have been reported in 2020.  
 

d. Reproductive and Sexual Health Services – Reproductive and Sexual Health Services hired a 
new per diem APRN, Sarah Sudtell. Sarah was hired to help the clinic serve a higher number of 
walk-in clients under the State grant funded by Senate Bill 94. Sarah comes from Alma Clinic in 
Sparks, which also serves an at-risk population.   
 
Clinic staff have been training in the Immunization Clinic in order to implement immunization 
services for clients. Staff is in the process of updating, adding resource materials, and evaluating 
materials for reading levels as required by Title X.   
 
Kelly Verling, Public Health Nurse Supervisor, attended the 2020 National Family Planning 
Reproductive Health Association (NFPRHA) Conference in Washington DC, March 8-11.  
  



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 8 of 9 
 

Staff continue to provide reproductive health services to female inmates at the Washoe County 
Sheriff’s Office twice a month. 
 

e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program (CDPP) – Staff participated in learning and collaboration 
with statewide tobacco partners at the annual Nevada Tobacco Partner meeting.  As the current 
Nevada Tobacco Prevention Coalition president, Kelli Goatley-Seals presented to partners about 
coalition history, activities, challenges and opportunities.  Statewide discussions were held about 
key tobacco issues including Tobacco 21, youth use of e-cigarettes and second-hand smoke 
exposure (including threats to clean indoor air from indoor smoking of marijuana). 

CDPP staff collaborated with CCHS and ODHO staff to coordinate a training for Health District staff 
on health equity and form a Health District Health Equity Committee to explore improvements in 
health equity at the Health District. 

Staff contributed to the Nevada Cancer Plan by participating in a workgroup looking at cancer 
prevention activities appropriate for Nevada communities. 

The 2020 Wolf Pack Coaches Challenge program was completed among 38 Title I elementary 
classrooms for a total of 743 student participants. During the four-week program students were 
challenged to eat more fruits and vegetables in and out of school and to also be more active. 

CDPP welcomed Brian Fullgraf to the team in February. Brian is a Public Service Intern who will be 
completing his graduate-level project with WCHD on the topic of behavioral health and 
homelessness, as he is working towards his Master’s in Public Health from UNR.   

 
CDPP’s secondhand marijuana smoke outdoor and digital educational media campaign began and 
will run through March.  

 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: March 26, 2020 
Page 9 of 9 
 

 
 

f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – Staff are working on the Executive 
Summary report for FIMR and entering cases as needed.  
 
The FIMR Board acquired Dr. David Jackson from the High-Risk Pregnancy Center as a 
member in February. Dr. Jackson has previous experience on a FIMR Board.   
 
Staff distributed congenital syphilis algorithms to all FIMR members.  FIMR staff viewed a 
recorded webinar on “Review of Infant Deaths due to Congenital Anomalies”.  
 
Staff continue to attend and provide updates at the Northern Nevada Maternal Child Health 
meetings, Pregnancy & Infant Loss Support Organization (PILSOS), and Child Death Review 
meetings.  Cribs for Kids classes continue. Newborn screening and lead cases are investigated as 
needed.  
 

g. Women, Infants and Children (WIC) – WIC will roll out the Developmental Milestone Check 
list program. This program is based on the CDC’s, “Learn the Signs, Act Early” (LTSAE) public 
health campaign. This WIC developmental program started as a partnership between University 
of Missouri (MU) and Missouri WIC program and was refined to address disparities and facilitate 
healthy development for all children. Due to the success seen in Missouri, CDC funded a grant to 
pilot the model at WIC programs and in 2019, Nevada was chosen as one of 3 states for the national 
pilot. Research shows that one of every four children is at risk for developmental, behavioral or 
social delay. This is particularly true among low income families and nutritionally at-risk children 
such as those served by WIC. These children often miss out on critical services at a time when 
those interventions would have the greatest impact on their quality of life. Early identification can 
lead to better outcomes and WIC is proud to be a part of the national pilot. 

 
WIC program has refilled the position created by the transfer of Nancy Ramirez to the Family Planning/ 
STD program. The new hire is expected to join the program on March 16th. This position is trained to 
provide nutrition education, foods and referrals after reviewing health, medical, lifestyle and social 
factors.  

 
 

 



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EHS Office: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Environmental Health Services  
Division Director Staff Report 

Board Meeting Date:  March 26, 2020 

DATE: March 26, 2020 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 

775-328-2644; calbee@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: Environmental Health Services (EHS) Division Program Updates – Consumer 

Protection (Food, Food Safety, Permitted Facilities, Commercial Plans) and 
Environmental Protection (Land Development, Safe Drinking Water, Vector, Waste 
Management/UST), and Inspections. 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Program Updates 
A. Consumer Protection

Food/Food Safety

• The Food Program created a quarterly newsletter that will be sent out to our email listing starting
this month. The newsletter will cover important issues in Food Safety and be another tool to help
educate and inform the public about food safety regulations and upcoming workshops. Having a
quarterly newsletter will add to our continued conformance with Standard 7, Industry and
Community Relations, for the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) Retail Program Standards.

• The Food Safety Program sent out a guidance document to food establishments in Washoe County
about the COVID-19 outbreak. This guidance document is intended to help food facilities prevent
the virus from spreading by using approved sanitizers and serves as a reminder for food managers
to focus on employee health and hygiene as a method of disease prevention.

• Epidemiology – The number of School and Childcare outbreaks increased significantly in
February and staff collected six stool samples from an elementary school Gastrointestinal Illness
outbreak.  Program staff presented at the Washoe County School District’s monthly nurses meeting
on the importance of reporting outbreaks and how to prevent future outbreaks.  The presentation
was in conjunction with the Communicable Disease staff and was well received.

Epidemiology JAN 
2020 

FEB 
2020 

2020 
YTD 

Foodborne Disease Complaints 20 20 40 
Foodborne Disease Interviews 14 12 26 
Foodborne Disease Investigations 0 1 1 
CD Referrals Reviewed 12 9 21 
Product Recalls Reviewed 3 1 4 
Child Care/School Outbreaks Monitored 13 22 35 

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9C

CA

mailto:calbee@washoecounty.us


Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: EHS Division Director’s Report 
Page: 2 of 3 
 

• Special Events/Temporary Food –Temporary food permits increased in the month of February and 
two Promoter permit applications were submitted.  New staff members continue to train on all 
aspects of the program in order to be fully cross trained in time for the busy summer season.  

Commercial Plans 

• Commercial plan reviews and inspection load remains relatively similar to the past couple of 
months.  Program staff are currently planning a Cross Connection/Backflow course for all EHS 
staff to attend on March 30.  This training is intended to provide staff with a basic background of 
backflow protection and how it is applied in various facilities regulated by EHS (e.g., food 
establishments, public bathing, schools, mobile home parks, etc.).   

 
 
 
 
Permitted Facilities 

• Hotel/Motel – Staff conducted Change of Ownership inspections on two motels with 
approximately 100 rooms each.  Every room was inspected and a compliance order was issued to 
resolve all violations before a new permit can be approved and issued.   

• Schools – Staff assisted with COVID-19 response in meetings with the Washoe County School 
District.  Topics covered included sanitizing and exclusions.  Staff also started school facility 
inspections for the 2020 spring semester.  As of this report, the inspections are nearing 10% 
completion. 

• Training – One of the new staff members began training on inspections for Permitted Facilities to 
include Hotels/Motels, Mobile Home/RV Parks, Schools, Child Care, Pools/Spas and Invasive 
Body Decorations.  As of early March the new inspector has completed trainings in Mobile Home 
and RV Parks, Schools, Child Care Facilities and Hotels/Motels.  The new inspector is on track to 
finish all Permitted Facilities inspection training by mid-April.   

B. Environmental Protection   

Land Development 

• Training for the new team members has moved into a new phase.  After just being exposed to the 
different types of inspections, over the course of March the trainees will begin taking the lead on 
septic and well inspections.  Different types of inspections have been assigned a priority based on 
level of difficulty.  Each trainee will see a minimum of three of each inspection type and then be 
signed off by the Senior.  This will prepare the team to distribute inspection work more evenly in 
April which will be crucial as construction season starts up.  Currently the team is working with 
only one trained staff member for construction inspections each day and due to the lack of 
inclement weather, daily inspection workload has remained elevated. 

• Through February, the program has taken in 111 plans in 2020 versus 89 for 2019.  Plan review 
times remain on average just at or over two weeks.   

Land Development JAN 
2020 

FEB 
2020 

2020 
YTD 

2019 
TOTAL 

Plans Received (Residential/Septic) 53 58 111 913 
Residential Septic/Well Inspections 72 99 171 1,051 
Well Permits 10 14 24 72 

Community Development JAN 
2020 

FEB 
2020 

2020 
YTD 

2019 
TOTAL 

Development Reviews 15 11 26 373 
Commercial Plans Received 96 91 187 1,325 
Commercial Plan Inspections 21 27 48 395 
Water Projects Received 8 5 13 87 
Lots/Units Approved for Construction 95 108 203 1,337 



Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: EHS Division Director’s Report 
Page: 3 of 3 
 

Safe Drinking Water (SDW) 

• Washoe County Health District (WCHD) and Bureau of Safe Drinking Water (BSDW) have begun 
discussions regarding the permitting of new water systems.  Over the last few years, there have 
been several “found” systems that BSDW took the lead in getting permitted but that role is 
switching to WCHD.  There are certain portions of responsibility that are still the purview of the 
State and formalizing those processes and roles will allow for smoother permitting for clients. 

• Sanitary surveys have not begun yet this year as training in Land Development has taken 
precedence.  The team is hoping to begin in March or by the end of April at the latest.  Once new 
staff is trained and Land Development workload is begin spread out, work will begin on annual 
surveys. 

Vector-Borne Diseases (VBD) 

• The Program started the recruiting process to hire a fifth public service intern for the 2020 
mosquito season.  Four public service interns are returning from the previous season.    

• The current mosquito control product inventory will facilitate a preliminary April growth regulator 
treatment followed up with two bacterial larvicide treatments in May and June.   

Service Requests JAN 
2020 

FEB 
2020 

2020 
YTD 

Tick Identifications 4 2 6 
Rabies (Bat testing) 1 1 2 
Mosquito Fish Requests 2 1 3 

Waste Management (WM)/Underground Storage Tanks (UST) 

• Sun Valley General Improve District (SVGID) is hosting an E-waste and appliance recycling event 
on Saturday, April 18, 2020, from 9am-1pm at 110 West 4th Avenue, Sun Valley.   

• Keep Truckee Meadows Beautiful (KTMB) is hosting the Great Community Cleanup on Saturday, 
May 2, 2020, from 8am to noon.  Please visit their website to register to volunteer @ ktmb.org.    

EHS 2020 Inspections 
 

 JAN 
2020 

FEB 
2020 

2020 
YTD 

2019 
TOTAL 

Child Care 13 4 17 129 
Complaints 76 67 143 817 
Food 369 535 904 5,819 
General* 39 71 110 2,051 
Temporary Foods/Special Events 3 25 28 1,541 
Temporary IBD Events 1 0 1 86 
Waste Management 5 26 31 136 

  TOTAL 506 728 1,234 10,579 
     

EHS Public Record Requests 204 274 478 3,508 
* General Inspections Include:  IBD; Mobile Home/RV; Public Accommodations; Pools/Spas; RV Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping. 



EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
EPHP Office: 775-326-6055   I   Fax: 775-325-8130   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 
Division Director Staff Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 26, 2020 

DATE: March 17, 2020 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Director 

775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, Emergency Medical Services 

Communicable Disease (CD)  
2019 Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
The Epidemiology Program is staying up-to-date with the evolving 2019 Novel Coronavirus (2019-
nCoV) situation, which has been renamed COVID-19 by the World Health Organization. To date there 
have been a number of cases of COVID-19 in Washoe County. This number changes daily. 

The Communicable Disease Program, Public Health Preparedness staff, and Washoe County Health 
District leadership have continued holding weekly meetings to plan and provide updates for the rapidly 
evolving 2019 novel coronavirus situation.  

Influenza – Thus far, there have been 215 influenza-associated hospitalizations for the 2019-2020 
flu season in Washoe County. Among these cases, 62 hospitalized patients received the seasonal 
flu vaccine before onset of symptoms. There have been 7 confirmed flu-related deaths reported 
thus far (week 8) and the CD team is currently investigating 1 additional influenza-associated 
death. 

During week 8, the percentage of persons seen locally with influenza-like illness (ILI) increased 
to 3.4%, which is above the regional baseline of 2.4%. In Washoe County the pneumonia and 
influenza (P&I) mortality for week 8 was 98.  This reflects a P&I ratio of 2.0%.  

Carbapenemase Producing Organisms (CPO) - CD Program staff are continuing to hold the monthly 
statewide call for updates related to Carbapenemase producing organisms (CPO). Hospitalists, 
laboratory personnel, epidemiologists, and infection prevention staff from across the state 
regularly attend these calls.  

DD    _RT_____ 
DHO ________ 
DA     ________ 
Risk   ________ 

DBOH AGENDA NO. 9D

mailto:rtodd@washoecounty.us


Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: EPHP Division Director’s Report 
Page: 2 of 2 
 

Public Health Preparedness (PHP) 
Stop the Bleed Training – PHP conducted Stop the Bleed Training for Washoe County employees 
and community partners on March 3, 5, and 11.  A total of 68 people were trained over five training 
sessions. 
 
Integrated Emergency Management Course (IEMC) - The PHERC had been identified as an 
attendee for this training in Emmitsburg, MD on March 16-20.  This event is a unique and very 
special opportunity to enhance our regional preparedness.  Communities who have engaged in this 
process report that it has really paid off in times of crisis.  Unfortunately, this event has been 
canceled due to the COVID-19 situation across the country. 
 
Emergency Medical Service (EMS)  
Interviews for the EMS Coordinator position took place on February 11 - 13, 2020.  A successful 
candidate was identified and will begin working on March 30.   
    



OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B, Reno, Nevada 89512 
ODHO Office: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Office of the District Health Officer 
District Health Officer Staff Report 

Board Meeting Date: March 26, 2020 

DATE: March 18, 2020 
TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

775-328-2416; kdick@washoecounty.us 
SUBJECT: District Health Officer Report – COVID-19, Ozone Advance, Community Health 

Improvement Plan, and Family Health Festival. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
COVID-19 

The Health District activated the Department Emergency Operations Center on January 27, 2020 at Level 
1 and raised the activation to Level 2 on March 6, 2020.  The Regional Emergency Operations Center was 
activated at Level 1 on February 28, 2020, this activation was increased to a Level 1+ on March 6, 2020 
to Level 2 on March 13, 2020 and to Level 2+ on March 17, 2020.  The Health District has coordinated 
with our EMS and healthcare system, schools, other health authorities, and the Governor’s office 
throughout these emergency management efforts.  The Health District has provided website resources and 
numerous press releases and press briefings to inform the public.  A call center was established to screen 
and conduct risk assessment of callers, so that the epidemiology program could provide appropriate 
direction for isolation, monitoring, and testing.  A drive-through sample collection process for testing at 
the State Public Health Lab was developed and implemented, with samples collected by Health District 
Public Health Nurses.  Case contact investigations of positive COVID-19 cases have been conducted, with 
self-isolation and monitoring of close contact occurring and lab testing of individuals that developed 
symptoms.  Health District personnel coordinated closely with the Governor’s office, State preparedness 
personnel, and the Washoe County Grand Princess passengers to meet and screen them upon their return 
to the airport and transport them back to their residences.     

Ozone Advance 

On March 5, 2020 a follow-up Ozone Advance meeting was held with community stakeholders to discuss 
future steps that need to be taken to remain in EPA ozone attainment. Chair Novak and board member 
Kristopher Dahir suggested the creation of an Ozone Task Force.  Ozone Task Force includes community 
and industry leaders to create tangible steps towards maintaining ozone attainment. Further steps towards 
the creation of the task force have been postponed due to COVID-19.  

City of Reno Title 18 (Building and Development Code) Technical Working Group meetings are being 
regularly and are attended by Director Francisco Vega and Branch Chief Dan Inouye to provide comments 

DBOH AGENDA NO. 9.E.

mailto:kdick@washoecounty.us


Date: March 26, 2020 
Subject: ODHO District Health Officer Report 
Page: 2 of 2 
 

regarding Reno's code changes that support the Ozone Advance Program. Specifically, Division Director 
Vega and Branch Chief Inouye have reviewed and are recommending some elements of the City of 
Henderson's (Nevada) updated development code, which includes a menu of options for developers to 
support sustainability. 

Community Health Improvement Plan 

The Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) implementation has continued and the 2019 CHIP 
report will be shared with various audiences to increase awareness of the implementation successes seen 
in 2019.   

Regarding 5210 Healthy Washoe, the Nutrition and Physical Activity focus area, continues to progress 
with implementation of the 5210 Healthy Washoe initiative. For the worksite component of the initiative, 
the 5210 coordinators provided a champion training to the Washoe County Champions. All 24 
departments held a kickoff meeting or celebration and state that about 90% of their staff know of the 
program or know where to find information.  The business pilot sites have continued implementation and 
are most interested in healthy vending and establishing a smoke-free workplace. For the healthcare 
components, Northern Nevada HOPES, Renown Health, and Community Health Alliance continues to 
implement the 5210 strategies during patient appointments. For the school components, all five pilot 
schools have completed an action plan and are taking steps to begin implementation. Schools met with 
their cafeteria managers and Washoe County School District Nutrition Services to improve cafeteria 
efforts to increase fruit and vegetable consumption among students. In addition, Urban Roots continues 
to provide services which includes 5210 programming in five schools.     

Family Health Festival 

The Family Health Festival (FHF) committee partnered with Immunize Nevada and the Washoe County 
Health District’s (WCHD) Immunization team to provide an event at the Boys and Girls Club, Carano 
Teen Facility on March 4, 2020 from 3:30p.m. - 6 :30 p.m.  The FHF focused on providing vaccines to 
children 6mo-18yrs, who are going into kindergarten and/or had siblings that needed routine vaccines. In 
addition, Renown Health, Northern Nevada HOPES and Community Health Alliance were present to 
establish primary care for those without a doctor or insurance. Additionally, NV Energy mailed letters to 
families who quality for the energy assistance program and who were near the event location. As a result, 
over 20 families attended the event and received additional services in conjunction to receiving energy 
assistance. The total numbers are being finalized and will be included in the event report. The next Family 
Health Festival will be in May.   


	Agenda
	5. Consent Items
	A. Approval of Draft Minutes
	February 27, 2020

	B. *Recognitions
	C. Budget Amendments/Interlocal Agreements
	i.  NDHHS HIV Prevention Part B Award 
	Staff Report

	ii. NDHHS Chronic Disease Prevention Award
	Staff Report


	D. AQM Annual report for TMRPA
	Staff Report

	E. TMPRA Annual Report on Solid Waste
	Staff Report

	F. Levy Premium Food EPHAB Variance  Recomendation
	Staff Report

	G. Rocky Mountain Chocolate Factory EPHAB Variance Recommendation 
	Staff Report

	H. Health Fund Review for February 2020
	Staff Report


	6. Possible approval of the Interlocal Agreement for Incident Command and CoordinatedResponse to COVID-19.
	Staff Report

	7. Prescribed Burning Business Impact Statement
	Staff Report

	8. COVID-19 Fees
	Staff Report

	9. *Staff Reports and Program Updates
	A. AQM
	Staff Report

	B. CCHS
	Staff Report

	C. EHS
	Staff Report

	D. EPHP
	Staff Report

	E. ODHO
	Staff Report




	Incline Village NV  Crystal Bay: Off
	Mt Rose Hwy: Off
	North Valleys: Off
	Reno: Off
	Sand Harbor: Off
	Other location: Off
	Northern Washoe County: Off
	Washoe Valley: Off
	Other location name: 
	Additional location information: 
	My Health  My families health: Off
	Residential neighborhoods: Off
	Schools: Off
	Bus stops: Off
	Businesses: Off
	Recreation or recreation events: Off
	Public streets roadway or highways: Off
	Portions of the Lake Tahoe Basin: Off
	Other impact: Off
	Having a difficult time breathing: Off
	Smoke is preventing me going outside/recreating: Off
	COPD/heart lung/Asthma or disabled: Off
	Smoke in my house: Off
	Day to day functions: Off
	Group6: Off
	Name: Doug Flaherty
	Date MMDDYYYY: 02/03/2020
	Phone: 
	Email Address: TahoeBlue365@gmail.com
	Street address or PO Box: 
	City/Zip Code: 


